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17 18 19 20 21
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
( )| 209,116 192,779 249,589 318,452 327,701
( ) 11,553 10,703 13,716 19,079 19,007
( ) 9,264 10,026 11,716 16,652 16,435
( ) 8,912 9,833 11,901 16,674 15,972
( ) 38,123 28,010 39,911 59,818 70,736
( ) 98,205 105,283 137,258 179,321 179,668
( ) 1.90 1.40 1.99 2.87 3.36
( ) 0.57 0.50 0.58 0.80 0.78
(D) 38.8 26.6 29.1 33.4 39.4
) 31.8 30.3 34.5 33.4 25.2
) - - - 5.08 4.78
( ) 8,248 6,429 3,837 14,198 22,415
( ) 5,534 4,114 1,149 7,003 686
( ) 6,858 8,456 3,413 23,880 15,506
( ) 20,560 14,191 20,511 23,212 29,105
141 191 216 199 242
) ) &) O (&) © (&)
50
17 19
2021 12 17
2021 12
2012 21 133 14
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2009
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2019

1509001:2015
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OMNI-PLUS SYSTEM Japan
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( )
Nihon Pigment 100.0
Sdn_Bhd.

2,000,000
OPS Technologies 100.0
Sdn_Bhd.

250,000
Omni-Plus System 100.0
Shanghai Limited 13,576,080
PT Omni Plus System 100.0

2,783,000,000

Cepco Trading 100.0
Sdn_Bhd.

3,600,000
Omni Plus System 100.0
Philippines Inc. 197,635
DP Chemicals 100.0
Pte.Ltd. 534,530
DP Chemicals Vietnam 100.0
Company Limited 6,300,000,000 (100.0)
I-FTZ Trade 100.0
Philippines Inc. 200,000
Alpha Chemie 100.0
Pte.Ltd. 200,000
PT Sentosa Kimia 100.0

2,500,000,000

Tags Polymer 100.0
Sdn.Bhd.

100,000

OMNI-PLUS 100.0 —

SYSTEM Japan 5,000,000
Omni-Plus System 100.0
(Thailand) Co., Ltd 10,000,000
Omni-Plus System 39.0
Plastics Co Ltd 2,000,000
Kyoei Denki (S) 100.0
Pte.Ltd. 3,600,000
PT Kyoei Denki 100.0
Trading Indonesia 800,000 (100.0)
KD Advanced 100.0
Materials, Inc 100,000 (100.0)
( )
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Small World 48.0
Accelerator Pte.Ltd.
600,001
R&P Technologies 40.0
Pte.Ltd. 1,875,000
ITOCHU Plastics Pte.
Ltd. 25.24
2,750,000
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Venture Pte Ltd Neo Puay Keong
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IT
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2023 31 ITOCHU Plastics Pte. Ltd.
25.24
Employment Act
10 15
ITOCHU Plastics Pte. Ltd. ITOCHU Plastics
Pte. Ltd.
2022 2023
ITOCHU Plastics Pte. Ltd. 340,500 466,136
ITOCHU Plastics Pte. Ltd. 14,856,144 24,292,630
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ITOCHU Plastics Pte. Ltd.

R&P Technologies Pte Ltd

Omni-Plus System Plastics Co., Ltd

Hybrid Digital Pte Ltd

CEO Neo Puay Keong | IT

100

Matwerkz Technologies Pte.Ltd.

CEO Neo Puay Keong

27

Omni Development Sdn. Bhd.

CEO Neo Puay Keong

40

2022 2023
R&P Technologies Pte Ltd 8,304,450 7,330,790
R&P Technologies Pte Ltd 6,155,948 6,758,624
R&P Technologies Pte Ltd 40,988 39,077
Omni-Plus System Plastics Co., Ltd 1,409 —
Omni-Plus System Plastics Co., Ltd 1,542 -
Hybrid Digital Pte Ltd 35,780 35,735
Hybrid Digital Pte Ltd 278,635 269,361
Hybrid Digital Pte Ltd 44,542 43,641
Matwerkz Technologies Pte.Ltd. 24,000 28,596
Matwerkz Technologies Pte.Ltd. 25,268 30,107
Omni-Development Sdn Bhd - 9,048,281
Omni-Development Sdn Bhd - 1,195,725

JDR

2021 25
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21 2022 2023 31
0.3
6.6 5.8
0.2 0.3
10.6
6.9 4.3 0.2
0.8
59.8 10.9 70.7
11.4 5.1
2023 327.7 2.9
34.1 43.4
10.7 13.2

16.7 16.4
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14.9 22.8 7.9
52.8
3.3 1.3 139.7
1.1 0.2 21.4 1.3
2.4 2.6 6.0
23.2 5.9 29.1
3.9
22.4 25.6
1.1 2.1
0.7 1.4
0.2 1.2
15.5 6.9
5.1 2.7
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a.
20 21
20 21
2021 2022
2022 31 2023 31
(USD) (USD)
81,251,897 128.5 71,276,013 87.7
81,251,897 128.5 71,276,013 87.7
b.
C.
20 21
20 21
2021 2022
2022 31 2023 31
(USD) (USD)
318,451,834 127.6| 327,700,757 102.9
318,451,834 127.6] 327,700,757 102.9
(
)
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2023 31
Industrial 2019
Polymer Sdn.
Bhd
R&P(Pte) Ltd 2017 21
R&P Technologies Pte
Ltd
Matwerkz 2022 12
Technologies 2023 11 30
Pte. Ltd.
IT
2022
2023 12
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Institute of Materials Research and Engineering IMRE

2023

2022 2023

( )
328,885 314,682

11
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2021 2022 31
55,763
2022 2023 31
204,724
2023 31
( ()
( 1,015,145 | 2,448,939 30,202 | 3,494,286 56
)
2023 31
)
Nihon
Pigment N 12,720,294|230,409| 324,297| 75,781| 13,350,781 54
Sdn.Bhd.
)

Nihon Pigment Sdn.Bhd.
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( )
Nihon 150
Pigment ( ) — 30,000 - 2024 2(1);5
Sdn.Bhd.
2024
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2023 31
)
10,528,922
10,528,922
2023 30 50
) )
2023 31 2023 3
2021
21,057,844 21,057,844 29
21,057,844 21,057,844 — —
2021 29
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(D) ) ( ) |1 ( ) 1 ( ) | ( )
206 31 0| 3,632,500 0| 2,674,070 -
2017( )30 403,611 | 4,036,111 | 1,124,460 | 3,798,530 -
2019( )28 975,350 | 5,011,461 | 14,711,895 | 18,510,425 -
2021( )12 15,034,383 | 20,045,844 - | 18,510,425 -
2021 24 880,000 | 20,925,844 | 7,018,552 | 25,528,977 -
2021 29 132,000 | 21,057,844 | 544,571 | 26,073,548 -
) 2786 1,124,460
15.08 14,711,895
960  8.67 880,000
960  8.67 132,000
1,210,067
2023 31
)
)
- 1 - 2 - - 3 6
)
( -1 1,201,500 - 110,948,461 - -1 8,907,883|21,057,844
; 5.71 - 51.99 - - 42.30 100
(@)
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2023 31
Neo Puay Keong 8,065,196 38.30
D3cube Venture Pte 339943
Ltd #01-03 994 5,633,077 26.75
ITOCHU Plastics Pte. 078881
Ltd. 432-03 1 5,315,384 25.24
MTBJ880000069 1 1,201,500 571
Chong Chiet Ping 480,050 2.28
Daryl Neo Boon Yao 362,637 1.72
- 21,057,844 100.00
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31

Regina Tay Wee Lian CSO

Lee

(M
2023
CEO Neo Puay Keong
Regina Tay Wee Lian
Yong Thian Sze
Lee Sok Hui
Wong Ming Chee
11 100
@
18 2023 31
Lee Sok Hui
Yong Thian Sze
(iii)

10

Yong Thian Sze(
Lee Sok Hui

Yong

2023 31
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@v)
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CSO Chief Sustability Officer CFO
(vi) IR
IR CFO IR
(vii)
KPMG LLP
(b)
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RULES ON DOCUMENTS MANAGEMENT

@iv)

Q)

(vi)

(vii)
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(viii)

(b)
RULES ON RISK MANAGEMENT
CFO
CSO Chief Sustainability Officer
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29
)
2023 31
« )
1983
1987
1993
2012 MBA
Neo Puay Keong | 1965 10 19 8,065,196
CEO ( ) )
1988 Nagase Singapore Pte Ltd
199 EIf Atochem SEA Pte Ltd
( : Total Petrochemicals (S.E.A.) Pte Ltd)
2002
CEO ( )
« )
1988
2022 MBA
« )
Nagase Singapore Pte Ltd
1989 g gap
Regina Tay Wee 2006 5,633,077
) 1965 12 26
Lian 2007
2012
2017
2019
2023
(CS0)
« )
1980
« )
Neptune Orient Lines Ltd
1980
Thorn EMI Rentals Pte Ltd
1984
Lee Sok Hui | 1958 14 ) —
EMI Group Singapore Pte Ltd
1990
Asiavision Pte Ltd
2008
Sa Cosmetic Co (S) Pte Ltd
2010
Sinquest Pte Ltd
2013
2019
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« )
1981
1985 MBA
« D
1981 Hewlett Packard
1985 Robot Leasing & Consultancy Pte Ltd
1986 Arthur Young Consultants
i 1989 Archive Singapore Limited
Yong Thian Sze | 1958 13 Singtel and Singtel International -
1991
ING-Baring Fund
1995
Crest Capital Partners Limited
2006
2010 Aju IB Investment
GU Equity Partners LLP
2017
2019
« )
1996
« )
1996
2003
ITOCHU Plastics Pte.Ltd.
2008
1972 21 —
2014
2015
ITOCHU Plastics Pte.Ltd.
2017
2019
2019
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1981

Hons.
2014 MBA
BP-Castrol china Lubricants
2000
BP-Sinopec Zhejiang Petroleum Compan
2002 p J1ang pany
2007 The Lubrizol Corporation
Lubrizol Advanced Materials
2008
The Lubrizol Corporation
2015
Lubrizol-Sekisui CPVC
Wong Min Vistage
éL g 1958 2018 —
ee (2023 )
Hafnium Hafaway
2020
2022
Asian Lubricants Industry Association
2021
2021
Addvalue Technologies Ltd
(2022 11 )
PACE
202 (Professional and Adult Continuing
Education)
1997
2013 K
cum laude
2006
Cleary Gottlieb Steen & Hamilton LLP
1973 25 —
2013 DC
2014
2018
2021
2022

(

)

Regina Tay Wee Lian
Regina Tay Wee Lian

2023

A W N -

31

Yong Thian Sze

Lee Sok Hui

Wong Ming Ghee

CEO Neo Puay Keong

D3cube Venture Pte Ltd
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(a) : KPMG LLP
(b) Yap Wee Kee
©
KPMG LLP
(d)
(ACRA)
@
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
183,897 55,193 203,824 44,322
42,368 - 45,211 -
226,265 55,193 249,035 44,322
)
(b) KPMG (@ )
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
31,606 - 49,361 -
31,606 - 49,361 -
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120 120 -
®
(a
(b
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20 2022
IFRS
193
134
133.53
2022 31
122.39
21 2023 31
21 2023 31

KPMG LLP

31

32

38

2023
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FRS
59
KPMG LLP
40 321
12
31
20 2022
27

oOoOooodn

31

131

35
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21 2023 31

31

2023 2022 2023 2022

US$( ) US$( ) US$( ) US$( )
17,712,903 18,798,120 3,494,286 4,085,156
(2,365,204) (2,510,113)  (466,592)  (545,491)
618,498 154,661 130,790 -
(82,588) (20,652) (17,464) (-

- - 16,564,106 13,133,394
) (- (2,211,805) (1,753,702)

- - 24,223 24,223
(- ) (3,234) (3,234)

1,495,434 973,274 1,241,074 1,047,209
(199,685)  (129,961)  (165,721)  (139,834)
4,747,180 5,230,441 - -
(633,891)  (698,421) (o) (D
12 602,836 - - -
(80,497) (- (- (-
10 343,873 56,781 _ z
(45,917) (7,582) (o) (o
25,520,724 25,213,277 21,454,479 18,289,982
(3,407,782) (3,366,729) (2,864,817) (2,442,261)
11 59,386,174 65,157,932 31,079,925 40,356,134
(7,929,836) (8,700,539) (4,150,102) (5,388,755)
12 61,790,592 62,562,485 82,515,686 79,209,199
(8,250,898) (8,353,969) (11,018,320) (10,576,804)
13 32,970,441 26,387,134 15,452,581 15,712,078

(4,402,543)

(3,523,474) (2,063,383) (2,098,034)

154,147,207 154,107,551 129,048,192 135,277,411
(20,583,277) (20,577,981) (17,231,805) (18,063,593)

179,667,931 179,320,828 150,502,671 153,567,393
(23,991,059) (23,944,710) (20,096,622) (20,505,854)

14 26,073,548 26,073,548 26,073,548 26,073,548
(3,481,601) (3,481,601) (3,481,601) (3,481,601)
511,406 48,326 - -

( 68,288) ( 6,453) (- (-
45,173,615 33,792,556 42,512,470 31,183,612
(6,032,033) (4,512,320) (5,676,690) (4,163,948)
70,735,757 59,817,778 68,586,018 57,257,160
(9,445,346) (7,987,468) (9,158,291) (7,645,549)
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16

15

10

16

15
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102,830 89,888 - -
(13,731) (12,003) ) (-
11,953,762 14,930,561 3,349,547 5,454,492
(1,596,186) (1,993,678)  (447,265)  (728,338)
506,667 712,032 139,571 139,571
(67,655) (95,078) (18,637) (18,637)

oOoOooodn

12,563,259 15,732,481 3,489,118 5,594,063
(1,677,572) (2,100,758)  (465,902)  (746,975)

38,406,076 42,706,132 29,149,795 38,634,659
(5,128,363) (5,702,550) (3,892,372) (5,158,886)
54,468,063 58,360,913 46,555,664 49,839,983
(7,273,120) (7,792,933) (6,216,578) (6,655,133)
3,494,776 2,703,524 2,722,076 2,241,528
(466,657)  (361,002)  (363,479)  (299,311)

96,368,915 103,770,569 78,427,535 90,716,170
(12,868,141) (13,856,484) (10,472,429) (12,113,330)

108,932,174 119,503,050 81,916,653 96,310,233
(14,545,713) (15,957,242) (10,938,331) (12,860,305)

179,667,931 179,320,828 150,502,671 153,567,393
(23,991,059) (23,944,710) (20,096,622) (20,505,854)
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2023 2022
Us$ ( ) Us$

17 327,700,757 318,451,834
(43,757,882)  (42,522,873)
284,280,875 284,367,184
(  37,960,025) (  37,971,550)
43,419,882 34,084,650
(5,797,857)  (4,551,323)
18 1,307,573 1,077,492
(174,600) (143,878)
6,130,764 4,259,928
( 818,641) ( 568,828)
9,885,757 7,615,169
(  1,320,045) ( 1,016,854)
6,784,473 3,051,809
( 905,931) (  407,508)
19 3,232,096 1,348,455
( 431,582) (  180,059)
313,132 192,483
(41,813) (25,702)
20 19,007,497 19,079, 264
(2,538,071)  (2,547,654)
21 2,572,555 2,426,852
( 343,513) ( 324,058)
16,434,942 16,652,412
(2,194,558)  (2,223,597)
478,243 23,145
(  63,860) (3,091)
15,163 1,337
(2,025) ( 179)
463,080 21,808
( 61,835) (2,912)
15,971,862 16,674,220
(2,132,723)  (2,226,509)
22 0.7805 0.8001
(104.22) (106.84)
22 0.7805 0.8001
(104.22) (106.84)
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2023 31
US$C ) UssC ) UssC )  UssC )
2021 18,510,425 70,134 21,470,421 39,910,712
(2,471,697) (  9,365)  (2,866,945) (5,329,277)
- ~ 16,652,412 16,652,412
) ()  (2,223,597) (2,223,597)
- 21,808 - 21,808
) (2,912) =) (2,912)
~ 21,808 - 21,808
) (2,912) =) (2,912)
—~ 21,808 16,652,412 16,674,220
()  (2,912) (2,223,597) (2,226,509)
14 8,773,190 - - 8,773,190
(1,171,484) &) () (1,171,484%)
14 1,210,067 - ~ 1,210,067
(  161,580) ) ) ( 161,580)
14 - - 4,330,277 4,330,277
) (-) ( 578,222) ( 578,222)
7,563,123 - 4,330,277 3,232,846
(1,009,904) (-) ( 578,222)  (431,682)
2022 31 26,073,548 48,326 33,792,556 59,817,778
(3,481,601) (  6,453) (4,512,320) (7,987,468)

67/345

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

Uss( ) Us$C )  UssC ) uss( )

2022 26,073,548 48,326 33,792,556 59,817,778
(3,481,601) ( 6,453)  (4,512,320) (7,987,468)

- - 16,434,942 16,434,942

S () (2,194,558) (2,194,558)

- 463,080 - 463,080

(-) ( 61,835) (-) ( 61,835)

- 463,080 - 463,080

(=) ( 61,835 ) ( 61,835)

— 463,080 16,434,942 15,971,862

(-) ( 61,835) (2,194,558) (2,132,723)

14 - - 5,053,883 5,053,883

&) (-) ( 674,845) ( 674,845)

- - 5,053,883 5,053,883

&) (-) ( 674,845) ( 674,845)

2023 31 26,073,548 511,406 45,173,615 70,735,757
(3,481,601) ( 68,288) (6,032,033) (9,445,346)
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31

20

20

20

20

18

19

20
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2023 2022
USS$( ) US$( )

19,007,497 19,079, 264
(2,538,071) (2,547,654)
2,741,768 255,720
(366,108) (34,146)
483,261 483,261
(64,530) (64,530)
1,192,583 1,223,887
(159,246) (163,426)
258,077 189,682
(34,461) (25,328)
541,478 -
( 72,304) &)
267,147 41,760
( 35,672) (5,576)
22,988 544,543
(  3,070) (72,713)
48,492 28,173
(  6,475) ( 3,762)
3,232,096 1,348,455
(431,582) (180,059)
3,950 573
(527) an
313,132 192,483
(  41,813) (  25,702)
114,365 353,153
(  15,271) (47,157)
25,611,630 23,299,642
(3.,419,921) (3,111,201)
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4,596,482 31,484,637
(613,768) (  4,204,144)
3,517,278 3,595,305
(469,662)  ( 480,081)
9,184,520 908,710
( 1,226,409)  ( 121,340)
24,540,870 12,689,010
(3,276,942) (  1,694,364)
2,125,684 1,509,371
( 283,843)  ( 201,546)
22,415,186 14,198,381

(2,993,100) ( 1,895,910)

48,492 28,173
(6,475) (3,762)

1,403,514 7,030,761

( 187,411)  ( 938,818)
1,199,480 -

(160,167) )

193,865 -

( 25,887) &)

24 337,065 -
( 45,008) )

686,472 7,002,588

( 91,665)  (  935,056)
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- 8,773,190
) (1,171,484)
- 1,210,067
) (  161,580)
690,500 150,722
( 92,202) (  20,126)
15 197,254,799 199,597,785
(26,339,433) (26,652,292)
15 204,132,765 177,384,824
(  27,257,848) ( 23,686,196)
15 200,378 212,725
(  26,756) (  28,405)
15 2,683,290 1,202,540
(  358,300) (  160,575)
14 5,053,883 4,330,277
(  674,845) (  578,222)
15,506,017 23,879,820
(  2,070,518) (3,188,672)
6,222,697 2,678,851
(830,917) (357,707)
23,212,346 20,511,234
(3,099,545) (2,738,865)
329,890 22,261
( 44,050) (2,973)
13 29,105,153 23,212,346
(3,886,411) (3,099,545)
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2023 25

Omni-Plus System Limited
Block 994 Bendemeer Road #01-03 B Central Singapore 339943

2023 31 21
2.1
FRS
2.5
2.2
2.3
Us$
2.4

FRS

72/345



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

FRS

26
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2.5

2022

FRS 37
FRS 16
FRS 103
FRS 2018-2020

2.5

3.1

Q)
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NCI

FRS

(i)

NCI

'dD)

20

751345



™
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FVTPL
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(vi)
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Giii)

25

10

13

10

10
20

10
10
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3.7

10
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IT

ECL

12 ECL 12 ECL
ECL
ECL

ECL
ECL

ECL
12 ECL

ECL

ECL
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12 ECL

90

ECL

ECL

ECL

ECL

90

ECL
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3.9

3.10

3.11
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3.12

3.13

3.14

FRS 37
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3.15

3.16

2021
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FRS FRS

FRS 117 FRS 117
FRS FRS
(FRS 12 )
FRS
FRS
FRS 116
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Us$
uss Uss$ uss Us$ uss$ Uss$ Us$ uss Us$ Us$

2021
3,696,927 3,760,492 697,772 896,304 338,147 3,288,797 3,655,475 184,665 104,708 989,193 17,612,480
6,437,217 ~ 94,216 2,702 6,090 — 407,278 32,426 3,674 47,158 7,030,761
- - (4,031) - - - (12,306) — (330) —  (16,667)
(84,733) (40,317)  (469) (9,634) (1,307) - (15,129)  (119) (384) 3 (152,089)

2022

31 10,049,411 3,720,175 787,488 889,372 342,930 3,288,797 4,035,318 216,972 107,668 1,036,354 24,474,485

2022

10,049,411 3,720,175 787,488 889,372 342,930 3,288,797 4,035,318 216,972 107,668 1,036,354 24,474,485
449,813 - 61,661 16,359 20,966 - 733,853 48,433 6,185 66,244 1,403,514
- — (66,540) - - —  (40,064) - (5,844) - (112,448)
- - (1,128) - - - (1,138,785) - - - (1,139,913)
8,876 2,959 21,403

- - 9,568 - - - - -
(454,735) (173,410) (4,830) (41,344) (5,252) - (67,292) (11,274) (3,079) (1,252) (762,468)
2023 113,806 1,104,305 23,884,573

31 10,044,489 3,546,765 786,219 864,387 358,644 3,288,797 3,523,030 254,131
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Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$ uss$ Uss$ uss$ Us$ Uss$ Us$ Us$

2021
— 285,051 574,509 392,078 298,664 522,764 1,811,242 100,690 82,820 421,919 4,489,737
- 97,190 71,533 89,398 28,028 155,709 565,730 34,536 12,344 169,419 1,223,887
- - (3,458) - - - (12,306) - (330) - (16,094)
- (3,715) (42) (4,832) (1,214) - (11,241) 270 (313)  (78) (21,165)
2022
31 - 378,526 642,542 476,644 325,478 678,473 2,353,425 135,496 94,521 591,260 5,676,365
2022
- 378,526 642,542 476,644 325,478 678,473 2,353,425 135,496 94,521 591,260 5,676,365
- 91,241 87,933 84,963 17,355 161,387 542,219 30,555 12,812 164,118 1,192,583
- — (66,540) - - - (36,113) - (5,845) ~ (108,498)
- (1,128) - - — (480,783) - - ~ (481,911)
— (16,785) (2,243) (21,517) (4,964) — (49,813) (7,838) (2,717)  (992) (106,869)
2023
31 - 452,982 660,564 540,090 337,869 839,860 2,328,935 158,213 98,771 754,386 6,171,670
2021
3,696,927 3,475,441 123,263 504,226 39,483 2,766,033 1,844,233 83,975 21,888 567,274 13,122,743
2022

31 10,049,411 3,341,649 144,946 412,728 17,452 2,610,324 1,681,893 81,476 13,147 445,094 18,798,120
2023
31 10,044,489 3,093,783 125,655 324,297 20,775 2,448,937 1,194,095 95,918 15,035 349,919 17,712,903
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Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$ us$ Us$ us$ Uss$
2021 645,467 211,893 3,283,015 2,330,747 22,434 52,982 409,253 6,955,791
40,896 1,438 - 264,016 - 1,518 8,420 316,288
2022 31 686,363 213,331 3,283,015 2,594,763 22,434 54,500 417,673 7,272,079
2022 686,363 213,331 3,283,015 2,594,763 22,434 54,500 417,673 7,272,079
24,974 2,553 - 705,976 - 1,523 - 735,026
(66,003) - - - - - - (66,003)
- - - (1,138,785) - - - (1,138,785)
2023 31 645,334 215,884 3,283,015 2,161,954 22,434 56,023 417,673 6,802,317
2021 553,114 192,253 516,981 852,794 22,434 44,500 316,928 2,499,004
48,332 14,958 155,709 416,413 - 5,000 47,417 687,919
2022 31 601,446 207,211 672,690 1,269,207 22,434 49,590 364,345 3,186,923
2022 601,446 207,211 672,690 1,269,207 22,434 49,590 364,345 3,186,923
52,207 5,934 161,387 416,068 - 3,969 28,329 667,894
(66,003) - - - - - - (66,003)
- - - (480,783) - - - (480,783)
2023 31 587,650 213,145 834,077 1,204,492 22,434 53,559 392,674 3,308,031
2021 92,353 19,640 2,766,034 1,477,953 - 8,482 92,325 4,456,787
2022 31 84,917 6,120 2,610,325 1,325,556 - 4,910 53,328 4,085,156
2023 31 57,684 2,739 2,448,938 957,462 - 2,464 24,999 3,494,286
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13,379,102 2022 :14,127,869
15
5

Us$ US$ US$ US$
2021 159,168 54,308 417,317 630,793
133,510 - - 133,510
(117,463) —  (303,950)  (421,413)
(256) (582) - (838)
2022 31 174,959 53,726 113,367 342,052
348,094 30,076 335,055 713,225
(10,398) - - (10,398)
(6,364) (2,506) - (8,870)
2023 31 506,291 81,296 448,422 1,036,009
2021 116,147 34,721 222,755 373,623
74,013 15,878 99,791 189,682
(118,529) (249,214)  (367,743)
(486) (483) (7,202) (8,171)
2022 31 71,145 50,116 66,130 187,391
113,054 20,600 124,423 258,077
(10,398) - - (10,398)
(3,217) (2,309)  (12,033)  (17,559)
2023 31 170,584 68,407 178,520 417,511
2021 43,021 19,587 194,562 257,170
2022 31 103,814 3,610 47,237 154,661
2023 31 335,707 12,889 269,902 618,498
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2022

2023

2022

2023

2022
2023

2022
100
2022

2023

US$ Uss$ Us$
141,480 30,076 171,556
31 141,480 30,076 171,556
23,580 17,186 40,766
31 23,580 17,186 40,766
31 - - -
31 117,900 12,890 130,790
2023 2022
Us$ Uss$
13,133,394 13,133,394
3,610,722 -
(180,010) -
16,564,106 13,133,394

Kyoei Denki(S) Pte. Ltd.

3,610,722

15 Kyoei Denki(S) Pte. Ltd.

EDINETOOOO
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PT Kyoei Denki Trading Indonesia

KD Advanced Materials,Inc

13
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KD Advanced Materials,Inc
Kyoei Denki(S) Pte. Ltd.

Alpha Chemie Pte Ltd

180,010



Nihon Pigment Sdn. Bhd.

OPS Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
Omni-Plus System Shanghai Limited
PT. Omni Plus System

Cepco Trading Sdn. Bhd.

Omni Plus System Philippines Inc.

DP Chemicals Pte. Ltd.

I-FTZ Trade Philippines, Inc.
Alpha Chemie Pte. Ltd.
PT. Sentosa Kimia
Tags Polymer Sdn. Bhd.

OMNI-PLUS SYSTEM Japan
Omni Plus System (Thailand) Co.,
Ltd
Kyoei Denki (S) Pte. Ltd.
DP Chemicals Vietnam Co., Ltd.

PT Kyoei Denki Trading Indonesia
KD Advanced Materials, Inc
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2023 2022
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
/ 100 100
100 100
100 -
100 100
100 -
100 -
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7
2023 2022
Us$ Uss$
24,223 24,223
2023 2022
Omni-Plus System Plastics 39
Co., Ltd
Omni-Plus System Plastics Co., Ltd 39 2022 Thanasan
Maiseaumso Yanee Yuthakaichaisri
8
2023 2022 2023 2022
Us$ Uss$ Us$ Us$
1,362,694 1,168,830 1,241,074 1,047,209
132,740 (195,556) - -
1,495,434 973,274 1,241,074 1,047,209
2023 2022
Small World Accelerator Pte. Ltd. 48 48
(SWA)
R&P Technologies Pte. Ltd. (RPT) 40 40
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FRS
ocl
RPT SWA
US$ US$ US$
2023
9,010,394 -
796,249 (11,597)
539,528 843,388
4,175,099 417,013
(2,191,881)  (153,490)
2,522,746 1,106,911
684,296 288,978 973,274
- 318,500 (5,368) 313,132
- 0oClI- - 15,163 15,163
- 318,500 9,795 328,295
- 193,865 193,865
1,002,796 492,638 1,495,434
2022
8,337,706 -
498,437 (14,360)
712,902 702,179
3,986,662 54,883
(2,988,827)  (155,022)
1,710,737 602,040
484,921 297,207 782,128
- 199,375 (6,892) 192,483
- 0oClI- - (1,337) (1,337)
- 199,375 (8,229) 191,146

684,296 288,978 973,274
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Us$ uss$ US$
2021 2,023,790 4,832,609 6,856,399
2022 31 2,023,790 4,832,609 6,856,399
2022 2,023,790 4,832,609 6,856,399
2023 31 2,023,790 4,832,609 6,856,399
2021 - 1,142,697 1,142,697
- 483,261 483,261
2022 31 - 1,625,958 1,625,958
2022 - 1,625,958 1,625,958
- 483,261 483,261
2023 31 - 2,109,219 2,109,219
2021 2,023,790 3,689,912 5,713,702
2022 31 2,023,790 3,206,651 5,230,441
2023 31 2,023,790 2,723,390 4,747,180
cGU
CGU
2023 2022
Us$ US$
DP Chemicals Group 694,434 694,434
Cepco Trading Sdn.Bhd. 992,686 992,686
PT Sentosa Kimia 336,670 336,670
2,023,790 2,023,790

CGU CGU
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31

EBITDA
CGU
EBITDA
2022

31

GDP
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2023 2022
12.0 - 15.5 11.0 - 20.5
3.0-16.0 4.0-6.0
2.5 2.5
10
CGU
2023
2023 2022

6.0 - 9.0 3.0 - 6.0
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2023 2022 2023 2022
US$ Us$ Us$ US$
- (2,099) - -
(106,289)  (125,039) - -
- ~ 264,151 340,693
(33,163)  (11,426) - -
(21,353)  (19,857) - -
(135,167) - - -
- ~ 367,096 442,596
(172,481) - - 30,383
(468,453)  (158,421) 631,247 813,672
124,580 101,640 (124,580)  (101,640)
(343,873)  (56,781) 506,667 712,032
2023 2022
Us$ US$
139,571 139,571
139,571 139,571

101/345
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2021 2022

21 31

Us$ Us$ Us$ USs$
- (2,101) 2 (2,099)
(105,394) (16,733) (2,912)  (125,039)
273,041 69,181 (1,529) 340,693
518,098 (75,502) - 442,596
(12,019) 612 (19) (11,426)
(23,776) 8,152 (4,232) (19,856)
(28,206) 28,206 - -
42,749 (5,053) (7,314) 30,382
664,493 6,762 (16,004) 655,251

2022 2023

21 31

USs$ USs$ Us$ US$
(2,099) 2,001 98 -
(125,039) 15,867 2,883 (106,289)
340,693 (69,560) (6,982) 264,151
442,596 (75,502) - 367,094
(11,426) (21,964) 227 (33,163)
(19,856) (2,286) 793 (21,349)
- (135,168) ~  (135,168)
30,382 (183,039) (19,825)  (172,482)
655,251 (469,651) (22,806) 162,794
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2023 2022 2023 2022
Us$ US$ Uss$ US$
4,018,650 3,888,504 - -
7,435 307,179 - -
59,513,525 62,387,722 33,723,850 41,345,424
63,539,610 66,583,405 33,723,850 41,345,424
(1,425,473) (1,171,803)  (989,290) (666,411)
20 | (2,764,801)  (428,695) (1,654,635) (322,879)
20 23,033 172,975 - -
13,805 2,050 - -
(4,153,436) (1,425,473) (2,643,925) (989,290)
59,386,174 65,157,932 31,079,925 40,356,134
2023 31 280,769,104 2022 281,696,229
2,764,801 2022 428,695

23,033 2022 172,975

103/345
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2023 2022 2023 2022
Us$ US$ US$ US$
47,400,862 57,314,116 26,245,465 38,449,394
8,406,355 379,958 50,922,725 37,312,274
55,807,217 57,694,074 77,168,190 75,761,668

~  (386,382) - -
55,807,217 57,307,692 77,168,190 75,761,668
2,380,739 2,060,447 15,110 162,755
- - 1,151,654 1,808,825

950,156 505,054 1,557,633 827,957
1,195,990 ~ 1,195,990 -
145,668 108,104 23,591 2,575
60,479,770 59,981,297 81,112,168 78,563,780
2,057 2,057 2,057 2,057
462,621 448,001 116,722 148,439
1,448,980 2,131,130 1,284,739 494,923
62,393,428 62,562,485 82,515,686 79,209,199
602,836 - - -
61,790,592 62,562,485 82,515,686 79,209,199

62,393,428

62,562,485 82,515,686 79,209,199

104/345
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2023 2022 2023 2022
Uss$ USs$ USs$ US$
4,248 4,549 - -
28,679,944 22,802,189 12,057,848 12,898,494
4,286,249 3,580,396 3,394,733 2,813,584
32,970,441 26,387,134 15,452,581 15,712,078

(3,865,288) (3,174,788) (3,221,908) (2,485,998)

29,105,153 23,212,346 12,230,673 13,226,080

0.25 5.25 2022  0.03 1.80
15
12 2022 12

2023 2023 2022 2022

Us$ Us$
21,057,844 27,283,615 21,057,844 27,283,615
~  (1,210,067) ~  (1,210,067)
21,057,844 26,073,548 21,057,844 26,073,548
21,057,844 26,073,548 5,011,461 18,510,425
- ~ 15,034,383 -
- ~ 1,012,000 8,773,190
21,057,844 26,073,548 21,057,844 27,283,615
- - ~ (1,210,067)
31 21,057,844 26,073,548 21,057,844 26,073,548

105/345
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12

2021
960

7,628,861

2021

1,144,329

31

2022

2022

0.0556

0.15
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880,000
960 8.67
132,000
1,210,067
2023 2022
US$ US$
0.09000
1,895,206 1,171,600
0.15
3,158,677 3,158,677
5,053,883 4,330,277

106/345
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844,800,000

126,720,000
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SGD
uSsD
MYR
MYR
PHP
VND
CNY
SGD

usD

MYR

EUR

CNY

EDINETOOOO
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2023 2022 2023 2022
US$ Us$ US$ Us$
11,578,600 14,895,598 3,278,601 5,454,492
375,162 34,963 70,946 -
11,953,762 14,930,561 3,349,547 5,454,492
3,015,336 2,991,377 2,281,649 2,388,950
296,560 115,753 59,960 -
51,156,167 55,253,783 44,214,055 47,451,033
54,468,063 58,360,913 46,555,664 49,839,983
66,421,825 73,291,474 49,905,211 55,294,475
2023 2022
Us$ us$ Us$ Us$
2.00 to 5.75 2023 - 2026 5,451,841 5,451,841 7,665,576 7,665,577
3.22 2025 527,799 527,799 770,028 770,028
2.99 to 3.40 2027 - 2038 8,614,296 8,614,296 9,451,370 9,451,370
3.55t0 5.02 2020 — 2025 83,273 73,980 56,908 55,668
7.01 2025 445,013 377,714 104,043 63,665
6 2024 79,660 84,620 13,374 12,360
1.32 2023 5,274 4,503 19,384 19,022
5.25 2023 - 2025 131,597 130,906 - -
4.42 to 6.54 2023 49,937,360 49,937,360 54,539,415 54,539,415
4.3 to 6.51 2023 49,192 49,192 101,813 101,813
4.15 to 4.45 2023 791,336 791,336 193,271 193,271
5.16 2023 378,277 378,278 419,282 419,282
66,494,918 66,421,825 73,334,464 73,291,471

13,379,102

107/345
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114,127,869
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13 0.25 5.25 2022  0.07
1.75
2023 2022

Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$
SGD 2.00 to 5.75 2023 - 2026 5,032,453 5,032,453 7,073,413 7,073,413
USD 3.22 2025 527,799 527,799 770,028 770,028
usD 1.10 to 2.16 2023 44,214,053 44,214,053 47,451,034 47,451,034
SGD 5.25 2023-2025 130,906 130,906 - -
49,905,211 49,905,211 55,294,475 55,294,475

Us$ uss$ us$ Us$

2021 50,650,188 77,735 276,407 51,004,330
199,597,785 - ~ 199,597,785
(177,384,824) - ~  (177,384,824)
- - (212,725) (212,725)
- (1,202,540) ~  (1,202,540)

22,212,961  (1,202,540) (212,725) 20,797,696

277,609 - (9,235) 268,374
- 1,348,455 - 1,348,455
- - 133,510 133,510
_ - (37,241) (37,241)
- 1,348,455 96,269 1,444,724

2022 31 73,140,758 223,650 150,716 73,515,124
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Us$ Uss$ Us$ Us$
2022 73,140,758 223,650 150,716 73,515,124
197,254,799 - - 197,254,799
(204,132, 765) - - (204,132,765)
- - (200,378) (200, 378)
- (2,683,290) - (2,683,290)
(6,877,966)  (2,683,290) (200,378)  (9,761,634)
(512,689) - 8,159 (504,530)
- 3,232,096 - 3,232,096
- - 713,225 713,225
- 3,232,096 713,225 3,945,321
2023 31 65,750,103 772,456 671,722 67,194,281
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2023 2022 2023 2022
Us$ Us$ Us$ US$
- 22,588,616 32,227,055 14,293,263 24,221,229
- 5,483,023 3,749,019 5,834,195 8,426,306
28,071,639 35,976,074 20,127,458 32,647,535
483,734 512,702 289,288 290,504
772,456 223,650 456,627 129,007
8,998,070 5,900,587 8,093,415 5,384,606
183,007 183,007 183,007 183,007
38,508,906 42,796,020 29,149,795 38,634,659
102,830 89,888 - -
38,406,076 42,706,132 29,149,795 38,634,659
38,508,906 42,796,020 29,149,795 38,634,659
17
30 90
2023 2022
US$ US$

110/345

282,705,642 300,998,894

44,995,115

17,452,940

327,700,757 318,451,834
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18

19

111/345

2023 2022
Us$ Us$
- 102,095
48,492 28,173
182,294 264,048
172,564 441,749
65,656 56,427
541,478 -
297,089 185,000
1,307,573 1,077,492
2023 2022
Us$ Us$
15,270 10,302
529,919 457,146
2,686,907 881,007
3,232,096 1,348,455
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20

2023 2022
Us$ Us$

11 2,764,801 428,695

11 (23,033)  (172,975)

43,696 28,288

3,950 573

(22,988) 544,543

483,261 483,261

1,192,583 1,223,887

258,077 189,682

238,255 232,294

6,468,666 5,380,448

565,545 471,574

85,604 65,861

26 (267,147) 41,760

1,189,171 -

358,308 357,722

112/345
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17

17

2023
US$

3,080,756
(38,550)
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2022
Us$

2,112,171
307,919

3,042,206

(286,612)
(183,039)

2,420,090

11,816
(5,054)

(469, 651)

6,762

2,572,555

2,426,852

19,007,497
(313,132)

19,079,264
(192,483)

18,694,365

18,886,781

(2022 : 3,124,810

(157,397)
(64,043)
528,101
(39,099)

(1,142,232)
544,004

(183,039)

(38,550)

3,210,753

106,079
(325,001)
189,569
(25,712)
(1,031,701)
(5,054)
307,919

2,572,555

2,426,852

2023
USs

2,167,400

2022
USs
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2023 2022
Us$ US$
16,434,942 16,652,412
2021 21,057,844 5,011,461
- 15,034,383
- 766,444

21,057,844 20,812,288

- 0.7805 0.8001

- 0.7805 0.8001
*2021 31 2021 12
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2023 2022
us$ Us$
15,270 10,302
358,308 357,722
2023 2022
Us$ US$
(200,378)  (212,725)

oOoOooodn
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2022 2022 28
Trading Indonesia 100
2022 2022
31
2022
999,591
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Kyoei Denki S Pte. Ltd. PT Kyoei Denki

2023
14,749,208 876,805

19,234,657

2022

US$

4,431,626
4,431,626

84,226

Us$

21,404
2,315,028
3,954,278
4,094,561

16,518
(5,970,163)
4,431,626

116/345
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CPF

117/345

EDINETOOOO

OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

US$
4,431,626
(4,094,561)
337,065
2023 2022
Us$ Us$
895,605 796,244
70,389 56,282

965,994 852,526
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2023 2022

Us$ US$
9,543,014 364,500
7,330,790 8,304,450
- 1,409

(24,358,472) (14,917,192)
(6,758,624) (6,155,948)

- (1,542)
(293,919)  (278,635)
(24,413) -
(43,641) (44,542)
39,077 40,988
1,195,725 -
47,734 24,974




A2

58

2022

61
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ECL

6,928,127

ECL

2022
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2023 2022 2023
Us$ Us$ Uss$

49,368,272 53,496,622
6,438,945 4,197,452 3,886,488

2022
Us$

73,281,702 72,480,644
3,281,024

55,807,217 57,694,074 77,168,190 75,761,668

8,259,821

ECL

2023
US$

(267,147)

2023
2022
US$
41,760

120/345
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2023 31
ECL

2023
1-30
31 - 60
61 — 90
90

2022
1-30
31 - 60
61 — 90
90

US$

47,480,548
6,160,051
997,587
267,574
901,457

EDINETOOOO
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US$

55,807,217

51,071,730
5,361,001
306,643
375,548
579,062

96,933

289,449

57,694,074

386,382

121/345
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Uss$ Us$
2023
46,687,267 -
- 30 8,333,775 -
31 - 60 5,285,567 -
61 — 90 5,810,326 -
90 11,051,255 -
77,168,190 -
2022
52,316,115 -
- 30 4,966,169 -
31 - 60 2,015,182 -
61 — 90 6,545,724 -
90 9,918,478 -
75,761,668 -
Us$ Us$
2021 359,959 -
41,760 -
(15,337) -
2022 31 386,382 -
2022 386,382 -
(101,176) -
(267,146) -
(18,060) -
2023 31 - -

100

2023 31

122/345
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2,636,782
12

12

ECL

60

12

12

123/345
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ECL
3,905,277 2022
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Us$ us$ us$ us$ Us$

2023 31
16 38,508,906 38,508,906 38,508,906 - -
15 14,593,936 16,674,758 3,357,731 7,444,675 5,872,352
15 51,156,167 52,251,948 52,251,948 - -
15 671,722 746,720 329,643 417,077 -
104,930,731 108,182,332 94,448,228 7,861,752 5,872,352

2022 31
16 42,796,020 42,796,020 42,796,020 - -
15 17,886,975 20,240,456 3,309,595 9,931,631 6,999,230
15 55,253,783 55,643,588 55,643,588 - -
15 150,716 196,624 159,040 37,584 -
116,087,494 118,876,688 101,908,243 9,969,215 6,999,230

2023 31

16 29,149,795 29,149,795 29,149,795 - -
15 5,560,250 5,767,879 2,415,080 3,352,799 -
15 44,214,055 45,119,116 45,119,116 - -
130,906 131,597 60,405 71,192 -
79,055,006 80,168,387 76,744,396 3,423,991 -

2022 31
16 38,634,659 38,634,659 38,634,659 - -
15 7,843,442 8,176,931 2,560,097 5,616,834 -
15 47,451,033 47,769,589 47,769,589 - -
93,929,134 94,581,179 88,964,345 5,616,834 -
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MYR uSsD SGD
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2023
MYR usD SGD
US$ US$ US$
441,304 556,137 552,073
519,233 2,570,287 1,580,870

(543,625) (2,447,381) (2,124,549)
— (1,238,068) (5,582,745)

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
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2022
MYR usD SGD
US$ Us$ Us$
381,761 1,355,880 402,917

264,664 1,573,620 1,557,927
(266,830) (3,424,504) (2,076,779)
— (1,964,630) (7,665,576)

379,595 (2,459,634) (7,781,511)

416,912 (559,025) (5,574,351)
2023
MYR SGD
Uss$ uss
431,327 38,435
356,864 542,282
(479,046) (1,889,173)
~  (5,163,356)

309,145 (6,471,812)

126/345

2022

MYR SGD

Uss us$
388,525 57,769

115,445 1,262,181
(257,025) (2,027,884)
— (7,073,412)

246,945 (7,781,346)




MYR (
UsD (
SGD (

MYR (
USD (
SGD (
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MYR USD SGD

2023 2022 2023 2022
Us$ US$ US$ US$
12,507 11,388 9,274 7,408
(16,771) (73,789) - -

(167,231)  (233,445)  (194,154)  (233,440)
(12,507) (11,388) (9,274) (7.,408)
16,771 73,789 - -
167,231 233,445 194,154 233,440
2023 2022 2023 2022
US$ Us$ Us$ US$

4,286,249 3,580,396 3,394,733 2,813,584

(51,156,167) (55,253,783) (44,214,055) (47,451,033)
(5,079,530) (6,851,335) (4,660,140) (6,259,171)

(51,949,448) (58,524,722) (45,479,462) (50,896,620)

(9,514,406) (11,035,640)

(900,110) (1,584,271)
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2023 31

2022 31

2022 2021
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FVTPL
bp
50bp 50bp 50bp 50bp
Us$ US$ uss USs$
(47,572) 47,572 (4,501) 4,501
(47,572) 47,572 (4,501) 4,501
(55,178) 58,178 (7,921) 7,921
(55,178) 58,178 (7,921) 7,921
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31

12

13

15

16

15
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Us$ Us$ Us$
60,479,770 - 60,479,770
32,970,441 - 32,970,441
93,450,211 - 93,450,211

- 14,593,936 14,593,936
- 38,508,906 38,508,906
- 51,156,167 51,156,167
— 104,259,009 104,259,009

129/345

USs$ us$ USs$ US$

- 11,316,461 - 11,316,461
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31

12

13

15

16

15
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Us$ Us$ US$
59,981,297 - 59,981,297
26,387,134 - 26,387,134
86,368,431 - 86,368,431

- 17,886,975 17,886,975
- 42,796,020 42,796,020
— 55,253,783 55,253,783
- 115,936,778 115,936,778

130/345

US$ US$ US$ US$

- 16,724,856 - 16,724,856



2023

31

12

13

15

16

15
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US$ Us$ US$ US$ Us$ Us$ Us$
81,112,168 - 81,112,168
15,452,581 - 15,452,581
96,564,749 - 96,564,749
- 5,560,250 5,560,250 - 5,018,590 - 5,018,590

21,149,795 21,149,795

44,214,055 44,214,055

78,924,100 78,924,100
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ooDoogd
Us$ US$ US$ Us$ Us$ Us$
78,563,776 - 78,563,776
15,712,078 - 15,712,078
94,275,854 — 94,275,854
- 7,843,442 7,843,442 - 7,611,833 - 7,611,833

38,634,659 38,634,659

47,451,033 47,451,033

93,929,134 93,929,134
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FRS 115

2021

FRS

FRS 105 FRS

FRS 36

20

FRS 113

2021

FRS

FRS 116
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Statements of financial position
As at 31 Muarch 2023
Group Company
Note 023 022 013 22
Uss Uss Uss Uss

Assels
Progerty, plant and cquipment 4 17712905 18,798,120  3494.286 4,085,156
Right-of-use assets 5 615408 154,661 130,790 -
Inwestment in subsidianes [ - - 165640106 13133394
Inwestmeent in joint operation 7 - - 24,113 24113
Investment in associates B 1,495,434 973274 1.241,074 10472009
Intangible assels and poodwall q 4,747, 1 %ilb 5,230,441 - -
Other receivables 12 602 836 - - -
Dieferred oy assets 1] 343873 56,741 - -
Non-current asscis 25,520,724 25213277 21454479 1B 2R9.9R2
Inventones 1 580174 65057932 310M9I5  40.356,134
Trade and other receivables 12 61,790,592 62 362485  R2A515.686 79204199
Cash and cash cquivalenis 13 32970441  26,3B7,034 15432581 15,712,078
Carrent assels 154,147,207 154,107,551 129‘:_1?4-H.I92 135277411
Total assets I 7667931 179,320,828 150,502,671 153,567,191
Foulty
Share capial 14 MMO73548 26071548 26073548 26073548
Foreign cummency translation

reserve (311.406) (48.326) - -
Retained enmings 43,173.615 33792556 42512470 31183602
Total equity TH.IISTST  S9.RIT7T8  6ESRGO0IR 57257060
Liahilithes
Orther paynbles 16 102,830 B0 ESR - -
Lixans and bormow ings 15 11,953,762 14.930.561 3349547 5454492
Deferred tax lizbilities ] 06,667 712,032 139,571 139,571
Noa-currenl Habilities 12,563.259  15,732.451 JAR0 018 5,504,063
Trude wnd vther payobles 6 3B406076 41706032 29149795 35634659
Loans and bormowings 15 468003 SR3I60913 46,555,004 49839983
Prowviswon for taxalion 3,494 776 23504 2732076 2,241,528
Current Habilities W6 368915 103770568 THA2TSIS 90.TI6ITO
Total labilities IOES32 174 119503050 81916653 96310233
Tetal equity and labilities 179,667,931 179320838 150,502,671 153,567,393

The aceompanying nodes form an imscgml part of these financial statements,

Fs1
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Consolidaied statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Year ended 31 March 2023

Revenue
Cost of =ales
Gross profii

Other income

Sabes and distnbution costs

Adminisirative expenses

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Share of profit of equitv-accomiled investees
{ret of tax)

Profii before tax

Tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Ttemis that are oF may be reclassificd subsegaently
to profit or loss:

Foreign currency translation differences — foreign
opeTitions

Forcign currency iranslation differences — equity-
accounted investoes

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share
Hasic earmings per shire
Dilutesd enmings per share

Note

17

44

22

Group
023 2022
Uss Uss

J2T.700.75T 318451834
(284,280.875) (284,367,184)

SIAI0EED 14,084,650

1,307,573 1,077,492
16,130,764)  (4.259,928)
(9,585,757)  (T.615.169)
(6,784.473)  (3.051,809)
(3,232,006)  (1,348,455)

33032 192,483

19007497 19,079,264
{2.572,555)  (2.426,852)

16,434,542 16,652,412

(478,243) 23,145
15.163 {1.337)
{463, 080) 21,808

15,971,802 16,674,220

[.T805 (1A

0. 7805 (15001

The aceompanying notes form an micgml part of these financiol statemenis,
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Consolidated statement of cash Mows
Year ended 31 March 2023

Cash Mlows from sperating activities
Profit kefone mx

Adpustments for

Allvwance for ohsalete imventaries, net
Amsirrtisation of inangible ssscts

Depreciation of property, plast and equipmes
Depreciation of night-of-use assets

Cain o sales of propenty, plant amd equipmen
(Reversal of) lmpainment loss on trsde reevivables, ns
Invemtary sritten (hack ) o T

Ipterest incomeg

Imterees expenses

Property, plant and equipment welten off

Share ol resulis in sssociabes

Unrealised foreign exchange {loss)' gain
Oiperntimg profit before working capitsl change

Clhanges in:

= Imvenlories

= trade and oller receivabics

- trade and oiber payables

Cash generated from{used in) from operating aciivities
Iscome tax paid

Mot cash generated fromuscd in) operating activicies

Cash Mows from Investing activities

Interest neceived

Purchase of property, plant and cquipment

Procecils from nbe of property, plant and equipment
Increase in investment in an associole
Acquisition of subsadiaries, met cash of aequined

et cash used in investing activities

Cash Mows from leancing activities

Procecd from issuc of share capital

Payment of share issuance expenses

Changes of pledged fived deposits

Procecds from loans and borrowings

Repuyment of loans ond bormowings.

Payment of lease linbililics

Imteresa paid

Dividends pad

Net eash (used Indgenerated from financing activities

Mel incroasc in cash and cash cquivalents
Cashiand cash equivalents at 1 Apnl

Eifect of exchamge mig Mlactustions on cash held
Cusl e cush equivalents at 21 March

Nule

nEZzEEEwacy

k2|

I5
4]
(]
15
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- Pay Syatem Limiied
vl by anhsidlanies
Fraancial sloremensn

Yoaur evoed A1 March 2023

Girnmp
012
LSS LSS

1007 497 19,079,264

2,741,763 255,720
463,261 483,261
1,092 543 1.223 4=7
258,077 149,682
i541,475) -
1267,147) 41,750
{22, 9ER) 544,543
{45,492 {26,173
3232096 1,345,455
1050 373
{313,132} (192,483}
1114,365) 353,153
F5611.630 23,109 542
i, 506,457 (31, 484,637)
3507078 (3,595,305}
{9, 184,520 el 117
E0E0 (12,688,000)
(2. 125,684 (1308571
22415186 (14,198,381
48,492 25,173
{13,514 (7,030,761 )
1,199,450
(193,863) -~
_037,063)

(6B6ATY) (702388}

= £.773,190

(1,210,067}

(640, 300y (150,722}
197,254,790 199,597,755

(20d,132,765)  (177,384,824)

(20,378 [212.725)
{2681,290) (L 202,544}
5,051,853 4330.277)

(1550600 T 23ETORH
6222697 2,678,851
712346 20,511,234

(329,850} 21,261

19,105,153 23,212 34

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financinl statemenis,
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Chmrd-Plus Syatem Lisieed
il iy anbsddlanies
Fiauneial siarementn
Year ended 31 March 2023

Notes to the financial statements
These notes form an integral pant of the financial statemenis.

The financinl statements were authonsed for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 July 2023,

Domicile and activities

Omni-Plus System Limited {“ihe Company®) is & company incorporated in Singapore.  The
address of the Company’s registered offlice is Block 994 Bendemewr Road, #01-03 B Cemral,
Singapore 339943,

The financial statemenis of the Group as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 comprise the
Compony and its subsidiarics (together referred to as the “Group” ond individually as “Group

entitics" ) uned the Group's interest in equity-accounted investees.

The principal activities of the Company are 1o carry on business of tading in resin, chips and
other related necessories for local and overseas customers.

The principal activities of its subsidiary companics are stipulated in noe & 1o the financial
siatemenis.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in sccordonce with Financiol Reporting Standords
in Singapore (*FRS'). The changes to significant accounting policies are described in note 2.5.

Basis of measurement

The financial simements have been prepared on the lstoncal cost basis except as otherwise
deseribed in the notes below,

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statemenis are presented in United States Dollar (*USE%), which is the Company’s
funetional currency.

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of the financial sttements n conformity with FRSs requires management o
make judgements, estimates and assumptions ihat affect the application of accounting policies

and the reported amounts of assets, Habilities, income and expenses, Actual results may differ
froim these estimates,

F&6
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Frauacil stafemenii
Vear ended 31 Morch 2022

Estimates and underlyving assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing busis, Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively,

There are no cnticnl judgements made by management in applying accounting policies that have
a significant effect oa the fnancial stalements

Infprmation about assumplions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following note:

« Now® - impaimment est of intangible assets and goodwill: key assumptions underlying
recoverabile amouis, including the recoverability of developimein costs,

Measurement of Tair values

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilitics.

The management of the Group has overall responsibility for all sigmificant fair value
mensurements, ineluding Level 3 fair values.

The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjusiments. 7
third pasty information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair vilees,
then the management assesses and documents the evidence obtained from the third pamies o
support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of FRS, including the level in
the fair value hicrarchy in which soch valuations should be classificed,

‘When measuring the fair value of an asset or a lability, the Group uses observable market data
as far s possible, Fair values ure culegenised into different levels in a fair value hierirchy based
on the inputs used in the valution technigues os folbows:

& Level 1@ guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabalities.

&  Level 2o inputs other than queted prices included im Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either dircctly (i.e. as prices) or indireetly (ic. derived from prices).

= Level 3; inputs for the asset or labality that are not based on observable market data
{unasbservable inputs).

1f the inputs used o mieasure the foir vabee of on wsset or o linbility fall inte different levels of the
fair vilwe hiemrehy, then the farr vadue measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hicrarchy as the lowest level input that is significant o the entire measurement
{with Level 3 being the lowest),

The Group recogniscs transters between levels of the fair valwe hicrarchy as of the end of the
reporing period during which the change has oceurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring foir values is inchuded in note 26

Fs7
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hemnd- Py Syssem Limited
vl fy sarbsieories
Fraanenal sturements
¥oar erided 21 March 20022

Changes in accouniing policies
New stundards and amendmenis

The Group has applied the following FRSs, amendments o and imterpreiations of FRS for ihe
first time for the annual period beginning on | Apnl 2022

Amendments w FRS 3T: Quevous Contragts = Cost of Fulfifling o Controcy
Amendments s FRS 16: Property, Plant aod Eguiprienl — Proceeds befory ntended Use
Amendments e FRS 103: Refersiee to the Conceptual Framework

Annual improvements to FRSs 2018-2020

The application of these amendments to standards and interpretations does not have a material
effect on the financial statemenis.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set sut below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements, and have been applicd consistently by Group entitics, except as
explamed in note 2.5, which addresses changes m accounting policies,

Basis of consolidation
Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acgquisition method when the acquired

set of activities and asscts meets the definition of a business and control is transfermed 1o the Group.
In determining whether 2 particular set of petivities and assets is 1 bosiness, the Group assesses

whether the set of assets and activities acquired mclhedes, at a minimum, an inpat and substantive

process and whether the acquired set has the ability to produce outputs.

The Group has an opion 10 apply 8 “conceniration test” that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is no o business. The optional concentration est
is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross asscls acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable assct or group of similar idemiifiable asseis.

The Grroup measures goodwill at the scquisition date as:

®  the fair value of the consideration transferred ( generally measured at fair value); plus

#  the recogrised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus

= if the business combination is achicved in stages, the fair value of the pre-cxisting cquity
interest in the acquires,

over the net recognised amount (generally measured at fair valuc) of the wdentifinble asscts

acquired ond liobilities assumed.  Any goodwill thot arises 15 tested annually for impaimment.

When the excess 1= negative, a bargain purchase gnin 15 recognised immeduely in profin or loss,

The consideration transfisrmed docs not include amoums related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

FS8
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Any contingent constderation payable is recogmised at fair value at the dofe of acquisition and
ingluded i the consideration transferred, [ the contingent consideration that meets the defimtion
of 8 Nnancil mstrement i classiBed as equity, 1 is ool re-mensured and settlement i accounled
for within equity, Otherwise, ather contingent conswderation s remeasured at fair value a8 each
reporting date and subsegicnt changes o the fair value of the contingent consideration are
recognised in profit or loss,

Mon-controlling interests (*NCI') that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders o
a proportisnate share of the pequires’s net assets in the event of liquidation are measured cither
al fwir value or al the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquires’s identifishle net assels, ot the acquisition date. The measurement basis taken is
clected for coch business combination.  All other non-controlling interests are measured at
acquisition-dlate foir value, unless another measurement basis 15 required by FRSs.

Coziz relmted 1o the aequisition, other than (hose associnted with the issue of debt or equity
securities, that the Groap incurs in connection with a busingss combination are expensed as
ineurred.

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for &= equity transactions.

(i) Subsidinries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed
1o, or has rights to, vanable retums from DS involvement with the entity and las the ability
affect those retums through its pewer over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiarics are
ineluded in the consolidated lnancial statements Mrom the date that control conmwences wntil the
date that control ceases.

The aceounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary 1o align them with the
paolicics adopted by the Giroup. Losses applicable o the NCI in a subsidiary are allecated 1o the
non-conirolling interests even if doing so couses the non-controlling interests to have a deficit
balance.

{idiy Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and labilitics of the
subsidinry, and any relaied NCLand other componenis of equity.  Any resuliing gain or loss is
recogmised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair
value when control is lost,

livh Investments in equity-accounted investee

Associies are those entities in which the Group las significant inflwenice, bul nol control or joinl
control, over fnwmcial ansd operating policies of these entities. Sigmificant influence 15 presumed
o exist when the Group holds between 20P% or mare of the veding power of anather entity,

Investrciits in associate are accounted for using the oquity method. They are recognised initially
at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subscquent to initial recognition, the consolidoted
finaneial statements include the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of asseciate, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with those of the Group,
from the dote that sipnificant influence commences until the date thit signi ficant influence ceases.

F59
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When the Group®s share of losses exceeds its investment in an associate, the cormying amount of
the investment, together with any long-term interests that form part thereof, is reduced fo zera,
and the recognition of further losses is discontinuied except 1o the extent thal the Group has mi
obligation to fund the mvestee’s operations or has msde payments on behall of the nvestee,

iv) Jdoint operation

A joint operation 15 an arangement in which the Group has joint control whereby the Groap has
rights to the asses. and obligations for the liabilitics, relating 1o an amrangement.  The Group
accounts for cach of ils assels, Habalitics and tmnsactions, including its share of those held or
incurred jointly. in relation to the joint operation.

(il Transactions climinated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and tmnsactions, and any uarealised income and expenses arising from intr-
group iransactions, are eliminated in prepanng the consolidated financial statements, Linrealised
gaing afsing from transactions with equity-accounted investee are climinated apainst the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, Unrealised losses are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, but only 1o the extent that there is no evidence of impairment,

(wii) Subsidiaries and associates in the separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiorees and associates are stated in the Company s statement of financial
position al cost less secumulsted impairment losses,

Tk
B

Foreign currency
1 Forelgn currency transactions

Tramsasctions in foreign cummencies are runshived o the respective functional currencics of Group
entities at the exchange rates ot the dates of the ransactions. Monctary assels and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated 1o the functional currency
at the exchange mte of that date. The foreign cumrency gain or loss on monetary items is the
difference between amontised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the yeor, adjusted
for effective interest and poyments during the wvear, and the omortised cost in foreign currency
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the vear.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forcign currencies that are measured at fair
value are translated (o the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value
was determined,  Non-monctary items in a foreign currency that are measured in torms of
historical cost are translated wsing the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.  Forcign
currency differences arising on translation ane generally recogmised in profit or less,

(i Foreign operatiens
The asset= and liabilities of foreign operations, ncluding poodwill and fair value adjustments
arisimeg o acguisition, ang translaed w Umted Sttes dollars ot exchange roles at the reporting

date, The income and expenses of loreign operations are iranslated to United States dollars ai
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions,

F&10
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Foreign currency differences are recognised m other forcign comprehensive income, and
presented inthe foreign currency translation reserve in equity. However, if the operation 1s a non-
whollv-owned subsidiary, then the relevant proportionate share of the translation difference
allocated 1o the NCL When o foreign operahion s disposed of such that control, sigmficant
influence of joint control is lost, the ciamultive amount in the traslation reserve related 1o that
foreign operation is reclassificd w profit or loss as par of the gain or loss on disposal, ‘When the
Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while
retaining contrel, the relevant propartion of the cumulative amount is reattributed 1o NCL When
the Group disposes of only pan of its investment in an associates that includes a forcign operation
while retaining significant influence or join contrel, the relevant proportion of the comulative
amaunt is reclassified o profit or loss.

When the settlement of a monetary iem receivable from or payable o o foreign operation is
neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, forcign exchange gains and losses anising
froan such monetary ilems are copsidered to form pan of a net investment in a foreign operation,
These are recognised in other comprehensive income, amd are presenied in the translation reserve

in equity.
33 Financial instruments
(i Recognition and initial measurement

Non-derivative Mnancial assets and financial abilities

Trade receivables are imtially recopnised when they are onginated, All other finaneil assets and
financial hobilities are imatially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractal
provisions of 1the mstrument,

A financial assel (unbess it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) oo
financial lisbility is initially measured at fair value plus, or minus, for an item not ot FYTPL,
transaction costs that are dircetly attribwtable 1o its acquisition or issue. A wrade receivable withou
a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

(i} Classification and sulsequent mersurement
Non-derivative linancial assets

On mteal recognition, & financinl assed 15 clssitied as measured o amortsed cost, which
compnsed cish and cash equivalents, and trade and other receivables.

Financial assets are pot reclssifed subsequent 1o (e imitial recognition unbess the Group
changes its business model for managing financial asscts, in which cose all affecied financial
assets are reclossified on the first day of the fivst reporting period following the change in the
business model.

Financial assets af amarsised cosi

A finencial asset is measured ot amortised cost i€ it meets both of the following conditions und is
ot designated as at FVTPL:

® itis held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets o collect contractun] cash
flows; and

* iis contractual terms give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Financial assets: Business model asscssment

The Group makes an assessment of the obgective of U business model in which a fnoncial asset
is beld o a ponifolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed amd
information is provided o management, The information considered includes:

= the stated policies and obpectives for the portfolic and the operation of those policies in
proctice. These include whether management’s stiatepy locuses on earming contrsciual
iMgrest incoane, maintmining a particular interest rte profile, matching the durmtion of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows oF realising
cash fhows through the sale of the assets,

*  how the performance of the porifolio is evaluated and reported to the Group's management;

= the risks thot affect the performance of the business mode] (and the financinl assets held wathin
that business madel ) and how those rsks are managed;

*  how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractua] cash flows colleeted; and

& the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons. for
such sales and expectations about future sales activity,

Transfers of Mnamcial assets to third parties in transsctions that do not qualify for derecognition
are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of
the nssets.

MSonederivative financinl sssets: Assessment whether contractual cash Rows are salely
paymenis of principal and interesi

For the purposes of this assessment, *principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition.  “Interest’ 15 defined as consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount owtstanding during a particular period of time
and for other basic fending risks and costs (e_g. liquidity nisk and administrative costs), w5 well as
o profit margin,

In assessing whether the contractual cash Mows arg solely payments of principal and interest, the
Growp considers the contractual terms of the instrument, This includes assessing whether the
financial assel contains a contracival lerm that coald chunge the tming or amount of contrsciual
cashi fMows sich that it would ot meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Groiip
considers;

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms that may adjust the eontractual coupon rate, including vanable rate feanses:
prepayment and extension features; and

termis that Dt the Group's claiin to cash flows from specified assels {eg. non-recourse
features),

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion i
the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
prncipal amounl outstanding. which may include reasgonable additional compensation for carly
termmnation of the contract,  Additionally, for a fnacial dsset acquired at o significant discount
of premium o s contractual par wmount, & feature thil permits or regquires prepayment ol an
ameoaet tht substantially represents the contractual par wmount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual interest {which may also include reasonable additional compensation for carly
termination) is treated &3 consistent with this eriterion if the fuir value of the prepayment fature
15 insignificant ai initial recognition.
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Non-derivative financial assets: Subsequent measurcment and gains and losses
Finampeial avsets af amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measired o amostised eost ising the effective interest method. The
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses,  Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.  Any gain o loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss,

Non-derivative linancial lHabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and
losses

Financinl linbilities are clussified as messured ot amortised cost or FYTPL. A financial labality
15 classificd as st FYTPL if it 15 classified as held-for-troding or # 15 designated as such on mtial
recognition, Financial liabilitics a8 FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recogmsed in profit or loss, Directly attributable iransaction
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurned,

Other financial liabilities are imitially measured at fair value less directly attributable ransaction
costs.  They are subsequently measured st amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and forcign exchonge goins and losses are recogmised m profit or loss. These
financial fabilites comprised interest bearing loans and borrowings and trade and other payables.

(i) Derecognition
Financial assets

The Grroup derecognises a financial asset when
®  ihe contraciual rights 1o the cush Nows from the (nanein wsset expire; o
= it transfiers the rights 10 receivie the contraciual cash flows 10 a transsction in which cither:
= substamtially all of dve risks and rewands of owrership ol the Ginancial asset are iransferred:
or
= the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of e risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retan control of the frmancial asset,

Transferred asscls pre not derecognised when the Group enters into transactions whereby it
transfers assets recopniscd in its statement of finoncinl position, but retains cither all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets.

Financial Habilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when s contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire, The Group also derecopnizes a financial lability when ats terms are modafied
and the cash flows of the modified Bability are substantially different, in which case a new
financial lizhility based on the modified ferms is recognised at fair value,

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrving amount extinguished

and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets ransferred or lisbilities assumed) 15
recogmised in profit or loss,

F&13

148/345



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

Cherarrd- Py Spatem Limiied
il iy sinbsddlaries
Frouncial staremenis
Vear ended 31 March 2173

{iv) Offsetting
Financial sssets aind Gnancial labiitees are offset and the nel amouivl presented m the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Group currently bas a legally enforceable nghit to
sel off e amoumts and i intends cither to sefile them on o mel basis or o realise the asser amd
sgithe the liability simultancously,

iv) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and fixed deposits from the date of acquisition
that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair valwe ond are used by the Group in
the management of its short-term commitments,

{vil Share capital
Ordinary shuares
Ordinary shares are classificd as cquity, Incremental costs direetly atnbutable to the issue of

ordinary sharces are necopnised as a deduction from eguity. Incomse ax relating to transaction costs of”
an equity transaction is accounted for in accordance with FRS 12

34 Property, plant and equipment
(i} Hecognition and mensurement

Items of property, plamt and equipment are measured at cost, kess accumulated depreciation amd
accumulated impairment losses,

Cost includes expenditure that is dincetly attributable to the acguisition or construction of the
assel.  Purchased software that s integral 1o the Tunctionality of the relued equipment s
capitalised as part of the cquipment.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment hove different usefull lives, they
are gecounted for ns separte lems (major compoaents) of property. plant and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profii or
loss,

(iiy Subsequent costs

The cost of repiacing a component of an item of property, plant and cquipment 15 recognised in
the corrying amaunt of the item i it i= probable that the future economic benefits emboddied within
the compenent will flow o the Group, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amdount
of the replaced component is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of propeny,
plant and equipment are recogmsed in profin or oss as mourred.

{idiy Depreciation
Depreciation 15 based on the cost of an asset less its residual value, Significant components of

individual asseis are assessed and i a component has an useful life thai 15 different from the
rensainder of that asset, thot component is depreciated scparately.
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Depreciation s recogmized o5 an expense i profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimited useful hves of each component of an tem of property, plant and cquipment.
Depreciation i3 nod recogrised on frechold land and construction-in=progress,

Depreciation is recognised from the date that the property, plant and equipment are insialled and
are ready for use,

The estimated wsetul lives for the current and comparative years are as follows;

Biuilding = 25 years
Computers and software = 3-10vears
Electrical and fintings = 10 years
Furniture and finings = 3-10 years
Leaschold propeny = 13- 20 years
Machinery - Syears
Muotor vehicles - 3-8 years
Office equipment = 3 =10 years
Henovation = 510 years

Depreciation meihods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted i appropriate.

35 Intangible assets and goodwill
i Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. For the
mexsurement of goodwill of imitiol recognition, see note 3, 1{).

Subsequent measurenrent
Croodwill is measured ot cost less accumulated impairment losses,
(i) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have finite vseful lives are measured
at ¢ost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

(lily Amortisation
Amorisation is colculnted based on the cost of the asset, less s restdual value,
Amorization is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimaied useful lives
of imangible asscts, other than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use, The
estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:

o Customer/ Dhstnbutor relationships 10 years

Amontisation methods, useful lives and resadual values are reviewed al the end of each reporting
peniod and mdjusted if spproprate,
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3.6 Inventories

Inventories are measured af the lower of cost and net realisable value, The cost of inventories is
based on the Girst-in Grst-ou allocation method, and includes expenditure incurmed i acoqumnng
the inventerics, produetion misd oller eosts menmed in bringing them to their existing location and
condition,

Work-in-progress and finished goods comprise cost of direct materials, direct labour and an
attributable promotion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. These
cosis are assigned on an allocation of direct materiol and direct lnbour,

Met realisable value is the estimuted selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimuled costs of completon and the estimnted costs necessary to make the sale,

When the inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any ol lowance for write-down of inventonics to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense i the peried the write-down or loss occurs, The
amount of any reversol of any ollowmnce for write-down of inventones, arising from an incrense
in net realisable value, 15 recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs,

33 Leases

At mception of o contract, the Group assesses whether a confract 1s, or contains, a lease, A
contract i%, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the night to control the use of an identfied
asset for w periosd of Ume in exchange for consideration.

(i} Asa lesser

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to cach lease component on the basis of its relative
stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of propenty the Group has clecied nol o separaie non-
lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease
component.

The Group recognises o right-of-use asset and a bease liability at the lease commencement date,
The rght=of=use asset 15 initinlly measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease paymenis made ab or before the commencemeni date.

The mghi-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the siraighi-line meibod from ihe
commencement date 1o the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the
underdying assci to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost of the nght-of-use asset
reflects that the Grroup will exercise o purchase option. In that case the right-of-use assct will be
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as
those of property and equipment.  In addition, the nght-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairmeent losses, iFany, and adjusted for certin remeasurenients of the lease habality,

The right-of-use assel s subsequently stated s cost less sccumulmed depreciation and impairment
losses,
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The lease liabality is mitially messured ot the present value of the lease pavments that sre not paad
at the commencement date, discounted wsing the interest rate implicit inthe lease o, i that e
cafnol be readily determined, the Group®s mgremental borrowing mate, Generilly, the Group uses
115 ncremental bormowang mte as the discount rte,

The Group determings its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest migs from various
extemal financing sources based on the location of the entities which have the lease liabilities.,

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

®  [ixed payients, including in-substonee [xed payviments;

= varighle lcase payments that depend on an index or a rate, initally measwred using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

® amounts expected 1o be payable under a residual value puarantee; and

* ihe exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably cenain o exercise,
lease paymems in an optional renewal period ifthe Group is reasonably cortain 1o exercise an
extension option, amd penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasanably
cermin not to leyminade early

The lease liability is measured at amorised cost wsimg the cffective intcrest method. Tt s
remeasured when there isa change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
e, if there 15 @ chonge o the Group's estimate of the amount expected o be payable under a
residual value guarantee, if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchiase, extension or termination aption o iFtherg is o revised in-substance fixed lease payment,

When the lease hability s remeasured i this way, a corresponding adjustment is made 1o the
carrying amount of the night-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carmying amount of
the nght-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of vestment property in
*property, plant and equipment” and lease liabilities in *boans and bormowings” in the statement of
financial paosition.

Short-ferm leases amd feases of low-valne assers

The Group has ghected mot 1o recognise nghi-of-use asscts aml lease labilines for leases of low-
value assets and shor-term leases, including IT equipment.  The Group recognises (e lease
payments associpted with these leasces as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Borrowing costs that are not dircctly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset ane recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Imspani rment
Nom-derivative lnancial asets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected eredit losses (ECLs) on fingncial asses
measured af amenised costs,
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Lass allowances of the Group are measured on either of the following bases:

= | Xmonth ECLs: these are ECLs that resuli from defauli evenis thai are possible within the 12
maonths after the reporting date (or for a shorter period if the expeeted life of the instrument is
less than 12 months); or

# Lifctime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a finaneial instrument or coniract assel.

Kimplified approach

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECLs for all trade receivables. The
simplificd approach requires the loss allowance o be measared a1 an amount equal o lifetime
ECLs.

Greneral approach

The Group applies the general approach to provide for ECLs on all other financial mstruments.
Under the general approach, the loss allowance 1s mensared ot an amount equal to 1 2-month ECLs
at indtial recognition.

At each peporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. When credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit nisk of a financinl asset has mereased significantly since
mitial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and suppomable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or offort.  This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group®s historical experience
and informed crecit assessment and includes forward-looking infermation.

17 eredin risk lsas non increased significantly since initial recognition or if the credit quality of the

financial instruments improves such that there s no longer a significant increase in credat nisk

sinee initial recognition, less allowance is measured at an amount equal to 1 2-month ECLs.

The Group considers a financinl nsset to be in defoult when:

& the borrower 15 unlikely 1o pay 12 credit obhigations (o the Growp in full, wathout recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising seeurity (il any is held); or

+ he financial asset is more than 90 days post due.

The maximum penod comsidered when estimatimg ECLS 15 the masmmum contractunl penod aver
which the Group is exposed o credit risk.

Mewsuremeni of ECEx
ECLs are probability-weighted estimates of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at the
present value of all cash shorifalls (ie. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in

aceordance wilh the contract and the cash flows thit the Group expects 1o receive). ECLs are
dhiscounted at the effective interest mte of the financial assel,
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Credit-impaired financiel assefs

At ench reparing date, the Group assesses whether financial assets cnrmied ol amorised cost are
credit-impured. A financial asset s ‘credil-impaired” when one or mone events that have a
letrimental impact o the estimated future cash flows of the Anancial asset have oocurmed.

Evidence that o financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

*  sipnificand financial difficulty of the debior;

= 2 hreach of contract such as o default or being more than 90 doys past due;

= ihe restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
atherwise;

& it is probable that the debior will enter bankripicy or other fmancial reorgamisation; or

= e disappearance of an active market for a security beeause of finaneial ditficulties,

Fresentation of allowance for ECLS in the statenwent of financial positian

Loss allowances for financial assets measwred ot amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of these assets.

Write-aff

The gross carrying amount of a financial assct is written off (cither partially or in full) 10 the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery,  This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debior does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject o the writc-off. However, financial assets that are writien
ofT could still be subject to enforcement activitics in order 1o comply with the Group's procedures
for recovery of amounts due.

(i Associule

An impairment loss in respect of an associate is measired by comparning the recoverable amount
of the investment with iis carrying amount in accosdance with the requirements for noa-linancial
assels, An impairment loss is recogniscd in profit or loss. An impairment boss is reversed ifihere
has been a favourable change in the estimaies used to determine the recoverable amount and only
to the extent that the recoverable amount increases.

(i) MNon-Tinancial asseis

The carrying amounts of the Group®s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assels, ore reviewed ol coch reporting dote to determune whether there 15 any indication of
impanrment. 10any such indhication exists, then the asset’s recovernble amount 1s estimated, For
goodwill, and inmangible assets that have indefinte usefiil lives of thal are sol vel available for
use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year ot the same time.  An impairment loss s
recognised if the carrying ansount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit (*CGLT ) exceeds
its cstimated recoverable amount.
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The recoverable amount of an asset or COU a5 the grenter of s value in use and it fair vilue less
costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present valiee using 8 pre-lax discount rate than reflects current markel ssecsaments af the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGLL For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smiallest group of asscts that
gencraies cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows ol
other assets or CGUs. For the purposes of geodwill impaimment testing, CGLS 1 which goodwill
has been allocated are nggrepated so that the level at which impairment testing is performed
reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for intemal reporting purposes. Goodwill
acquired in a business combinution is allecated 1o groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

Imparrment losses are recognised in profit or loss, Impoirment losses recognised in respect of
COUs are allocated first 1o reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU
{group of CGLig), and then w reduce the carrving amounts of the other assets in the CGLE (group
of CGLS) on a pre rata basis,

An impairmient loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment
losses recognised in prior periods ane assessed at each reponting date for any indications that the
loss has decrensed or no longer exists. An impaimment loss is reversed if there has been a change
n the estimutes used 1o determine the recovernble smount. An impmnment 108 1s reversed only
10 the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does nol exceed the carrying amoumt that wookd
have been determined, net of depreciation or amonisation, i no impairment loss had been
recognised.

An impairment loss in respect of an associate or joint venture is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with s carrying amount in accordance with the
requirements for non-financial assets. An impairment loss s recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment loss is reversed if these has been o change in the estimates used o determine the
reeoverable amount and enly to the extent that the recoverable amount increases.

Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an invesiment in an associate is not recognised
separately, and therefore 15 not tested for impairment separately. Instend, the entire amount of the
investment in an associae is tested for impairment as a single asset when there is objeciive
evidence that the investment in an associnte may be impaired.

Emplovee benefits

Defined contribition plas

A defined coniribution plan s a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contribution into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation 1 pay further
amoaints, Obligations for contributions to defined comnbution pension plans are recognised as an

employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the penods during which related services are
rendered by ermployees,
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Shovi-term emplovee bengfiis

Short-1erm emplovee benefit obligations are measured on an wirdiscournted basis and are expensed
as the related service 15 provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected 1o be paid
under shor-term eash bonus if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amownt as a result of past service provided by the emplovee, and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Umifised annuafl leave

The equivalent cost of emplovess” entitlements to wnutihsed anoual keave as ot the end of each
fanciil period i acered for and recognised as an expense i prolit oF les i the perod i which
the related employment services are rendered.

The Groug has not made any provision for employes leave entitlemont s the amounts wre
insignificant.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a presemt obligation (legal or comstructivey, as a
resuli of o past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resowrces cconomic benefits and will
be required 1o settle the obligation and a reliable cstimate can be established on the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are reviewed ai each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
cstimate. Where the effect of tme value of moncy is material, the amount of the provision is the
present value of the expenditure expecied 1o be required to setile the obligation.

Revenue recognition
Sales of poods and services

Revenue from sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of busingss is recognised when
the Group satisfies a performance obligation (PO} by transferming control of a promised good or
service o the customer. The amount of revenue recognised is the amount of the transaction price
alloeated 1o the satisfied PO,

The transaction price is allocated to cach PO in the contract on the basis of the relative stand-
alone sellimg prices of Use promised gosds or services, The mdividual standalone selling prive of
a pood or service thal has nol previously been sold oo a stand-alone basis, or has a highly vanable
selling price, is determined based on the residual portion of the ransaction price afler allocating
the transaction price to poods and'or services with observable stand-alone selling prices. A
discount or vanable consideration i3 allocated to one or more, but not all, of the performance
obligations if it relates specifically 10 those PO

The transaction price is the amount of consideration in the contract to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for transfemring the promised goods. Consideration payable to a
customer 1= deducted from the trunsaction price if the Group docs nol receive a separile
identifiable benefit from the customer.

Revenue from sales of goods and services are recognised at o poimt in time following the
satisfaction of the PO,
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Governmeni grants

Other government grimts related o assels are imtiilly recognised s deferred incame o fair value
when there 15 reasonable asswrnce that they will be recervest and the Group will comply with the
comditions associted with the grant, These grants are then recognised in profit or loss as “other
income’ on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss as “other income” on 4 svstemiatic basis in
the same pericds in which the expenses are recognised, unless the conditions for receiving the
grant are met after the related expenses have been recognised. Inithis case. the grant is recognised
when it becomes receivable.

Finance income and finance costs

The Group's finunce income and finance costs include interest income and the foreign curmency
gain or loss on financial assets and financinl labilities.

Finance income is recognised using the effective interest method.

The “effective intercst rmie” is the mte that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the
finincial asset,

In calculating interest income, the effective interest rate is applicd 1o the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired). However, for financial assets that have become
credit-impaired subsequent to indtial recognition, inerest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate 1o the nmortised cost of the financial asset. IF the asset is no longer credit-
impairec, then the ealeulstion of interest income reverts o the gross basis,

Income Tax

Tax expense comprises current and delferred tax, Curvent tax aid deferred tax are recogrmised in
profit or loss except 1o the extent that it relates to a business combination, or Mems recognised
direetly i equity of in other comprehicnsive incorme.

The Group has determined that interest and penaltics related (o income taxes, including uncertain
tax treatments, do not mect the definition of income taxes, ond therefore accounted for them under
FRS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Current tax is e expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year,
using tux rrles enacied or substantively enscted ol the reporting date, and any adjusinment 1o Gax
pavable m respect of previous years. The mnount of current tax payable or receivable is the best
estimalte of the tax amount expecied to be puid or received that reflects uncertainty related o
income taxes, if any. Current tax also includes any fax arising from dividends.

Current fax ossets and linbilities arc offsct only iF conain criteria are met.

Fs22
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Deferred tax &5 recogrised in respect of temporary differences between the camymg amounis of
assets and habilities for finoneial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes,
Defered tix is not fecogiised for:

= temporary differences on the initial recognition of asseis or lizbilities in a transaction thai is
ot 4 business combination and that affeets neither accounting nor taxable profit or koss;

o emporary differences relaied 10 investment in subsidiary and associsles 1o the extent thai
the Growp s able o control the tining of the reversal of the temporary difference and it 15
prahable that they will ned reverse in the Toreseesble fishere: and

s taxable tempoeary differences ansing on the initial recognition of goodwall.

The measurement of deferred taxes reflects the tax consequences that would follovw the manmer in
which the Greup expects, at the reporting date, 10 recover or seitle the carrying amoun of its assets
and Habilities. Deferred tox i measured a1 the tax rates that are expected 1o be applied w
temperary differences when ithey reverse, based on the lows that have been emacted or
substuntively enacted by the reperting dote.

Deferred tax assers and habilites are offser if there 15 o legally enforceable right to ofTser current
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate fo taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxabbe citity.

Dieferred wx pssets ane recognised for unused mx bosses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be wsed. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of
relevant taxable temporary differences. I the amount of taxable temporary differences s
msulficient to recogmse o deferred lax asset n full, then fwwre txable profits, adjusted for
reversals of exsting temporiry differences, are considered, based on the business plans for the
Giroup. Deferved tax assets are reviewed ot each reporting date and ane reduced 1o the extent thar
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized, such reductions are reversed
when the probability of future raxable profits improves.

Unrecognised defenred tax assets are reassessed at cach reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it hus become probubsle that future txable profiis will be availuble against which they can be
used.

Eamings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earmings per share data for its ordinary shares, Bosic
carmngs per share s calculated by dividing the profit or loss attrbutable 1o ordinary sharcholders
of the Company by the weighted-average number of oedinary shares outstanding dunng the vear,
adjusted for own shares held. Diluted eamings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or
loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders and the weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,
which comprise convertible notes and share option granted to employee.

Fs23
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MNew standards and interpretations not adopted

A nurmiber ol new standards, interpretations and amendments 1o standirds are elfective for anmiil
pernads begpmaing after | Apnl 2022 and earlier applcateon 1s permitted; however, the Growp has
it early adopled the new or amended stvdards and interpeetations in prepanng these financinl
slatcmenis.

The following new FRSs, interpretations and amendments to FRSs are not expected to have a
significant impact on the Groaup's consolidated financial statements and the Company”s statement
of financial position.

FRS 117 fuserance Contraces and smendhmwents to FRS 117 favrance Controces

Dizclosyre of Acoouwning Policles { Amendmenis to FRS | and FRS Practice Statement 2)
Deferred Tax related to Assels and  Liohilities arising from o Single Transaction
{Amendmenis o FRS 12}

Definiziony of Aceounting Extimanes { Amendments 1o FRS 8)

Classificatton af Liahilites ax Current or Now-cirrent (Amendments o FRS 1)

Leose lakfity in g Sale and Leaveback {Amendments 1o FRS 116)

F&24
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Building snd leasehold properties of the Group with o carmying amount of USS13,379, 102 (2022:
USS14,127.86%) are morgaged to fnoncial nstitutions to secure the Group's bank loans

{Note 15).

Right-of-use assets

Group

Cost

At 1 Apnl 2021

Additions

Derecognition of nght-of-use pseels
Exchange dilfercnce

At 31 March 2022

Additons

Derecognition of nght-of-use psoets
Exchange difference

At 31 March 2023

Aceumulated depreciation

At ] Apnl 2021

Depreciation

Derecognition of nght-of-use assels
Exchange difference

At 31 March 2022

Depreciation

Derecognition of nght-of-use asscts
Exchange difference

At 31 March 2023

Carrying amounts
At 1 Aprl 202]

AL 3| March 2022
At 31 March 2023

Stafl
Oilice residential Factory
building unit building Total
LUss Uss LUss Uss
159,168 54,308 417317 030,793
133,510 - - 133,510
(117,463) = {303,950 (421.413)
{256) (S82) - (LT
174,959 53,726 113,367 MI0s2
REEATE) n0de 135,085 Ti3.225
{100, 35) - = (1039%)
(6, 364) {2.506) - (HET0)
S, 2%1 B1,296 44K 427 1,036,009
116,147 3,721 222735 373,623
74003 15E78 el 189,682
(118,529) (249,214} (367,743}
[4H6] (4E3) (7.202) (B 071
71,145 0016 6, 130 187,391
113,054 20,600 124423 258077
{10,398 = = £10,395)
[3.217) (2,209} (12,033) (17.559)
170,584 G407 178,520 417,511
43,021 14,587 194 562 287,170
103,314 3610 47,237 154,661
333,707 12,589 269,12 618498
F527
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Year ended 1 March 2023

Staff
Offlice residential
bailding unit Total
Company USS USss Uss
Cost
At 1 April 2022
Additions 141,480 30,076 171,556
At 31 March 2023 141,480 30,076 171,556
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2022 - - -
Depreciation 23,580 17,186 4i), Thé
At 31 March 2023 23,580 17,186 A0, T
Carrving amounts
At 31 March 2022 - - —
Ar 31 March 2023 117,90 12,89 130,790
Investment in subsidiaries
Company
2023 2022
LS5 Uss
Unguoted shares, o cost 13,133,394 13,133,394
Addition 3,610,722 -
Capital reduction (180,010)

16,564,106 13,133,304

On 7 July 2022, the Company acquired 100%% of the shares and voling interests in Kyoel Denki
(5) Pre Lud and PT Kyoel Denki Trading Indonesia from a related party for a consideration of
55360100722, On 15 July 2022, Kyoei Denki (5) Pre Lid scguired the entire issued
and paid-up share capital of KD Advanced Mawrials, Inc for a consideration of US
51 and subsequenily KD Advanced Materials, Inc become a wholly owned subsidiary
of Kyoe Denki (5) Pre Lid

On 13 February 2023, the Company reduced its contribution of USS180,010 in Alpha Chemic Pie
Lid, via a capital reduction exereise.

F528
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Details of significant subsidianies are as follows:

Effective
perccntage af
Country of Principal ciyuity beld by

MNume of subsidiaries Inmrpnrll']ul mctivities the l'.'w'lplngr

L] 2012

'A’. T
Bihon Figment Sdn. Bhdd, Malaysin Processing ol ([L1] [L1]
compounding of
thermoplastcs
OFS Technolsgies Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Cieneral trader [11] [L1]
Omni-Plus System Shanghai Limited The Peoples” Ceneral trader [L1] ([L1]
Republic of Ching
PT. O Plus System Indonesia Civneral trader 10 111
Cepeo Trading Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia General trader (L1 ([L1]
Chmmni Phis System FhilipphcuTm:. |"!1'|Ii[:]'rir|n Processing nil [LLi] 1.1]
compounding af
thenmoplastscs
DF Chemicals Pre. Lud Singapore ‘Wholesale of chemicals 100 ([L1]
anil chemicul products
1-FTE Trade Philippines, Inc. Mhalippanes Cieneral trader 10 [111]
Alphn Chemie P, Lid Simpapore General wrader L1 L1}
PT. Sentosn Kimaa Indonesia Gieneral trader [[L1} L1
Tags Polymer Sdn, Bhd. Malaysia Cieneral trader 100 [11]
Omni-Phis System lapan Corporation Jnpan Consulting/ General L1 [L1]
trader
Omni Plus System § Thaitand) Co., Lid Thailane Cienera] irader (L4 1LY
Kwoel Denki (5) Pe Lid Singapare Gieneral trader (L4
Held through suhidiorie
DF Chemicals Vietnam Co, Lid Vietmum Dristribngtion of industrial - 100 (L1
colorants specinliy
chemicals

" Kyoen enkn de:rw Inglomnesan Iniknesia Cienera] trader [L14]
KID Advaneed Materinls, Inc United Suares General trader 1K) -

F529
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Investment in joint operation

Company
2023 2021
Uss UsS
Joint operation 24,223 24,223
Details of significant joint armangement are o5 follows:
Effective
percentage of
Country of Principal equity hiekd by
Name of Company incorporation aetivities the Company
2023 012
Ve Ve
Oimni-Plus Svstem Plassics Thailand Inport and cxpon 39 i
Co., Lid plastics
Joint aperation

The Company s a 39% (2022 39%) partner in Omni-Plus System Plastics Co., Ltd, a joint
arrangement formed with Thanasan Maiseaumso and Yanee Yuthakaichaisri.

Investment in associates

Giroup Company
iz 022 0213 022
Uss LSS Us% (.1
Interest in associales 1,362,654 1,168,830 1.241.074 1047209
Share of results in associatcs 132,740 {195,556) -
1,495,434 973,274 1,241,074 1,047,209

Ditails of significan! associate coimpanics ane @ Tollows:

Effective
percentage of
Country of Principal equity held by
Name of Company Incorparation activities the Company
023 22
Ve Y
Small World Accelerator Pre. Lud. Singapore Invesiment holding 48 AR
["SWAT) company
H& P Technolognes Pre, L, Smngapore Produce and salesof 40 4
("RIFT"} polywear compounds
F330
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The following summanses the financial information of the Group's mstenal associate based on
the respective (conselidated) financial statements prepared in accordance with FRS, mosdified for
fair value adjustments on sequisition and Jdifferences in the Growup's sccounting policies. The
table also analyses, in aggregate, the cumying amaunt and share of profit and other comprehensive
wngome (D) of the femaining individually iminatenal associates.

RPFT WA Total
LSS USsS Uss

2023
Revenue 9,010,394 -
Profit / {loss) from continuing

operationsTotal Comprehensive income 796,249 {11.597)
Non-gurrent assels 530,528 B43 388
Current asscts 4,175,099 417,013
Current linbilities (2.191,881) {153, 490)
Met ussels 2,522,746 1,106,911
Group's interest in net assets of investes at

heginning of the year 4,290 2E8.978 973,274
Group's share of!
= Frofit from contimuing opertions F18, 500 (5,308) 332
- O] - Foreign currency translation difference — 15,163 15,163
- Total comprehensive income 318,500 9,795 328,295
Group's contribution during the year - 193,865 193 865
Carrying amouont of interest in investee at

end of the year 1,002,759 492,638 1,495,434
012
Revenue £.3370,706 -
Profit / {loss) from continuing

operations Total Comprehensive Income 498 437 {14,364
NOn-Current Asscls 712,902 Mz
Clurrent assels 1,986,662 54,583
Current liabilities {2.988.82T) {155.022)
Net asseis 1,710,737 602040
Group's interest in net assets of investee at

beginning of the vear 484,921 207,207 TE2128
Ciroup’s share of:
- Profit from continuing operations 199375 {6,892) 192,483
= O] = Forcign curreney translation difference = (1337 (1,337)
= Total comprelensive income 199,375 {3.229) 190,046
Carryving amount of interest in investes at

eni of the yvear %4, 296 I8R.978 973,274

F531
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Intangible assets and goodwill

Customer/Tst
ributor
Gowdwill  relutionships Total
Group Uss LSS LSS
Cost
At ] Apnl 202] 2,023,790 4 R32 606 RS0 309
AL 31 March 2022 2023, 79 4. 832,608 6,856,359
At 1 Apnl 2022 2.023,7%) 4,832 608 6,856 399
At 31 March 2023 2,023,790 4,832 600 6,856,399
Accumulated amoertisation
Avl April 2021 - 1,142,697 I, 142697
Amortisation = 483.261 453,261
At 3] March 2022 = 1625058 1625058
At | Aprl 2022 - 1,625,058 1625058
Amortisation - 483,261 483,261
At 31 March 2023 - 2108219 2.109.219
Carrylng amounis
At 1 April 2021 2,023,790 3689912 5.713,702
Al 3] March 2022 2023, 790 3. 206,651 5210441
Al 31 March 2023 2.023.790 2723390 4.747.180

Amuortisation
The amorisation of other intangible assets m neluded in “other expenses™.
Tmipairnvent testing for CGLS containing goodwill

Foi e purposes af impairment testing, poodwill has been allocated 1o the Geoup's CGUs
{operating divisions) as follows:

023 022
Liss LsS
Carrying amounts
DF Chemicals Group 4 434 04,434
Cepeo Trading Sdn. Bhd, 992 686 902680
PT Sentosa Kimia 136,670 336,670

2023790 20237490

The recoverable amounts of these OGU s were based on its value m use, determined by discounting
the pre-tax future cash Mows 1o be generated from the continuing use of the CGL.

F532
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Key sssumptions used in the estimistion of value in use were as Follows:

Group
2023 2022
Ya Ya
Discount gate 12.0-15.5% 110 -20.5
Hiulgeted ERITDA growth mate (average of next five years) ERI TS LA 4.0 - 6.0
Terminal valse growth rate 15 25

Thie discount rate was a pre-tax measure based on the rate of 0yvear government bonds issued by
the govermment in the relevant countrics where the cntities are located and m the same currency as
the cash flows, adjusied for a nsk premium to reflect both the mereased nisk of investing in cquiiies
gencrally and the systematic risk of the specific COGLL

Five years of cash flows were included in the discounted cash flow model. A long-term growth rate
into perpetuaty s been determined as the rominal GDP rates for the countries in which the OGL
operates

Budgeted EBITDA was basad on expectations of future oulcomes taking o secount past
expenence, sdjusted for the amliciuted revenue growth, Revenue growtl was projected aking o
account the average growih levels experienced over the past live years and the cstimated sales
visluine amd price growth for the next five vears, Tt was assumed that sales price would grow at a
constant margin above forccast inflation over the mext five years.

Based on the cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year periods, manngement has assessed that no tmpairment is necessary s ot 31 March 2023
and 31 March 2022, as the estimated recoverable amaoumts of the respective CGU excoeded its
currving amesnd.

Manupement has identified that o reasonably possible change in the key assumption could cause the
carrving amvount 1o excesd the recoverable amount, The following table shows the amownt by which
the assumplion would need 1o change for the estimated recoverable amount 1o be equal to the

CATTYIng amount.

Change required for

carrying amoant to equasl
the recoverahle amount
2023 2011
Y e
Group
Discount rate 0.0 — 4.0 30-60
F333
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Deferred tax assets and liabilitics

Group

Recevables

[nventories

Plamt and eqpuipment

Praovision

Employee benefit

Tax losses carry-forwards

Intangible assets

Other ttems

Deferred tax (assets) Tiabilities

Set-offof tax

Net defierred tux (assets)
Tialsilities

Company
Plamt and equipment
Dieferred tax liabilitses
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Vowsr ended! 31 March 2023

Movements in deferred tax (asscis)/linbilitics duning the year are as follows:

Group

Receivables

Inventories

Plant and equipment
Intangible pssets
Provision

Emploves benefits

Tax losses carry-Torwards
Oher ems

Assels Liahilities
23 2022 2023 022
Uss Uss LSS Uss
- {2,064 - o
{1046, 289) (125,03%) - -
- - 264,151 J40,683
33,1631 {11,426) - -
{21,353) (19,857} 3 =
(135,167 - - -
J6T.05 442 55060
{172,481} = = 30,383
(H68,453) {158,421} 631,247 RI3672
124,580 101,640 (124,580 (10164800
{343,873} (56,781} 506,667 712,032
Linbilitics
013 2022
LS5 LS5
139,571 139,571
| 30,571 139,571
Recognised in
statement of
Al comprehensive A
1 April income Exchange 31 March
2 {Nobe 21) difference 2022
Uss Uss LSS Uss
- (2,101} z {2095
(105,3M) (16.733) {2.912) (125,03%)
27341 69,181 (1.52%) 340,653
518,09 (75,502) - 442,596
{12.019) 612 [HL] {11.426)
(23,778) 8,152 (4.230) (15,8560
{28, 206) 28,206 = rt
42,749 {3,053) {7314} 30,382
6, 493 6,762 {16,004 655,251
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Larniif

Receivahles

Inventories

Plant and equipment
Intangible issets
Provision

Emplovee benefit

Tax losses curry-forwands
Oither inems

Inventories

Raw materials
Work=in-progress

Finished goods

Less: Allowance for obsolete

invenlosies
Balance brought forward
Allowance made for the
financial year

Reversal of allowance made

Exchange difference
Balance carried forward

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

(k- Py Syatem Limied
et fy sihsidlanies
Frasancied stafemenei
Vowsr ended! 31 March 2023

Recognised in
statement of
Al comprehensive Al
1 April imceme Exchange 31 March
2022 (Nowe 21) difference 023
LSS LSS Liss LS5
(2,059 2,001 0% >
{125,039) 15,867 2883 {106, 289)
130 693 {65, 5640) 16,952) 264,151
442590 (75,502) - 367,094
111,426) (21.964) 227 (33, 163)
{19,556) {2,236) 793 (21,3459
kS (135,168) = (135, 168)
30,382 (183,03%) {19,825 (172482}
53,251 (469,651 ) (22 50) 162,794
Grouip Company
Toke 2023 2021 023 2022
Uss Uss LSS Uss
4,018,650 1.BRE, 504 = -
TA435 307,179 - =
59,513,525 62,387,722 33723850 4], 34542
(3530610 66,583 405 33723850 41345424
(1425473)  (1,171.803) (959, 20) (666.411) |
20| (2764800) (4286950 (1654635 (322.879)
i 2303 172975 - -
13,8005 2050 - -
(401534360 (1425473) (643925 (4K9.200)
59386174 65157912 31079925 40356134

During the year ended 31 Muarch 2023, inventonies of USS280,7659, 104 (2022: USS281,696.229)
were recognised as an expense duning the vear and included in cost of sales.

Allowance of USS2, 764,801 (2022: USSA2E695) was recognised ns other operaling expenses
during the year as these inventories are slow moving, LISS23,033 (2022: USS172975) of the

ollowance was reversed as the inventories were sold,
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Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
= Third parties
- Related partics

Less: Allowanee Tor doubitiul
receivables

Other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Armounts due froom joint operation
Amounds due [rem relsted parties
Deposits

Tax recoverable
Prepayments
Advances

Trade and other receivables
Mon-curment
Current

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
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k- Py Syatem Limied
e dy shsidiories
Frouncial siufemenan
Voarr endled A1 Morch N2 3

Group Company

2023 22 023 022

LSS Us% Lss LSS
AT 400862 ST314006 26245465 38449304
H400,355 179958 509227258 37312274
SSR0T21T  STAYA074  TTN68 1M 75761668
- (38R, 382§ = =
S5R0T21T7T  STATAY2 T I6H1M1 75761668
2,380,739 2,060,447 15,110 162,755
= = 1,151,654 1,808,825
950,156 S05,054 1,557,633 H27,957
1,195,990 - 1,195 94K -
143,668 108, 104 23,591 2375
A04T9TT0 SHORLIOT  RI112,168  THS563.TH0
2057 2057 2057 2057
462621 445,001 116,722 148,430
1448980 2130130 1,284,739 4494923
6233438 62 SA2ARS  RASIS6RA  TONN, 199
G2 B30 - - -
61,750,592 62562485 R2A15686 792041949
62393428 62 562485  R2. 515686 79209 199

Amonnts due from subsidiaries, foint operation and relaied parties (nor-trade)

Non-trade amount due from subsidianies, joini operation and related parties are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

Addvances are related to advance pavments made to suppliers,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

Cash ai bank

Fixed deposits

Cash and cazh equivalems in the
statements of financial position

Group Company
023 111k ] 023 2022
LUss Uss Uss Uss
4,245 4.549 = =
IR,679.944  22R02,189  12,057.848  12R08.404
4,286,249  35R0A96 FAMTIF 2RILSR4
32970441 26387034 15452580 15712078

171/345

F536



14

Cash and cash equivalents in the
statements of financial position

Fixed deposits (pledped)

Cash and cash equivalents in the
strteiment of cash Mows

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
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et fry sihsidlanies
Frasancied stafemenei
Vowr ended! 31 March 2023

Group
2023 022 n23
LSS Lss Uss
IZAT0A41 263RT0I34 15452581
(3865288}  (3.174.788)  (3.22],908)
29,105,153 23312346 12,230,673

Com

pany

2022
Lss

15712078
(2,485.998)

13,226,080

Fixed deposits cam interest of 0.25% 1o 3.25% (2022: 0.03% 1o 1.80%) per anmuem and are used
as collateral for banking facilitics which is subject to resirictions imposed by the lenders (Note
15). Fixed deposits have maturity period ranging from 3 o 12 (2022: 3 10 12) months,

Capital and reserves

Share capital
Group and Company
023 2023 02z pi| F3
Niimiber af Miuiniher of
shiares Lss shares LS5
Fuilly paid ordinary shares
with no par value 21,057,844 27.283,615 21,057.844 27,283,613
Transaction costs - (1. 210,067 - L1, 210,067)
21057844 26,073,548 21057844 26,073,543
Fully puid ordinary shares
with no par value:
AL April 21057544 26073544 5011461 18510425
Share split - - 15,034,383 -
Issue of ordinary shares - = 1.012.000 8773190
21057844 260073548 21057844 27383605
Tniteal public offenng
transaction costs deducied
from equity = - = (1.2 10.067)
At 31 March 21057844 26,073,544 21,057 844 26,073,548

All shares rank equally with regard (o the Company's residual assets. All shares isswed are fully

paid., with no par value.

Ordinary shares

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled o recerve dividends as declared from tme o tmse, and
are entithed 1o one vote per share al meetings of the Company.

As approved by shareholders of the Company in an extraordinary general meeting held on 12
May 2021, cach existing ordinary share in the capital of the Company was sub-divided imto 4

ordinary sharcs (“Share Split™),
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Yoar ended 31 March 2023

On 24 Jun 2021, the Company incrensed its sswed and fully paid-up capital by way of allotment
and isswimnce of 820000 new ordinary shares at an issue poce of JPY960 (approximately USS8.67
cquivalent) per ondinary shires for cash consideration of JPYR44 800,000 (approximately
USS7.628.861 equivalent) pursuamt o an nitial pubhc offering on the Tokyo Stock Exchange
{Mother Foreign Stock Board),

O 20 July 2021, the Company increased it issued and filly paid-up share capital by way of
allotment and isswance of 132,000 new ordinary shares o an issue price of JPY 260 (approximately

USSR.6T7 equivalent) per ordinary shares for cash consideration of 1PY 126,720,000
fapproximately UUSS1, 144,329 equivalent).

Incremental expenses directly atinbutable 1o the issuince of new ordinary shares amounting o
USEE 2100067 were recognized as a deduction from equity.

Tramnsiation rexerve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency dilferences anising from the translativn of
the finangial statements of foreign operations, as well & from the elfective portion of any forgign
currency differences arising from hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

Dividemds

The following exempt (one-tier) dividends were declured ond paid by the Group and Company:

For the year ended 31 March

15

Group and Company
023 bl P
Uss LUss
Faid to the owners of the Company
First interim {one-tier) dividend for LISSO0E0 per
qualifying ordinzry share {2022; USS0.0556) 1,895 206 EIT1,600
Second interim (ene-tier) dividend for USS0.15 per
qualifying ordinary share (2022: 1550.15) 3158677 3 IS8T
5053853 4,330,277
Loans and borrowings
Group Company
2023 022 023 022
LSS LSS LSS LSS
Non-current liahilities
Secured bank loans 11,578 600 14,895,598 3,278,601 FA54402
Lease liabilities 375,162 34,963 70946 -
11,953, 762 14,930,561 3,349,547 4544092
FS38
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Group Company
023 022 023 022
Lss Uss Lss LSS
Current linbilities
Currenl portiod of
secured bank loans 3,015,336 2,991,377 2.281,64% 2,388,950
Lease liabilitics 206,560 115,753 U960 -
Trust receipts and bills
payahle 51,156,167 55,253,783 44 114,055 474501033
54,4638 (6 S0 46,555,664 49 KI9.083
Tatal 60421825 73291474 49905211 55204 475
Terms and debt repayment schedule
Terms and conditions of outstanding loans and borrowings are as follows:
202y 1eaz
Ninmimal
bnteresd Vear all Facs Carnying Ve Carrying
Curroy rate maturity value amnunl walug amm
L] Lss Uss (L3 Uss
iraup
Secured busk [nan GO 200ess5.75%  J003 - 2006 SASLE4] SASIE4] TEGSSTH TAASSTT
Securesd bamk lnan usn 1% s 527,70 21 s TR
Sogured bamk loan MYR 1eFaw lAm  MAT-201F  R6l4306  RAAIN R4S 451370
Lense linbilities MYR  35¥ei0 S0 2000 - 2028 H3,178 78,580 0,700 A5 00
Rz labsilitises 118 T.00% 5 LELTTE R bR T 108,043 [
Lz liabilises VAL Lo pLIE AN HAM IFT4 12,06}
Lewse lisbilities CNY 132% b v} 1IH A5 19,354 (L 1r5
ez lisbilities L Ll M0y - 203 151,547 | 301,500 -
Tt recciges and hills 44
ayable usn L by AUOET 00 ARFATIN0  SMALS SASRYALS
Trust receips and bills
nayshle MYR 4.5 o 6.81% fLira] 49,152 49,192 I ENN LiRLELS
Trust receqpes ard bills
payahke EUR EAELT LR L Lk T 336 T3 19T 193271
Trust recoges and bills
payahls oNY ERT el VIRITT BTRITR 419783 419,182
BA AR 641815 71334464 TRIIATI

The secured bank Inans of the Group are secured over the building and leasehold propertics with
camying amounts of USS13,379,102 (2022; USS14,127869) (Note 4).

Trust receipts and bills pavable are secured by a pledge of fixed deposits (Nowe 13) and corporate
guarantees which bears interest rates rongimgz from 00.25% to 5.25% (2022: 0.07% to 1.75%) per

annuam,
0 b
Noiiknsd
Imteress Year all Faze Crrrylng Fare Canrving
Currency rabe iy wadiir amuuni vl arrauanl
= Uss Liss Uss Usd
Campany
Hecured bask loan S0 TP de 5,755 2003 - 2024 S032453F  S0324%51 7075413 70743
Secured baak loan W0 Mt L] R 2 TIZE TInARA
Trust recoges and bills
payshle LFSTD (LR R o H4LT14058 44,204,053 4TATE0M 47451039
Lemu liahiliis S0 5% 2012-1025 | 010 (] - -
Fotal inleecsl-Bearmy
linaiaties AR 00t 311 490810 SA AT 44 1 gTs
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Reconciliation of movenrenis of labilities to cash Tows arising from financing aciivities

Liabilitics
Loans and Imierest Lease
harrowings payahle liabilitics Tatal
LSS (.51 (83 Uss
Balance at | April 2021 50,650,188 T35 276407 51,006,330
hanges from fnancing cash fMows
L from loans wnd borrowings I 59T THS 10 507, TS
paryment oof loans and borrowings (F77.384,824) - -  {ITT.384,824)
peymient of lease labalities - - {212.725) {212,725)
Interesi paid - (1.202. 541 - (1,202,540
(Tal changes Trom financing cash
Muws 322129461 (1,202, 5404 {212,725) 20, TT 650
Effeet from changes in forcign
exchange rate 277,600 - (9.235) 268,374
ther changes
(Inierest expense 1348455 1348 455
New lemes - - 133,500 131,510
Transfer of leases - - (37.241) (37.241)
[Tutal lability-related other chamges - 1348 455 e 260 1. 444,724
Balunce at 31 March Z022 T3, 140,758 223,650 130,716 TH.515,124
Balonce at | April 2022 T3, 140,758 223,650 150,716 TRS150124
hanges from fAnancing cash Mows
soouds from loans amd bomrowings 197 254,704 - — 197254, TR
payiment of loans and borrowings (204,132,765) (20,132, 765)
paymicnt of beasa liabilities (20378 (200,378}
Interest paid (2,633, 2904 (2,683, 1K)
Total changes from Anancing cash
Mows (6 R7T.506) (268120 (1M 378 {0701 ,634)
Effect from changes in foreign
exchange rate (512,689) - H159 {504, 5300
Oither changes
Interest expense 3212 0 3,232 0ah
New lesses - = T13.3225 713,225
Ttal Ihlﬂl]l_.!- I: | other chamg 3,237 0% 713,225 3045132
Balanece at 31 March 2023 5. 750,003 TT2.450 hv1.722 7,194, 7K1
FR40
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Trade and other payables
Group Company

1023 2022 1023 2022

Uss Uss Uss LUss
Trade payables
= Third parties 22,588,616 32,227,055 14,293,263 24,221,229
- Related parties 5483023 3749019 SEIMI9S 8426306

28,071,039 35,976,074 20,127 458 32,647,535

Oither payables 483,734 512,702 259,288 200,504
Interest payable T2456 223,650 456,627 129,007
Acenuls 8,008,070 5,900,587 093,415 5,384,606
Comtingent consideration 183,67 183,007 | 83,007 153,007

38,508,906 42,796,020 29, 149.795 IE624.650

Trade and other payables

Mon-current 102,330 B9 BE8 - -

Current IEA060TE 42 70,132 29,149,795 38634659
38,508,906 42,796,020 29,149,795 38,634,659

Revenune
Revenue represents imveaced sales alter allowance for triwde discounts.
Ihe following tables provide imformation about the nature and timing of the saisfaction of

performance obligations in coniracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and
the related revenue recopnition policies:

ih‘ltlrt of woods or serviees | The Group trades in resin, chips and other related accessorics.
"When revenne is recognised | The Group recogmises revenue at the point in time when ihe
! promised poods is transferred 10 the customers,

Significant payment terms Payment is wsually due 30 1o 90 days after delivery.

Revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary geographical markets as

Tollows:
Group
023 22
LIss U'55
Frimary geographical markets
Ascan 282,705,042 300,998,894
Others 44,995,115 174529400

327,700,757 318451834

F541

176/345



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

19

20

Other income

ko= Py Synsem Limiied
arad by sbasidlaries
Frasancial stafemenan

Yoaur enoled 21 Morch 2023

Group
023 022
LSS Lss
Foreign exchange gain - 102 095
Interest income 4% 442 28,173
Commission revense 182,294 264048
Government grant and credits 172.564 441,749
Scrap fee income 65,650 36427
Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment 541478
Other income 207,089 1 RS 00K}
1.307,573 1.077.492
Finance costs
Giroup
2013 022
Uss Lss
Lease liabilities interest 15,270 10,302
Term loan interest 520919 457,146
Trusi receipt interest 2686907 KE1.007
323209 1,348,455
Profit before tax
This is derermined after charging'(crediting):
Group
Mot 2013 2022
Liss Lss
Allowance for obsolete mventones 11 2,764,801 428,655
Reversal ol allowance for obsolete inventories 11 (23.033) {172,975
Consumable equipment A3, 6t 28,288
Property, plant and equipment written ofl 3950 573
Inventory writien (hack VofT {22 98R) 544545
Amortisation of intangible asseis 9 483,261 483,261
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4 1192 583 1,223 887
Depreciation of night-of-use asscts 5 158,077 189682
Directors” fiee 238,255 232294
Eniplovee compensalion
= Balaries and bonus 0,463, 666 5380448
= CPF contribution 565,545 471,574
= Levy and 30F 55,604 f5.586]
{Reversal ofylmpainment loss on trade receivables net 26 (2607.147) 41,760
Foreign exchange loss 1189071 -
Expenses relating to short-1erm leases 358,308 357,722
F542
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Year ended 31 March 2023
Tax expense
Group
2023 021
Uss Uss
Current tax expense
Current year 3,080,756 2112171
{Ohver)Under provision in prier years {38.550) 307,919
1,042,206 2,420, 05K
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of wmporary differences (286,612) 11,816
Change in unrecopnised deductible wemporary differemces [ 183,039) {5,054)
(469,651) 6,762
2,572,553 2420,852
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before 1ax 19,007 457 19,079,264
Add: Share of results in equity-sccounted invesiees _[313,132) [192.483)
Profit before share of results of associates and tax 18 6494 365 18,586,781
Tax calculated using Singapore tax rate of 17% (2022: 17%) 3,124 810 3,210,753
Dvifferent in tax rates in foreign junsdictions (157,397) 106,079
Income not taxable for tax purposes (64,043) {325,001
Expenses nol deductible for tax purposes 528,101 189,560
Tax exemption and deduction {30, 05 (25.712)
Tax rebatefincentives (1,042,238 (1,031,701)
Current year tax losses which no deferred tax is recognized 544,004 -
Change in urrecognised deductible temporary differences [ 183,0349) {5,054)
{Ohver)/under provizion in respect of prior years' income ax {38,350) 307,919

3572555 2426852

Unrecognised deferred tax asscis

The tax losses are subject to agreement by the tax authorities and compliance with the relevant
regulations. Deferred ax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items,
becauss it is nol probable that future txable profit will be available sgainst which the Group casn

use the benefits therefrom.
Giroup
023 102
Uss Uss
Tax losses 2 167,400 -
Earnings per share

The calculation of basic carnings per share and diluted carnings per share are based on the profit
attribuiiable (o ordinary sharcholders divided by weighted-average number of ordinary shares,

F543
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Profif attribuiable to ordinary shareholders

Groop
2023 22
LS5 Lss
Profit for the period, atnbutable to the owners of the
Company 164348942 16652412
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares
Issued ordinary shares a1 | April 2021 21,057,844 5011461
Share sphit - 15,034,383
Shares tssucd during the year - Thh.444
Weighted-average numbser of ordinary sharcs 21,057,844 20,812,288
Group
2023 2022
LSS L'sS
Eamings per share
- Basic earmings per share (LISS) [.TR05 0_EO0]
= Diluted earmings per share (US5) (17805 1,500

* The weighted average number of ordinary shares for 31 March 2021 have been adjusted for the
increase in the number of ordinary shares resulting from the Share Split on 12 May 2021,

The Group did mot have any dilutive potential ordinary shiare in current and previous financial
year.

Leases

Leuses as lesser

The Group leases office building. staff residential unit and factory facilitics. The leases tvpically
run for o peried of 3 years, with an option to rencw the lease ofter thot dote. Lease rentals are
renegotiated every three vears to reflect market rentals. Some leases provide for additional rent
payments thai are based on changes in local price ndices. For certim leases, the Group is
restneted from entenng into any sub-lease amngements.

The Groap leases production equipment with contraet terms of ane vear, These leases are short-
term. The Grouwp has elected not o recognise right-of-use ssects amnd lease liahilitics for these
leases.

Information about leases for which the Group is a lessee is presented below.

Right-of-use assels

Right-of-use asseis related to leased properties, (see Note 5),

F544
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Amounts recognised in profit or loess

Group
013 2022
LSS LSS
Leases
Interest on lease liabilities 15,270 10,302
Expenses relating 1o shori-term leases 358,308 357,922
Amounis recognised in statement of cash Mows
Lroup
023 1022
Liss Lss
Total cash owtflow for leases (200,373) (212.725)
Acquisition
Acquisition of subsidiarics

On 7 July 2022 and 28 July 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the shares and voting imterests in
Eyoei Denki (5) Pre Lid and PT Kyoei Denki Trading Indonesia from a relaed party, with transfier
of control effective from 1 July 2022 and | August 2022

The acquisition of these companies enabled the Group to expand its products range and customers
and added new principal manufacturers to the Group existing distribution business. With the
acquisition, it allows other companics within the Group to cross-scll existing products (o new
customers, manly lapanese companies. For yvear ended 31 March 2023, the o companies
contributed revenue of LS514,749 208 and net profit of LISSET6,805 1o the Group™s results, 117 the
acguisition had occurred on | Aprl 2022, manasgement estimates thai the two companies
contributed revenue woukd have been USS19.234,657 and net profit of USS999.591 10 the
Group's resulis, In determining these amounis, management has assumed ithai the fair value
adjustment, determined provisionally, that arose on the date of acquisition would have been the
same if the acquisition had occurred on | April 2022,

Consideratfon fransferred

The following toble summarses the acquisition-daie fair value of cach major class of
consideration transferred:

UsS
Cash 4431626
Total considerntion transferred 4431626

Acquisition-related costs

The Grroup incurmed acquisiion-related costs of USSE4.226 on legal fees and due dibgence costs,
Iese costs have been included in “adminisirive expenses’.

F545
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Tdeniifiable assets acguived amd Nabilities assmmed

The following table summarizes the recognised amounis of asseis acquired and liabilitics assumed
at the date of acquisition.

.33
Property, plant and equipment 21404
lnventories 2315028
Trade receivables and other receivables 1954278
Cash and cash equivalents 4,094,561
Deferred tax assets 16,518
Trade and other payables (3.970,163)
Total identifiable net assets 4.431.626

The camrying amounts of trade and other receivables, cach and cash equivalent and trade and other
pavables with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to approximate their fair valuses doe to
the short period to maturity of these financial instruments. Inventones are measured and held
close to its selling price as at acquisition date. Management has assessed that the fir value of the
propeny, plant and cquipment and defierred tax assets ane not material as at acquisition date and
no adjusiments were made,

Effecr on cavh flows for the Group
LSS
Cash considerntion 4431626
Less: Cash and Cash equivalent acquired (4494561 )
Cash outflow on acquisition 317,065
Related party transactions
Tramsactions with key managewent persennel
Key sranagemeni persannel compensarion
Group
2013 2022
LS5 LUss
Shert-term emploves benefits BUS.605 To62484
Post-cmplovment benefits (including CPFy 10,389 56,282
865,994 R52.526
F5d6
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Other relaied pariy transacitions

In addition 1o the reloled party information dizclosed elsewhere m the fmancial stalements, the
following significant tramsactions with related parties on terms mutually agreed during the
finaicial vear are as fol lows:

20

Group

023 1011

Uss Lss
Sales to related parties 9,543,014 364,500
Sales to associates 1,330,790 83,450
Sales to joint opemation - 1,409
Purchases from related partics {24.358.472) (14917192}
Purchases from associates (6,758,624)  {6,155,948)
Purchases from joant operation - {1,542}
Services charge by related pany (293,919) (278,635)
Serviees charge 1o relmted party (24,413 -
Reneal charge by selated pantics (43,041} (44,542}
Faeilities charge 1o associate 3,077 ElRE
Sales of property, plant and equipment to related partics 1195725 =
Administrative charge (o associate 47,734 24,974

Financial instruments

Financial risk management

Overview

The Group has exposure 10 the following risks arising from financinl instruments:

*  crodit risk

= liguidity risk

= market risk

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to cach of the above risks, the Group's
ohjectives, policics and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management
of capital.

Hisk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the estabhishment and oversight of the
Groap's risk mansgement framework, Management is responsible for developing and monilonng

the Group's risk management policies. Management repons regularly 10 the Board of Directors
o its activities.
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The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analvse the nsks faced by
the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor nsks and adherence to limits,
Risk monagement polecies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect chianges in market
conditions and the Group”s sctivities, The Group, through its trmining and management stamdards
and procedures, aims o develop a disciplined and constrsctive costral enviranment in which all
employees understund their roles and obligations,

Credit risk

Credit risk s the risk of financial loss to the Group or the Company if a castomer or counferpanty
to a financial instrumemt fails 1o meet its contractual obligations, the Company s non-trade amoun
due from subsidiaries and anses principally from the Group’s and the Company”s reccivables
from costomers and debt investments.

The carrving amoants of financial assels represent the Group amd the Company’s maximum
expostrgs o eredit risk, belfore fakimg into account any collitersl held,  The Growp and the
Company s exposures to credit risk arise primarily from cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receavables, amount dic from subsidiarics, amount due from joint operation and amount
due from related pasties.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure tocredit risk is influenced mainly by the mdividual charactenistics of each
customer. However, management also considers the demogmphics of the Group®s customer base,
including the defaull risk of the industry and country in which customers operate, as these factors
may have an influence on eredit nsk.

The Group limits its expesure to credit isk from trade receivables by establishing maximum
payment periods of one and three months for comporate customers respectively, The Giroup also
entered into trade credit insurance for its trade receivables with an insurance institution which is
rated A2 based on rating agency Moody s rating.

More than 58% (2022: 61%) of the Group™s customers have been transacting with the Groug for
over 3 years, and none of these customers” balances have been written oft or are credit-impaired
at the reporting date. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped accordimg to their
credit characteristics, inchsding whether they are an individual or legal entity, whether they are a
wholesale, retail or end-user customer, their geographic location, industry, trade history with the
Group, aging profile, maturliy and exisience of previous financial difficuliies.

Exprasiere to credit risk

The exposure to credit risk for trade receivables ai the reporting date by geographical location
wits as follows:

Group Company
Carrving smount Currying mmount
2023 032 2023 2032
Uss UsS Uss Uss
Ascan 49,368,272 53,4%6,622 13,281,702 T2 480,644
(ithers 6438945 4,197.452 3,886,488 1281024

S5.R07,217  ST.60407T4 TTI6E.190  TET61.668
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The carrying amount of the trade receivables of Group's three miost significant customers was
USS6,928,127 as at 31 March 2023 (2022; USS8,259,821).

Expected credii loss assessment

The Group uses an allowance matrix 1o measure the ECLs ol irede receivables from customers.

ECL is caleulated bosed on setual credit loss experience over the past three vears and adjusted for
differences between cconomic conditions duning the period over which the historic dala has been
collected, current market conditions and the Company’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

Impairment losses on financial asseis recognised in profit or loss were as follows:

2013 1022
Uss Uss
{Reversal ofy lmpairment loss on irade receivables, net (267,147 41,760

There is noe allowance for impairment loss arsing from these outstanding balances as the ECL
assessed 15 insignificant.

The following 1able provides information abou the exposure to eredit risk and ECLs for rade
receivables for individual customers as a1 31 March 2023;

Gross Impairment
carrying loss Credit
amount allowance impaired
Uss LSS

Group
2023
Mot past doe 47 480,548 - No
Past due | = 30 days G, 160,051 =- No
Past due 31 - 60 days 97,587 - Mo
Past due 61 = 90 duys 267,574 - Mo
Past due more than 90 days a0, 457 = Wo

55,807,217 - Mo
2022
Not past due 51,071,730 - Wi
Past duwe | = 30 days 5,361,080 - Mo
Past due 31 - 60 days 306,643 96,933 Yes
Past duz 61 - 90 days 175,548 Mo
Past due more than 90 days 579,062 189,449 Yes

57,654,074 1R6.382
Company
2023
Mot past doe 46,687,267 - Mo
Past due | = 30 days 333,775 = i
Past due 31 - 4 days 5,285,567 - Mo
Past due 61 = 9 days 5810326 = Mo
Past due more than 90 days 11,081,255 - Ko

77,168,190 -
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(iross Impadrment
carrying loss Credit
amount allowanece Impaired
Uss LUss

Company
2022
Mot past duc 52,316,115 - Mo
Past due | — 30 days 4,966,169 - Mo
Past due 31 - &0 days 2,015,182 - Mo
Past due &1 — 20 days 6,545,724 - No
Past due mone than 90 days 913478 - Mo

75,761 668 -

Movements in allmwance for impairment in respect of frade receivables

The movement in the allowance for impasrment i respect of trade recervables durimge the year
wins s Tollows:

Group Company

Uss LSS
At 1 Apnl 2021 350959 -
Tmipairment loss recognised 41,760 -
Exchange difference {15.337) -
AL 3] March 2022 386,382 -
Arl April 2022 186,382 -
Armount writien ofl (100, 176) -
Recovery of doubtful trade receivahles (267, 146) -
Exchange difference { 18,0600 -
At 31 March 2023 - -

Ginaraniees

The Group®s policy is 1o provide financial guaraniees only for wholly-owned subsidiares’
Tinbilities,

AL 31 March 2023, the Company has issued guaramees w cenain banks in respect of eredil
Tacilities granted to four subsidianes. The Company does not consider it probable that a clam
will be made against the Company under the credit guaraniee,

Now-trade avtounts die from subsidiories, foing operation and related parties

The Group held non-trade reecivables from joint operstion and relnted partics of USS2, 146,146
(2022: USE505.054), These bolances were for short 1o medium term funding requirements. The

impairment on these balances has been measured on the 12 month expected credin boss basis amd
the amodul of the ECL @5 insignificant
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The Company held non-trade receivables from subsidianes, joint operation and related parties of
USS3,905.277 (2022: USS2.636,782). These balunces were for short to medium term funding
reguirerients. The impairmient on these balances has been measured on the 12 month expeciad
credit loss basis and the amoumt of the ECL s insignificant,

Other recelvables and deposie

Other receivables and deposits are short-term in nature. Impairment on other receivables and
deposits have been messured on the 12 month expected loss basis and reflects the short motunitics
of exposures, The Group consider its other receivables and depositz o have low credit risk and
the amount of the allowance on other receivables and deposits is insigni ficant,

Cash and caskh equivalents and fTved deposiiy

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits have been mieasured on the 12-month
expected loss basis and refleets the shon matunities of the exposures. The Group considers that
its cash and cash equivalents ond fixed deposits have low credit nsk based on the external credit
ratings of the counterparties.

The amount of ECL on cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits is insignificant.

Ligubdity risk

Liquidity risk is a risk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting
finuneial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group and the Company s exposure to liquidity
risk arise primarily from mismatches of collections and payments timing. The Group and the
Company s objective are 1o mamntain o balance between funding through business and fexibaliny
through the use of stand-by credit fcilities 1o pav for liabilities that are due in the next twelve
it h,

Typically, the Group ensiures that it has sufTicient cash and cash equivalents (excluding demand
deposits subject to restrictions) to meet expected operational expenses for a period of 60 days,
including the servicing of financial obligations. This excludes the potential i:mpa:t of extreme
circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

Expusure (o liguidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilives, The amounis ane
gross and undiscounted, and include contractunl interest payvments and exclude the impact of

neiting agreements:
Carrying  Contractual  Within Within Maore than
Nule s cash Nows I year 1o 5 yewrs Syears
(83 LS5 5% UsS Uss

LELOTTT]
31 Murch Z0Z3
Mon-derivative fimancial

linhilities
Trade aral ather payvables 16 SRS0B90G 1N AR 006 38 506904 - -
Securod hank loans (1] 14593936 16,674,758 1350, 731 TAHNGTS 5872352
Trust receipts and hilks

paynble 15 SLISGA6T 52250048 51251948 - -
Lase Habilities is 6TITIE  T46TI0 3264l 41TATT -

TH9M.TY] (ONIRXI3) OLME30%  TR6I7A2  SH7niar
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Carrying Contractuzl  Within Wiihin Muore tham

Nile  amount cash Mows I year 11w 5 years S years
LUss Uss LSS Uss LUs%
Croup
31 March 2022
Son=derivadive Anencial
linhilities
Trade apal ather payables 16 41796020 4276020 4276020 - -
Secunod bank loans I5 17886975 10,240,456 31,3508 595 8,931 531 6,999,230
Trust receipts and hills
payable 15 55233763 SSA415RE 5564358 - -
Lease Habilities 15 150.716 146,624 134,040 17584 -
116087404 | IHET068E 101908243 6560215 AL 230
Conmupany
31 Muarch 2023
Mon=derivative lMnancial
linhilities
Trade ardl other payables 16 21497 9149795 20 144, 708 - -
Securnce bank louns I3 5,560,250 5. MGT.8T 2AL5, 080 3352 =
Trust receipts and hilks
payable 15 44214035 45019016 45119006 - -
Lesse Habilities 1340906 130,597 ), 05 Tl 182 =

TROSS0M  ROIGEIRT 767430 3433991 -

31 March 2022
Mon-derivative Anancial

linhbilities
Trade and other payables 16 3EAIAIS  JIRAZLESG 38,634,659 - -
Sevunad bank loans 15 TH45442 176,931 2560007 Spl6S34 -
Trust recempts and bl

payable I5 47451033 47,769,589 47,769,589 - =

93079134 G4 SKI, 1T RAU6A_145 S hlhsid =

The maturity analyses show the contractual undiscounted cash Mows of the Group and the
Company™s financial labilitics on the basis of their carliest possible contractunl msturity.

The Group has secured bank loans which contain debt covenants. A breach of these covennnis
may require the Group to repay the loan earlier than indicated in the table obove, Under the
agreement, the covenants are monitored on a regular basis by the Finonce department and
regularly reported 1o the management to ensure complinnes with the covennt,

The imerest paymenis on verighle interest rate loans and trust receipts in the table sbove reflect
market foroard interest rates at the period end and these amounts may change as market interest
rales changes,

Aarket risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange mtes, interest rates
and equity prices will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial

instruments, The objective of market nisk management 15 1o manage and control market nsk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum.
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Currency risk

The Group 1s expesed to trunsactional foreipn curmency risk to the extenit that there 15 4 mismch
between the currencies in which sales, purchases, receivables and borrowings, meludmg mter-
company sales, purchases and inter-company balances, that are denominated in a curfency ather
than the respective functional currencies of Group entities.  The functional currencies of Ciroup
entities are primarily the Malaysian Ringgit and US Dollar. The cidgrencies i which these
transactions primarily are denominated are the Malaysian Ringgit ("MYR™), US Dollar (*LSID')
and Singapore Dollar *SG0°).

F533

188/345



EDINETOOOO

OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)

oOoOooodn

e84

OFCIR0LT Sre ot

[ RN

ZIELOL) - LOEEERIs)  —
L 55 i) ot B (ol | Il CELT'eRR 1Y (ord'alr)
181729 SH'Ell TRE'TRS PORLE
HRLLE CTLHRE SEPRE LICIEr
s50 851 50 851
a9s HAIN ans HAW
g £I07
LITEI8LL)  (PE96EFT)  GRSBLE IS rLs 6l 1520'655) 601t
OLesew el [Ofrm] - [SPCTRES)  (ROOCREDT]  —
(GLL'OLO'T)  (FOS'TE'E)  (0E890T) BESFEIT)  (I8E'LeE D) (E29°Ers)
LTH'LES'] TreLs’l FOOFaT OLEDEE LBTOLS'T EECGIE
LI6'T0E O88'25E"] 1aL"18€ LTSS LET'04S O
s=50 50 850 s8N0 L | 850
0% asn HAW ans asn HAI
g 1

FEGT Ry [ purpics Jeig
FHIA TR [EL2EDLY
SHARERITENT 1) PR
TR ] AR S-S

ameodya upmsod [RIAOROY J6 UAWNTS By
SAUIWOLENG PUE SEmoT]

sapgmind 10 pue apel |

SpEArbD 1 puT s

SHQRAIIIAL Y0 PUR IPEL],

Aunduny

amendyd nansod (B Jo IS Py
SRUIMOLIOY PUE SUD0T]

sajgmiod mgio pue aped |

sjuaeamba (e pan gsey

S|CAISIAL IALI0 PR SPE |

dnnary

189/345



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

horerrd- Py Syatem Limited
ard by arbsidiaries
Fraaanena! starementa
Yoarr ended 21 March 2023

Sensitivily analvsis for forcign curvency risk

The followmg table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group and the Company®s profit or boss 1o
possible change to the MYR, USD and SGD exchange rates agamst the functional cumeneies,
with all siher variables held constan.

Giratip Company
023 U] 023 022
Prafit or loss  Profit or loss  Profit or less Profit or loss
LS8 LSS LI5S LSS
MYR (3% strengthening) 12,507 11,388 2,274 7408
USD (3% strengthening) (16,771 (73.789) - -
SG0 3% strengthening) (167231} (233,445) 194,154 (2334407
MYR (3% weakening) {12,507) (11,388} (9.274) {7.408)
USD (3% weakemng) 16,771 73,789 - -
SG0 (3% weakemng) 167,231 233,445 194,154 235,440

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the nisk that the fair value or fowre cash lows of the Group and the Company s
financial mstruments will fuctuse because of changes n market nerest mtes, The Group and
the Company s exposure Lo inlerest rmie risk arise primanly from their fixed deposits and interest-
bearing loans and borrowings.

The Crroup and the Company do mot have a policy o mangee inferest nde as interest income and
expenses do not constitute a substantial part of the dal operating income and expenscs,
respectively,

Lxposire fo inferest rafe risk

At the reporting date, the inlerest mte profile of the interest-beanng financial mstruments, os
reporied to the manogement, wos as follows:

Group Compuany
MNominal amount Mominal amount

023 2021 2023 022

&S &S LSS [ .59
Fixed rate instruments
Fixed deposits 42862449 3 580,30 31194733 2E13. 584
Trust receipts and bills payables (S1,156,167) (35.253,783) (44.214.055) (47.451.033)
Secured bank louns {5,07% 530) (6.85]1.335) {4660, 140) (6,259 171)

(51,949.49K)  (58,524,722) (454794621 (50,896,620

Variable rate instruments
Secured bank loans (9,514, 406) (11,035 6400 (000100 (DER4.271H
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Fair value sensitivity analysis for ficed rate insirumens

The Group does not aceounit for any fixed rote Anancial assets and liabilities ot FVTPL. Therefore,
change in interest rates al the reporting date would not affect profit o loss,

Cash flone sensilivity aralvsis for vartable role insiriments
A reasonably possible change of 50 basis pomnts (*bp™) in interest rates af the reporting date would

have increased {decreased) prafit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant,

Group Company
Profit or loss Profit or loss
50 bp S0 bp 50 bp 50 bp
imcrese decrense increase decrease

Lss uUss Lss LSS
31 March 2023
Wariable rate instruments 47,5721 47,572 (4,501} 4,501
Cash flow sensitivity {47572 47,572 {4.501) 4.501
31 March 2022
Yarmble rile instruments {55,178) 58,178 (7.921) 7.921
Cash flow sensitivity {33,174 58174 {7.921) 7.021

Price visk

The Group sand Company are not exposed to price risk as it does not hold any listed securities.
Cupilal management

The Group and the Company s objectives when managing capital are to ensure that the Group
and the Company are sdequmtely copitalised and 10 maintain an optimal capital structure by
tssuing or redeeming additional equity and debt mstruments when necessary. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies and processes during the fimancial vears ended 2023 and 2022,
Capital is defined os toal issued and fully poid-up ordinary shares and remined camings.

For loans and borrowings with the external financial institutions, the Growp and Company, are

requited to ensure that that there were no significant changes to its existing major sharcholders
and the sharcholding of its subsidianes.
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Valustion technigoes and significant unobservable inputs

The followrng tables show the valsation techniques used in mensuring Level 2 fair values, as well
as the sigmficant unobservable mpats used.

Financial instruments nof measured af fair value

Tvpe Valuation technlque
Group and Company
Other financial habilites® Discounted cash fows: The valustion maode] considers

the present value of expected payment, discouwnted using
u risk-adjusted discount rate, 2.89% 1o 5.80% (2022;
1.33%)

* (eber finoncial liobilines inclode secured bank loans.
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2022
Uss(C )

18,798,120
(2,300,702)
154,661
(18,929)

(-

(-
973,274
(119,119)
5,230,441
(640,154)

56,781
(6,949)

2021 2022 2021
uss¢ ) UssC ) ussC )

13,122,743
(1,606,093)
257,170 - -
(31,475) (- (-

~ 13,133,394 13,133,394

(-) (1,607,396) (1,607,396)

- 24,223 24,223

(- (2,965) (2,965)
782,129 1,047,209 1,047,209
(95,725)  (128,168)  (128,168)
5,713,702 - -
(699,300) (- (-
75,711 - -
(9,266) (- (-

4,085,156
(499,982)

4,456,787
(545,466)

25,213,277
(3,085, 853)

19,951,455 18,289,982 18,661,613
(2,441,859) (2,238,511) (2,283,995)

65,157,932
(7,974,679)
62,562,485
(7,657,023)
26,387,134
(3,229,521)

34,503,822
(4,222,923)
59,266,968
(7,253,684)
23,535,300
(2,880, 485)

40,356,134
(4,939,187)
79,209,199
(9,694,414)
15,712,078
(1,923,001)

20,571,714
(2,517,772)
67,083,539
(8,210, 354)
16,717,282
(2,046,028)

154,107,551 117,306,090 135,277,411 104,372,535
(18,861,223) (14,357,092) (16,556,602) (12,774,155)

179,320,828 137,257,545 153,567,393 123,034,148
(21,947,076) (16,798,951) (18,795,113) (15,058,149)

26,073,548
(3,191,142)
48,326

( 5,915)

18,510,425 26,073,548 18,510,425
(2,265,491) (3,191,142) (2,265,491)
70,134 - -

( 8,584) (- (-

33,792,556
(4,135,871)

21,470,421 31,183,612 20,242,858
(2,627,765) (3,816,562) (2,477,523)

59,817,778
(7,321,098)

39,910,712 57,257,160 38,753,283
(4,884,672) (7,007,704) (4,743,014)
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16
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89,888 - - -
(11,001) ) ) -)
14,930,561 10,698,198 5,454,492 5,644,161
(1,827,351) (1,309,352)  (667,575)  (690,789)
712,032 740,204 139,571 139,571
(87,146) (90,594) (17,082) (17,082)
15,732,481 11,438,402 5,594,063 5,783,732
(1,925,498) (1,399,946)  (684,657)  (707,871)
42,706,132 43,625,059 38,634,659 43,246,659
(5,226,803) (5,339,271) (4,728,496) (5,292,959)
58,360,913 40,228,397 49,839,983 33,475,951
(7,142,792) (4,923,554) (6,099,916) (4,097,122)
2,703,524 2,054,975 2,241,528 1,774,523
(330,884)  (251,508)  (274,341)  (217,184)
103,770,569 85,908,431 90,716,170 78,497,133
(12,700,480) (10,514,333) (11,102,752) (9,607,264)
119,503,050 97,346,833 96,310,233 84,280,865

(14,625,978) (11,914,279) (11,787,409) (10,315,135)

179,320,828 137,257,545 153,567,393 123,034,148
(21,947,076) (16,798,951) (18,795,113) (15,058,149)
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2022 2021
USs$ ( ) Us$

17 318,451,834 249,589,042
(38,975,320)  (30,547,203)
284,367,184 221,479,696
( 34,803,700) ( 27,106,900)
34,084,650 28,109, 346
(4,171,620)  (3,440,303)
18 1,077,492 1,840,283
(131,874) (225,232)
4,259,928 3,554,485
( 521,373)  ( 435,033)
7,615,169 8,535,314
( 932,021) ( 1,044,637)
3,051,809 2,647,284
( 373,511)  ( 324,001)
19 1,348,455 1,523,181
( 165,037)  ( 186,422)
192,483 26,734
(23,558) (3,272)
20 19,079, 264 13,716,099
(2,335,111)  (1,678,713)
21 2,426,852 2,000,066
( 297,022)  ( 244,788)
16,652,412 11,716,033
(2,038,089)  (1,433,925)
23,145 176,047
2,833 (21,546)
1,337 8,769
164 (1,073)
21,808 184,816
(2,669) (22,620)
16,674,220 11,900,849
(2,040,758)  (1,456,545)
22 0.8001 0.5845
(97.93) (71.53)
22 0.8001 0.5845
(97.93) (71.53)
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2022 31
Us( ) UssC ) UussC ) USsC )

2020 18,510,425 254,950 9,754,388 28,009,863

(2,265,491) ( 31,203) (1,193,840) (3,428,127)

- ~ 11,716,033 11,716,033

®) (- (1,433,925) (1,433,925)

- 184,816 - 184,816

o) (22,620) (@) (22,620)

- 184,816 - 184,816

o) (22,620) (@) (22,620)

- 184,816 11,716,033 11,900,849

) (22,620) (1,433,925) (1,456,545)

2021 31 18,510,425 70,134 21,470,421 39,910,712

(2,265,491)  ( 8,584) (2,627,765) (4,884,672)
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UssC ) ussC ) UssC ) UussC )

2021 18,510,425 70,134 21,470,421 39,910,712
(2,265,491) (  8,584) (2,627,765) (4,884,672)

- ~ 16,652,412 16,652,412

) (- (2,038,089) (2,038,089)

- 21,808 - 21,808

) (2,669) ) (2,669)

- 21,808 - 21,808

) (2,669) ) (2,669)

- 21,808 16,652,412 16,674,220

S (2,669) (2,038,089) (2,040,758)

14 8,773,190 - ~ 8,773,190

(1,073,751) &) () (1,073,751)

14 1,210,067 - ~ 1,210,067

( 148,100) &) (-) ( 148,100)

14 - ~ 4,330,277 4,330,277

&) (- ( 529,983) ( 529,983)

7,563,123 — 4,330,277 3,232,846

(925,651) (- ( 529,983)  (395,668)

2022 31 26,073,548 48,326 33,792,556 59,817,778

(3,191,142)  ( 5,915) (4,135,871) (7,321,098)
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2022 2021

uss(¢ ) Uss(¢ )
19,079,264 13,716,099
(2,335,111)  (1,678,713)
255,720 441,891
(31,298) (54,083)
483,261 483,259
(59,146) (59,146)
1,223,887 1,073,497
(149,792) (131,385)
189,682 252,305
(23,215) (30,880)
41,760 329,482
(5,111) (40,325)
573 25,285
(70) (3,095)
- 49,048
) ( 6,003)
544,543 146,003
(66,647) ( 17,869)
192,483 26,734
( 23,558) ( 3,272)
28,173 119,931
( 3,448) ( 14,678)
1,348,455 1,523,181
(165,037) (186,422)
353,153 411,223
(43,222) (50,330)
23,299,642 17,914,506
(2,851,643)  (2,192,556)
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31,484,637 7,787,849
( 3,853,405)  ( 953,155)
3,595,305 19,256,330

( 440,029) ( 2,356,782)
908,710 14,097,470
( 111,217)  (1,725,389)

12,689,010 4,967,797

( 1,553,008) (608,009)
1,509,371 1,131,249

( 184,732)  ( 138,454)
14,198,381 3,836,548

( 1,737,740) (469,555)
28,173 119,931
(3,448) (14,678)
7,030,761 1,283,611

( 860,495)  ( 157,101)
- 14,456

) (1,769)

7,002,588 1,149,224

( 857,047)  ( 140,654)
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8,773,190 -
(1,073,751) )
1,210,067 -

( 148,100) )
150,722 1,125,635

( 18,447) (137,766)

- 15,374

() ( 1,882)
199,597,785 42,133,696
(24,428,773)  (5,156,743)
177,384,824 38,151,692
( 21,710,129) ( 4,669,386)
212,725 240,576

( 26,035) ( 29,444)
4,330,277 -

( 529,983) )
1,202,540 1,439,086

( 147,179)  ( 176,130)
23,879,820 3,412,603
(2,922,651) (417,668)
2,678,851 6,099,927
(327,865) (746,570)
20,511,234 14,190,844
(2,510,370)  (1,736,817)
22,261 220,463
(2,725) (26,982)

13 23,212,346 20,511,234
(2,840,959)  (2,510,370)
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2022 15

Omni-Plus System Limited
Block 994 Bendemeer Road #01-03 B Central Singapore 339943

2022 31 20
2.1
FRS
2.5
2.2
2.3
Us$
2.4

FRS
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2.5

2020

2.5

3.1

Q)

COVID-19
FRS 109

FRS 39
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FRSs FRS
FRS 116
FRS 107 FRS 104 FRS 116
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3.5
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25

10

13

10

10
20
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10
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3.8

Q)

ECL

12 ECL 12 ECL
ECL
ECL

ECL
ECL

ECL
12 ECL

ECL

ECL
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3.12

3.13

3.14

FRS 37
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3.16

2021
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FRS FRS
FRS 117
CovID-19 FRS
FRS 103
FRS 16
— FRS 37
FRS
FRS 2018-2020
FRS FRS

FRS

(FRS 12
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Us$ Uss
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uss Uss uss Uss Uss Uss Uss Us$ Uss

2020
1,089,594 3,573,5333,635,050 620,401853,910 350,9751,655,2863,180,523169,558 98,432 890,15316,117,415
- - 94,969 12,908 5,972 543,917 494,484 ~ 16,702 114,659 1,283,611
(1,089,594) - - 2,198 - -1,089,594 - - (2,198) - -
- - ~(22,622) —(23,214) — (62,000) ~(11,910) (16,555) (136,301)
~ 123,394 125,442 2,826 29,486 4,414 - 42,468 15,107 3,682 936 347,755
2021
31
— 3,696,9273,760,492 697,772896,304 338,1473,288,7973,655,475184,665 104,708 989,19317,612,480
2021
— 3,696,9273,760,492 697,772896,304 338,1473,288,7973,655,475184,665 104,708 989,19317,612,480
- 6,437,217 — 04,216 2,702 6,090 — 407,278 32,426 3,674 47,158 7,030,761
- - ~ (4,031) - - - (12,306) — (330) — (16,667)
— (84,733) (40,317)  (469)(9,634) (1,307) - (15,129) (119) (384) 3 (152,089)
2022
31

-10,049,4113,720,175 787,488889,372 342,9303,288,7974,035,318216,972 107,6681,036,35424,474,485
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Us$ Us$ Us$ Uss$ Us$ Uss$ Us$ Us$ Uss$ Us$ uss$ US$

2020
- - 181,310 547,468 292,976 274,035 416,718 1,352,536 61,256 73,752 265,771 3,465,822
- - 97,209 46,123 88,668 43,889 106,046 482,544 30,314 14,394 164,310 1,073,497
- - - 493 - - - - - (493) - -
- - - (21,610) - (22,535) - (50,633) - (7,585) (8,653) (111,016)
- - 6,532 2,035 10,434 3,275 - 26,795 9,120 2,752 491 61,434
2021
31 - - 285,051 574,509 392,078 298,664 522,764 1,811,242 100,690 82,820 421,919 4,489,737
2021
- ~ 285,051 574,509 392,078 298,664 522,764 1,811,242 100,690 82,820 421,919 4,489,737
- - 97,190 71,533 89,398 28,028 155,709 565,730 34,536 12,344 169,419 1,223,887
- - - (3.458) - - - (12,306) - (330) - (16,094)
- - (3,715)  (42) (4,832) (1,214) - (11,241) 270 (313) (78) (21,165)
2022
31 - - 378,526 642,542 476,644 325,478 678,473 2,353,425 135,496 94,521 591,260 5,676,365
2020
1,089,594 3,573,533 3,453,740 72,933 560,934 76,940 1,238,568 1,827,987 108,302 24,680 624,382 12,651,593
2021
31 - 3,696,927 3,475,441 123,263504,226 39,483 2,766,033 1,844,233 83,975 21,888 567,274 13,122,743
2022
31 -10,049,411 3,341,649 144,946 412,728 17,452 2,610,324 1,681,893 81,476 13,147 445,094 18,798,120
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Us$ Us$ Uss$ Us$ US$ Us$ Us$ US$ Us$

2020 1,089,594 570,912 211,893 1,649,503 1,950,646 22,434 46,671 409,253 5,950,906
~ 74,555 - 543,918 442,101 - 6,311 - 1,066,885

(1,089,594) - ~ 1,089,594 - - - - -

- - - - (62,000) - - —  (62,000)

2021 31 — 645,467 211,893 3,283,015 2,330,747 22,434 52,982 409,253 6,955,791
2021 - 645,467 211,893 3,283,015 2,330,747 22,434 52,982 409,253 6,955,791
- 40,89 1,438 - 264,016 - 1,518 8,420 316,288

2022 31 - 686,363 213,331 3,283,015 2,594,763 22,434 54,500 417,673 7,272,079
2020 - 519,053 176,593 410,935 594,492 22,434 40,065 261,991 2,025,563
- 34,061 15,660 106,046 308,935 ~ 4,435 54,937 524,074

- - - - (50,633) - - - (50,633)

2021 31 - 553,114 192,253 516,981 852,794 22,434 44,500 316,928 2,499,004
2021 - 553,114 192,253 516,981 852,794 22,434 44,500 316,928 2,499,004
- 48,332 14,958 155,709 416,413 - 5,000 47,417 687,919

2022 31 - 601,446 207,211 672,690 1,269,207 22,434 49,590 364,345 3,186,923
2020 1,089,594 51,859 35,300 1,238,568 1,356,154 - 6,606 147,262 3,925,343
2021 31 - 92,353 19,640 2,766,034 1,477,953 ~ 8,482 92,325 4,456,787
2022 31 - 84,017 6,120 2,610,325 1,325,556 - 4,910 53,328 4,085,156
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14,127,869 2021 :7,987,243
15
5
Uss$ Us$ Us$ US$ US$
2020 192,254 32,549 21,684 407,767 654,254
7,331 - 31,762 - 39,003
(36,820)  (32,549) - ~  (69,369)
(3,597) - 862 9,550 6,815
2021 31 159,168 - 54,308 417,317 630,793
133,510 - - - 133,510
(117,463) - —  (303,950)  (421,413)
(256) - (582) - (838)
2022 31 174,959 - 53,726 113,367 342,052
2020 69,507 18,599 14,065 90,615 192,786
86,133 13,950 20,098 132,124 252,305
(36,820)  (32,549) - ~  (69,369)
(2,673) - 558 16 (2,099)
2021 31 116,147 - 34,721 222,755 373,623
74,013 - 15,878 99,791 189,682
(118,529) - (249,214)  (367,743)
(486) (483) (7,202) (8,171)
2022 31 71,145 - 50,116 66,130 187,391
2019 122,747 13,950 7,619 317,152 461,468
2020 31 43,021 - 19,587 194,562 257,170
2021 31 103,814 - 3,610 47,237 154,661
6
2022 2021
Us$ US$
13,133,394 13,133,394
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2022 2021

Nihon Pigment Sdn. Bhd. 100 100
OPS  Technologies  Sdn. 100 100
Bhd.
Omni-Plus System Shanghai 100 100
Limited
PT. Omni Plus System 100 100
Cepco Trading Sdn. Bhd. 100 100
Omni Plus System 100 100
Philippines Inc.
DP Chemicals Pte. Ltd. 100 100
I-FTZ Trade Philippines, 100 100
Inc.
Alpha Chemie Pte. Ltd. 100 100
PT. Sentosa Kimia 100 100
Tags Polymer Sdn. Bhd. 100 100

/ 100 100
OMNI-PLUS SYSTEM Japan
Omni Plus System 100 100
(Thailand) Co., Ltd
DP Chemicals Vietnam Co., 100 100

Ltd.
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2022 2021
Us$ Uss$
24,223 24,223
2022 2021
Omni-Plus System Plastics 39 39
Co., Ltd
Omni-Plus System Plastics Co., Ltd 39 2021 :39 Thanasan
Maiseaumso Yanee Yuthakaichaisri
Omni-Plus System Plastics Co., Ltd
Omni-Plus System Plastics Co., Ltd
8
2022 2021 2022 2021
Us$ Uss$ Uss$ US$
1,168,830 1,168,830 1,047,209 1,047,209
(195,556) (386,701) - -
973,274 782,129 1,047,209 1,047,209
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Small World Accelerator
Pte. Ltd. (SWA)

R&P Technologies Pte. Ltd.

(RPT)
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2022

- 0OCI-
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2022 2021
48 48
40 40
FRS
RPT SWA
US$ Us$ US$

8,337,706 -

498,437 (14,360)

712,902 702,179
3,986,662 54,883
(2,988,827)  (155,022)
1,710,737 602,040
484,921 297,208 782,129
199,375 (6,893) 192,482
- (1,337) (1,337)
199,375 (8,230) 191,145

684,296 288,978 973,274
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2021

0CI-

RPT SWA
Us$ Us$ Us$
6,080,015 -
260,627  (161,493)
880,225 706,879
6,020,246 62,222
(5,688,168)  (149,917)
1,212,303 619,184
380,670 397,950 778,620
104,251 (77,517) 26,734
- (8,769) (8,769)
104,251 (86,286) 17,965
- (14,456) (14,456)
484,921 297,208 782,129

231/345
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US$ uUs$ Uss$ Uss$
2020 2,023,790 4,832,609 3,720 6,860,119
- - (3,848) (3,848)
- - 128 128
2021 31 2022 31 2,023,790 4,832,609 - 6,856,399
2020 - 659,438 - 659,438
- 483,259 - 483,259
2021 31 - 1,142,697 - 1,142,697
2021 - 1,142,697 - 1,142,697
- 483,261 - 483,261
2022 31 - 1,625,958 - 1,625,958
2020 2,023,790 4,173,171 3,720 6,200,681
2021 31 2,023,790 3,689,912 - 5,713,702
2022 31 2,023,790 3,206,651 - 5,230,441

cGU
CGU

2022 2021

Us$ Us$
DP Chemicals Group 694,434 694,434
Cepco Trading Sdn.Bhd. 769,750 769,750
PT Sentosa Kimia 336,670 336,670
Tags Polymer Sdn Bhd 222,936 222,936
2,023,790 2,023,790

CGU CGU
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2022 2021
11.0 - 20.5 9.0 -18.0
EBITDA 4.0 - 6.0 4.0 -8.0
2.5 2.5
10
CGU
CGU GDP EBITDA
EBITDA
2022
31 2021 31
CGU
2022 2021

3.0 - 6.0 1.0 - 4.0
(0.5 -2.5) (0.5 - 2)
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2022 2021 2022 2021
US$ Us$ Us$ US$
(2,099) - - -
(125,039)  (105,394) - -
- — 340,693 273,041
(11,426)  (12,019) - -
(19,857)  (23,776) - -
—  (28,206) - -
- — 442,596 518,098
- - 30,383 42,749
(158,421) (169,395) 813,672 833,888
101,640 93,684 (101,640) (93,684)
(56,781)  (75,711) 712,032 740,204
2022 2021
US$ US$
139,571 139,571
139,571 139,571
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2020 2021

22 31

Us$ Us$ Us$ USs$
(31,754) (67,152) (6,488)  (105,394)
231,774 37,730 3,537 273,041
593,600 (75,502) - 518,098
(42,297) 31,633 (1,355) (12,019)
(17,873) - (5,903) (23,776)
(46,034) 17,828 ~  (28,206)
63,730 (23,106) 2,125 42,749
751,146 (78,569) (8,084) 664,493

2021 2022

22 31

US$ US$ Us$ Us$
- (2,101) 2 (2,099)
(105,394) (16,733) (2,912)  (125,039)
273,041 69,181 (1,529) 340,693
518,098 ~  (75,502) 442,596
(12,019) 612 (19) (11,426)
(23,776) 8,152 (4,232) (19,856)
(28,206) 28,206 - -
42,749 (10,826) (1,541) 30,382
664,493 76,491  (85,733) 655,251
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11
2022 2021 2021 2020
Us$ US$ Uss$ US$
3,888,504 4,995,958 - -
307,179 196,990 - -
62,387,722 30,482,677 41,345,424 21,238,125
66,583,405 35,675,625 41,345,424 21,238,125
(1,171,803)  (765,292) (666,411) (501,674)
21 | (428,695)  (441,891) (322,879) (164,737)
21 172,975 49,048 - -
2,050  (13,668) - _
(1,425,473) (1,171,803)  (989,290) (666,411)
65,157,932 34,503,822 40,356,134 20,571,714
2022 31 281,696,229 2020 217,263,507
428,695 2020 441,891
172,975 2021 49,048
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2022 2021 2022 2021
Us$ US$ US$ US$
57,314,116 54,411,839 38,449,394 42,264,385

379,958 1,242,674 37,312,274 22,346,242
57,694,074 55,654,513 75,761,668 64,610,627
(386,382)  (359,959) - -
57,307,692 55,294,554 75,761,668 64,610,627
2,060,447 1,235,099 162,755 368,222
- - 1,808,825 766,963

505,054 362,240 827,957 593,837

- 78 - 78

108,104 726,781 2,575 14,361
59,981,297 57,618,752 78,563,780 66,354,088
2,057 388,810 2,057 388,810
448,001 546,743 148,439 340,641
2,131,130 712,663 494,923 -
62,562,485 59,266,968 79,209,199 67,083,539
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2022 2021 2022 2021
US$ US$ US$ US$
4,549 6,522 - 2,498
22,802,189 20,112,335 12,898,494 13,907,050
3,580,396 3,416,443 2,813,584 2,807,734
26,387,134 23,535,300 15,712,078 16,717,282
(3,174,788) (3,024,066) (2,485,998) (2,485,407)
23,212,346 20,511,234 13,226,080 14,231,875
0.03 1.80 2021  0.03 1.80
15
12 2021 12
14
2022 2022 2021 2021
Uss$ US$

5,011,461 18,510,425 5,011,461 18,510,425
15,034,383 - - -
1,012,000 8,773,190 - -
21,057,844 27,283,615 5,011,461 18,510,425

(1,210,067) - -
31 21,057,844 26,073,548 5,011,461 18,510,425
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2021 12
2021 24
960 8.67 880,000 844,800,000
7,628,861
2021 29 960 8.67 126,720,000
1,144,329 132,000
1,210,067
31
2022 2021
US$ US$
0.0556
2021 1,171,600 -
0.15
2021 3,158,677 -

4,330,277 -

239/345



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

15

2022 2021 2022 2021
US$ Us$ US$ Us$

14,895,598 10,620,833 5,454,492 5,644,161

34,963 77,365 - -

14,930,561 10,698,198 5,454,492 5,644,161

2,991,377 2,328,769 2,388,950 1,770,800

115,753 199,042 - -

55,253,783 37,700,586 47,451,033 31,705,151

58,360,913 40,228,397 49,839,983 33,475,951

73,291,474 50,926,595 55,294,475 39,120,112

2022 2021
Us$ Us$ Us$ Uss
SGD 2.0 to 5.75 2023 - 2026 7,665,576 7,665,577 5,911,767 5,911,767
usD 3.22 2025 770,028 770,028 2,245,473 2,245,473
MYR 2.99 to 3.40 2027 - 2038 9,451,370 9,451,370 4,792,362 4,792,362
MYR 3.55 t0 5.02 2020 — 2025 56,908 55,668 61,778 56,270
PHP 7.01 2023 104,043 63,665 218,562 217,136
VND 2024 13,374 12,360 3,062 3,001
CNY 1.32% 2023 19,384 19,022 - -
UsD 1.26 t0 5.90 2022 54,539,415 54,539,415 37,240,507 37,240,507
MYR 2.38 to0 3.85 2022 101,813 101,813 175,286 175,286
EUR 3.85 2022 193,271 193,271 140,022 140,022
CNY 5.21 to 5.31 2022 419,282 419,282 144,770 144,771
73,334,464 73,291,471 50,933,590 50,926,595
14,127,869 2021 : 7,987,243
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13 0.07 1.75 2021  0.08
1.80
2022 2021
Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$
SGD 2.00 to 5.75 2023 - 2025 7,073,413 7,073,413 5,169,487 5,169,487
uUsh 3.28 2025 770,028 770,028 2,245,474 2,245,474
usb 1.21 to 1.76 2021 47,451,034 47,451,034 31,705,151 31,705,151
55,294,475 55,294,475 39,120,112 39,120,112
US$ USs$ Us$ US$
2020 15,382 46,145,017 468,092 46,628,491
(15,374) - - (15,374)
— 42,133,696 - 42,133,696
— (38,151,692) - (38,151,692)
- - (240,576) (240,576)
—- (1,419,293) (19,793)  (1,439,086)
(15,374) 2,562,711  (260,369) 2,286,968
®) 523,167 9,798 532,957
~ 1,419,293 19,793 1,439,086
- - 39,093 39,093
- 1,419,293 58,886 1,478,179
2021 31 - 50,650,188 276,407 50,926,595
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Us$ Uss$ US$ Uss$
2021 50,650,188 77,735 276,407 50,926,595
199,597,785 - ~ 199,597,785
(177,384,824) - — (177,384,824)
- - (212,725) (212,725)
~ (1,202,540) ~  (1,202,540)
22,212,961 (1,202,540)  (212,725) 20,797,696
277,610 - (9,235) 268,374
~ 1,348,455 - 1,348,455
- - 133,510 133,510
(37,241) (37,241)
~ 1,338,153 96,269 1,444,724
2021 31 73,140,758 223,650 150,716 73,291,474
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2022 2021 2022 2021
Us$ Us$ Us$ US$
- 32,227,055 28,998,614 24,221,229 23,401,243
- 3,749,019 5,778,187 8,426,306 11,221,180
35,976,074 34,776,801 32,647,535 34,622,423
512,702 568,970 290,504 493,848
223,650 77,735 129,007 64,826
5,900,587 8,018,546 5,384,606 7,882,555
183,007 183,007 183,007 183,007
42,796,020 43,625,059 38,634,659 43,246,659
89,888 - - -
42,706,132 43,625,059 38,634,659 43,246,659
42,796,020 43,625,059 38,634,659 43,246,659
17
30 90
2022 2021
US$ US$

243/345

300,998,894 226,302,486

17,452,940

23,286,556

318,451,834 249,589,042
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2021 2020
Us$ Us$
102,095 681,186
28,173 119,931
264,048 302,664
441,749 531,912
56,427 50,947
185,000 153,643
1,077,492 1,840,283
CDG
CDG
2022 2021
US$ US$
10,302 19,793
457,146 425,673
881,007 1,077,715
1,348,455 1,523,181
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20

2022 2021
Us$ Us$
11 428,695 441,891
11 (172,975)  (49,048)
28,288 26,169
573 25,285
544,543  (146,003)
483,261 483,259
1,223,887 1,073,497
189,682 252,305
232,294 168,709
5,380,448 5,062,056
471,574 431,498
65,861 41,687
25 41,760 329,482
357,722 281,441
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2022 2021

Us$ USs$
2,112,171 1,722,161
232,417 356,474
2,344,588 2,078,635
87,318  (93,193)
(5,054) 14,624
82,264  (78,569)
2,426,852 2,000,066
18,886,781 13,716,099
(192,483) (26,734)
18,694,298 13,689,365
3,178,031 2,327,192
106,079  (112,174)
(160,434)  (296,625)
133,226 445,104
(25,712) (25,771)
(1,031,701)  (708,758)
(5,054) 14,624
232,417 356,474
2,426,852 2,000,066

oOoOooodn
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2022 2021

Us$ us$
16,652,412 11,716,033
5,011,461 5,011,461
15,034,383 15,034,383
766,444 -
20,812,288 20,045,844*
0.8001 0.5845
0.8001 0.5845

2021 12
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2022 2021
us$ Us$
10,302 19,793
357,722 281,441
2022 2021
Us$ US$
(212,725)  (240,576)
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2022 2021
Us$ uss
796,244 746,149
CPF 56,282 68,040
852,526 814,189
2022 2021
Us$ Us$
364,500 56,873
8,304,450 9,156,522
1,409 13,731

(14,917,192) (14,315,002)
(6,155,948) (7,505,596)
(1,542) (19,458)
(278,635)  (267,049)
(44,542) (43,734)
40,988 41,285
24,974 35,804
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ECL

61

8,259,8211

ECL

2021
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2022 2021 2022 2021
US$ US$ US$ US$

53,496,622 52,604,745 72,480,644 62,022,753
4,197,452 3,049,768 3,281,024 2,587,874

57,694,074 55,654,513 75,761,668 64,610,627

2022
10,806,248
ECL
2022 2021
Us$ us$
41,760 329,482
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2022

- 30
31 - 60
61 — 90
90
2021

- 30
31 - 60
61 — 90
90
2022

- 30
31 - 60
61 - 90
90
2021

- 30
31 - 60
61 - 90
90

2022

ECL

31

US$

51,071,730
5,361,091
306,643
375,548
579,062

US$

96,933

289,449

57,694,074

386,382

50,940,528
3,870,767
380,087
242,049
221,082

76,202
54,064
37,548

192,145

55,654,513

359,959

US$

52,316,115
4,966,169
2,015,182
6,545,724
9,918,478

US$

75,761,668

53,292,545
3,511,010
1,011,226
2,168,561
4,627,285

64,610,627
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Us$ Us$
2020 31,003 -
329,482 -
(526) -
2020 31 359,959 -
2021 359,959 -
41,760 -
(15,337) -
2022 31 386,382 -

100

2022 31
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1,360,878
12

12

ECL
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505,054 2020 362,318
ECL
2,636,782 2020

ECL

12

12
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Us$ us$ us$ us$ Us$
2022 31
16 42,796,020 42,796,020 42,796,020 - -
15 17,886,975 20,240,456 3,309,595 9,931,631 6,999,230
15 55,253,783 55,643,588 55,643,588 - -
15 150,716 196,624 159,040 37,584 -
116,087,494 118,876,668 101,908,243 9,969,215 6,999,230
2021 31
16 43,625,059 43,625,059 43,625,059 - -
15 12,949,602 14,306,424 2,688,408 8,735,402 2,882,614
15 37,700,586 37,956,110 37,956,110 - -
15 276,407 283,402 201,906 81,496 -
94,551,654 96,170,995 84,471,483 8,816,898 2,882,614
2022 31
16 38,634,659 38,634,659 38,634,659 - -
15 7,843,442 8,176,931 2,560,097 5,616,834 -
15 47,451,033 47,769,589 47,769,589 - -
93,929,134 94,581,179 88,964,345 5,616,834 -
2021 31
16 43,246,659 43,246,659 43,246,659 - -
15 7,414,961 7,837,112 1,963,045 5,874,067 -
15 31,705,151 31,909,346 31,909,346 - -
82,366,771 82,993,117 77,119,050 5,874,067 -
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2022 2021

MYR USD SGD RMB MYR USD SGD

US$ US$ US$ US$ Uss$ US$ US$
381,761 1,355,880 402,917 ~ 321,935 310,998 437,885
264,664 1,573,620 1,557,927 76 220,018 1,351,237 448,449
(266,830) (3,424,504) (2,076,779) (146,918) (3,007,908)  (590,039)

3,714
— (1,964,630) (7,665,576) - —(1,489,731) (5,911,767)
379,595 (2,459,634) (7,781,511) 3,790 395,035 (2,835,404) (5,615,472)
2022 2021

RMB MYR SGD RMB MYR SGD

us$ US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
~ 388,525 57,769 ~ 337,796 354,255
~ 115,445 1,262,181 ~ 52,406 158,387
~  (257,025) (2,027,884) 3,714 (146,755) (553,392)
- ~ (7,073,412) - — (5,169,487)

246,945 (7,781,346) 3,714 243,447 (5,210,237)
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RMB  MYR USD

SGD

2022 2021 2022 2021

Us$ US$ US$ US$
RMB ( ) ) (114) - (111)
MYR ( ) (11,388) (11,851) (7,408) (7,303)
USD ( ) 73,789 85,062 - -
SGD ( ) 233,445 168,464 233,440 156,307
RMB ( ) 2 114 - 111
MYR ( ) 11,388 11,851 7,408 7,303
USD ( ) (73,789) (85,062) - -
SGD ( ) (233,445)  (168,464)  (233,440)  (156,307)

2022 2021 2022 2021
US$ US$ US$ US$

3,580,396 3,416,443 2,813,584 2,807,734
(55,253,783) (37,700,586) (47,451,033) (31,705,151)

(6,851,335) (4,937,657) (6,259,171) (4,195,377)
(58,524,722) (39,221,800) (50,896,620) (33,092,794)

(11,035,640) (8,011,945) (1,584,271) (3,219,584)
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2022 31

2021 31

2022 2021
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FVTPL
bp
50bp 50bp 50bp 50bp
USs$ Uss$ uss US$
(55,178) 58,178 (7,921) 7,921
(55,178) 58,178 (7,921) 7,921
(40,060) 40,060 (16,098) 16,098
(40,060) 40,060 (16,098) 16,098
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Us$ Us$ Us$

12 59,981,297 59,981,297
13 26,387,134 26,387,134
86,368,431 - 86,368,431
15 - 17,886,975 17,886,975
- 42,796,020 42,796,020

16
— 55,253,783 55,253,783

15
- 115,936,778 115,936,778
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Us$ Us$ US$ Us$ US$ US$ US$
12 57,618,752 57,618,752
13 23,535,300 23,535,300
81,154,052 — 81,154,052
15 - 12,949,602 12,949,602 12,304,876 12,304,876
- 43,625,059 43,625,059
16
- 37,700,586 37,700,586
15

94,275,247 94,275,247
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Us$ Us$ US$ Us$ Us$ Us$ US$
12 78,563,776 78,563,776
13 15,712,078 15,712,078
94,275,854 — 94,275,854
15 - 7,843,442 7,843,442 7,611,833 7,611,833
— 38,634,659 38,634,659
16
— 47,451,033 47,451,033
15

93,929,134 93,929,134
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Us$ Us$ US$ Us$ Us$ Us$ US$
12 66,354,088 66,354,088
13 16,717,282 16,717,282
83,071,370 - 83,071,370
15 - 7,414,961 7,414,961 7,172,043 7,172,043
— 43,246,659 43,246,659
16
- 31,705,151 31,705,151
15

82,366,771 82,366,771
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)
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FRS

FRS 115

2021

FRS

FRS 105 FRS

FRS 36

20

FRS 113

2021

FRS

FRS 116
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FRS 111
FRS 103
FRS
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Statements of financial position

As at 31 March 2022

Assets

Propery. plant and equipment
Right-of-usc asscis
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in joint operaiion
Investment in assocines
Intangible assets and goodwill
Deferred tax assels

Mon-current usscis

Inventores

Trade and other reccivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Current asscis

Total asscts

Equity

Share capital

Foreign currency translation
sV

Retaned carmings

Total cyuity

Lialsilities

Ciher payables

Loans and borrowings
D¢ ferred tax liabilities
Mon-current labilities
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings
Provizion for taxation
Current linhilitics
Total liabilitics

Total couity and liabilitics

I
15

10

16
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(heand-Pliws System Limited
i ifs smhsialieries
Finarciol sialewsents
Yeurr emded 37 March 2022

Group Company

12 i 2022 izl

Lss Uss USS LSS
18,798,120 13,122,742 4 085 156 4,456,787
154,661 257,170 ! %
- - 13133394 13,133,304
- - 4,223 24123
973,274 TR2,129 1,147,209 1047204
5230441 5,713,702 - -
56,781 73,711 - -

213277 19951455 18280082  |R661.613

65157932 34503812 40356134 20571714
62362485  S9206,9G8  TO20919% 67083539
26,387,034 23535300 15712078 16,717.282

154, 107551 117,306,000 135277411 104 372535

1793200828 137,357,545 153,567,393 123,034,148

26,073,548 IRS10425 26,073 548 B S10425

(b, 326 {70,134) = -
33792556 21470421 31,183.612 20242858

SUEITITE 39910712 ST2ST.0600 38755283

B A - - -
14 930 561 10,698, 198 5,454 402 S.644 161
Ti2.032 740,204 139,571 139,571

15,752.458] 11438402 5504063 5785732

42,706,132 43025059 35634659 43 246659
SRIGO913 40228397 49R3IDOR3  33.47595]
2,703,524 20544975 2,241 528 1,774,523

103,770,569  BSUMA31 90TFI6,170  TRA9T133

L19.503.050 97346833 96310233 B4 280805

I T9320828 137,257,545 155,567,393 123,034,148

The accompanying nodes foem an imiegral part of these Mancial stilemenis
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Year ended 31 March 2022

Group
Note 2z 021
Uss LSS

Revenue 17 384501834 240580 (42
Cost of sales (IR4567,184) (221, 479,696)
Gross profit 34 (84,630 28,109 346
Other inggme 18 1,077 492 1,840,283
Sales and dismbution costs (4259928}  (3,554.485)
Administrative expenses (7615, 169) (R.535.314)
Other operating expenses (3,050,809) (2647284}
Finance costs 19 (1,348.455)  (1.523.181)
Share of profit of cquity-sccounted investees (net of @x) 1492 483 26,734
Profit before tax 20 19,1574, 264 13,71, e
Tax expense 21 (2,426,852 (2.000,66)
Profit for the year 16,652 412 11,716,033
Oiher comprehensive income
ltems that are or may be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss:
Forcign currency ranslation diffesences - lforcign

opcraiions 23,145 176,047
Foreign currency ranslation differences — equity-

accounted investees (1,337) 8. 760
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 21,808 184 816
Total comprehensive income for the yvear 16,674,220 | 1,900, 545
Earnings per share
Basic carmings peer shore 2 (.81 05845
Dillwted eamings per share 22 0, 5K11 00,3845

The accompanying nodes foem an imiegral parl of these Mancial stlements.
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Consolidated statement of cash MNows
Year ended 31 March 2022

Cash flows from operating activitics
Prafii before tax

Adjisstmems lor

Allowance for obsoleie invemones
Ammortisation of nangible aszels
Diepreciation of property, plant and cquipment
Depreciation of right-of-usc assels
Ipainnent boss on doubiiul receivables, net
Progseny, plant and equipmenl writien ofl
Reversal of allowaixe for obsoleie miventorics
Invemory writken ofTiback)

Share of resulis in associmcs

Interest income

Intercst expenses

Unrealised foreign exchange gain

Operating profie before working capital changes

Imcrense in inventorics

Inerease in trade and olher receivables
{Decreasc)increase in trde and other payables
Cush (used in)'gencrated from operating activities
Ineoane Lix paid

Mot cash (used inplrom sperating activitics

Cash Mows from investing activitics

Imerest recgived

Purchase of propeny, plant and couipnecni

Proceed from capital retum of investment in associles
Mt cash wsed in investing pctivities

Cash Mows from financing activities
lssuance of share capital

Payment of share issuance exponscs
Changes of pledged fixed deposits
Decrease i amount due to directors
Proceeds rom loans and barmowings
Repayment of loans and bomowings
Payrment of lease Habiliies
Dhavidends pasd

Imteresn paikd

Mot cash Trivm linancing activities

Mot increase im cash and cash cquivalents
Cash and cash equivalems it | April

Effect of exchange rate Muctuations on cash held
Cash and cash equivalents at 3 Alarch

Mate
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Yewr emded 30 March 2622

Group
2 2021
USs Uss
19,079,264 13,716, (e
155,70 440,851
483,261 441,250
[,223 §87 1,073,497
189,682 252 305
41,760 10482
573 25285
= (40,045
544,543 { L6, 0013
{192 483) (26,734}
(28,173) (119,931
1345 455 1,523,181
1531583 410,323

23,299,642 17,004, 5065

(31,484,63T) (T TRT.B45)
{3,595, 305) (5254, F30)
(208, T1Eh 14,097,470

{12, GEG 1] 4,067,797

[1,509.371) (1,131,249}
(14195581 ) JEIG6.548
28173 119,931

(7,030,761 ) {1, 283,610)
14,456

(7002, 553) L1149, 224)

8773190 B

{1, 210,067) o
(150,722) 1,125,635
- (1537T4)

15 597 TRS 42,133,696
(17T 3R4 84} (38,151,692}

(212,725 {20 576)
(4,330.277) =
(1,202, 5400 {1.43%0.086)
23 RT0.8M) 402600

2GTEES] G059 927
20,510,234 14,190,844
12261 20,463

23 212,346 201,511,234

The accompanyving nodes foem an iniegral pan of these Mancial sulements.
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Year emded 35 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
These notes form an inegral part of the financial staements,

The financial statements were authorised for issuc by the Board of Dircctors on 15 July 2022,

Domicile and activities

Omni-Plus System Limited (“the Company”) is @ company incorporated in Singapore. The
address of the Company’s registered office 15 Block 994 Bendemeer Road, #01-03 B Central,
Singapore 339943,

The financial statemenis of the Group as ai and for the year ended 31 March 2022 comprise the
Company and its subsidianes (together referred to as the “Group” and individually as *Group
entities'§ and the Group”s interest in equity-accounted imvestees.

The principal activities of the Company are to carry on business of trading in resin, chips and
other related accessorics for local and overseas customers.

The principal activities of its subsidiary companies are stipulated in note 6 o the financial
salcmenls.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The financial staterents have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards
in Singapare (*FRS'), The changes to significant accounting policies are described im note 2.5,

Basis of measurément

The financial statemenis have been prepared en the histerical cost basis except as otherwise
desenibed in the notes below,

Functional and presentation curreéncy

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollar (*USS'), which is the Company’s
functional currency,

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of the financial statements i conformity with FRSs requires management o
make Judgements, estimates and assumpuons that affeet the applicition of accounting policics

and the reported amounts of assets, labilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimares,

Fae
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Estimates and underlying assumptions arc revicwed on an ongoing basis, Rovisions to accounting
estimates are recogmised in the penod i which the estimates are revised and i any future penods
affected.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant rsk of
resulting in o material adjustment within the next fnancial vear are included in the following
notkes:

& Moe S - anpairment st of intangible assets and goodwill: key assumplions underlying
recoverable amounts, including the recoverability of development costs,

o Mote 26 - measurement of expected credit loss (ECL) allowance for rrade receivables; key
assumptions in determineng the weighted-average loss rate.

Measurement of fair values

A mumber of the Group's accounting policics and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for bath financial and non-financial assets and liabilies.

The management of the Group has overall responsibility for all significamt fair value
measurcments, including Level 3 fair values.

The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments, 117
third panty mformation, such as broker quotes or pocing scrvices, 15 used o measure Gr values,
then the management assesses and documents the evidence obiained from the third pariies w
support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of FRS, incleding the level in
the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuning the fair value of an assct or a liability, the Group uses observable market data
as far as possible. Fair values are cateponised wite different levels in a fae value hicrarely based
on the inputs used in the valuation technigques as follows;

«  Level |1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or abilines.

o Level 22 inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assct
or liabilsiy, cither dirceily (e, as prices) or indirecily (e, denved from prices).

o Level 35 inputs for the asset or linhility that arc no based on obscrvable market data
{unohservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the foir value of an asset or a lability fall into different levels of the
fair value hicrarchy, then the farr value measurement s categonised in its entirety in the same level
of the far value hierarchy as the lowest level inpuat that i= sigmficant o the entire measurement
{with Level 3 being the lowest).

The Group recormses ransfors between levels of the far value lcrarchy as of the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred,

Further information about ihe assumpiions made in measunng fair values is included in note 26,
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Changes in accounting policies
Mew standards and amendments

The Group has apphed the followng FRSs, amendments to and mterpretations of FRS for the
first timse for the anmual period beginning on 1 April 2021:

& COVID-P9-Relared Rear Concessions (Amendments 1o FRS 116)
s [nterest Rote Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 {Amendnents fo FRS 109, FRS 39 and FRS 107,
FRS N and FRY L6}

The application of these amendments to standards and interpretations does not have a maternal
effect on the financial statements.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all perieds presenied in
these financial statements, and have been applicd consistently by Group entitics, exeept as
explained in note 2.5, which addresses changes in accounting policies.

Basis of consolidation

Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acguisition method when the acguired

st of activitics and asscts meets the definition of a business and contrel 15 ransferred to the Group.

In determining whether a particular set of activities and assets is a business, the Group assesses
whether the set of assers and activitics acquired includes, at a minimum, an input and substantive
process and whether the acquired st has the ability o produce outputs

The Group has an opton (o apply a "congentration test’ that permis a simplificd assessment of
whether an acquired sct of activitics and assets is not a business. The optional concentration test
is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired 15 concentrated in o single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets,

The Group measures goodwill at the scquisition date as:

#  the fair value of the consideration transfemed; plus

# the recogmised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus

o if the busincss combination 15 achieved i stages, the fair value of the pre-exsting equity
interest in the acquiree,

over the net recognised amount (gencrally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and

liabilities assumed. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. When the exeess

15 negative, a bargain purchase gain 15 recogmsed immediately in profit or loss,

The consideration transferred docs not include amounts related o the settlement of pre-cxisting
relationships. Sweh amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss,
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Any contingent consideration pavable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date and
included in the consideration ransferred. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity,
it is not re-measured and settlement is secounted for within equity. Otherwise, other contingent
constderation is remeasured at fair value at cach reporting date and subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

MNon-controllmg imterests (MCI) that are present ownership interests and ennitle therr holders 1o a
proporticnate share of the acquiree’s net assets in the event of liquidation are measured cither at
fair valug or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets, at the scquisition date. The measurement basis taken is elected
on 4 transacton-by-transaction basis.  All other non-controlling interesis are measurcd at
acquisition-daie fair value, unless another measuremeni basis is required by FRSs,

Costs related 1o the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity
securitics, that the Group imcurs in connection with a business combination are expenscd as
incurred.

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of contrel are accounted
for as equity transactions.

(i) Subsidiarics

Subsidianics arc entitics controlled by the Group, The Group controls an entity when it 15 exposed
to, or has rights (o, vanable retums from its imvolvement wath the entity and has the ability o
affect those returns through s power over the eotity. The financial stemenis of subsidiarics are
included m the consalidated financial stuements from the date that contral commences until the
date that control ceases,

Thie accounting policics of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the
pehicies adopted by the Group. Losses apphcable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary
are allocated to the non-controlling interesis even if doing so causes the non-controlling interesis
to have a deficit balance.

(i) Loss of contral

When the Group loses control aver a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related NCT and other components of equity, Any resulting gaim or oss s
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary s measured at fair
value when control is lost.

(v} Investments in associale

Asgsociates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control ar joint
control, over financial and operating policics of these entities. Significant nfluence 1 presumed
to exist when the Group holds between 20% or more of the voting power of anather entity.

Investments in associate are accounted for using the equaty method. They ane recogmsed imitially
at cost, which includes transaction costs, Subsequent 1o initial recognition, the consolidated
finnncial statements include the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of associate, afier adjusiments to align the accounting policics with those of the Group,
from the date that significant influence commeences until the date that significant influcnce ceases,
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When the Group's share of losses cxeeeds its investment in an associate, the camyving amoant of
the mvestment, together with any long-term interests that form parnt thereof, 15 reduced to zer,
and the recopmition of further losses iz discontinued exeepd to the extent that the Group has an
obligation to fund the investee's operations or has made pavments on behalf of the investee,

¥ Joint operation

A jomnl operation 1% an arrangenment in which the Group has joant control whereby the Group has
rights to the assets, and obligations for the labilities, relating to an arrangement, The Group
accounts for each of its assets, liabilitics and transactions, including its share of those held or
inewrred joindy, m relation o the jomnt operation.

(vi}) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenscs arising from intra-
grouwp transachions, are climinated in prepaning the consohidated financial stiements. Unrealised
gmns arising from transactions with equity-accounted investee are clhiminated apainst the
investment to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

(wvii) Subsidiaries and associates in the separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiarics and asscciates are stated in the Company’s statement of financial
position ot cost less accumulated impaimment losses,

32 Foreign curmency
(1) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in forcign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group
entities i the exchange rates at the dates of the wansactions.  Monetary assets and liabilites
denominated in foreign cwrreneics at the reporting date arc translated to the functional currency
at the exchange rate at that date. The forcign currency gain or loss on monctary items is the
difference betwesn amortised cost i the funcnonal currency at the beginnimng of the vear, adjusted
for effective interest and payments during the vear, and the amortised cost in forcign curmency
iranslated at the exchange rate at the end of the year.

Man-monctary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
value are ranslated w the functional curreney af the exchange rate at the dare that the fair value
was determined.  Non-monetary items in a forcign currency that are measurcd in terms of
hustorical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the ransacthion. Foreign
currency differences ansing on rranslanon are recognised in profit or loss,

] Foreign operations
The asscts and liabilitics of forcign operations, including poodwill and fair value adjustments
ansing on acgquisition, are ranslated to Umited States dollars ol exchange rates at the reporting

date, The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to Umited Staics dollars at
exchange rtcs at the dates of the transactions.
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Forcign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income, and presented in the
translation reserve m equity. However, if the operation is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary, then
the relevant proportionate share of the translation difference is allocated o the non-controlling
interests. When a forcign eperation is disposed of such that control, significant influence or joint
control is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation
ia reclassified 1o profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. ' When the Group disposes
of only part of its intercst in a subsidiary that mcludes a forcign operation while retaining control,
the relevant proporton of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests.
When the Group disposcs of only pant of its investment in an associates that includes a forcign
operation while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant propontion of the
cumulatve amount is reclassificd o profit or loss.

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable (o a foreign operation 15
neither planned nor likely in the foresecable future, forcign exchange gains and losscs arising
from such monctary ftems are considered to form part of 2 net investment in a foreign operation,
I'hese are recognised in other comprehensive income, and are presented in the translation reserve

i1 ity
33 Financial instruments
(i} Recognition amd initial measurement

Mon=derivative financial assets and financial liabilities
Trade receivables are imitially recogmised when they are onginated.  All other financial assets and
financial Diabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party 1o the conimactual
provisions of the instrument.
A financial asset {unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial linbility is mitially measured at fair value plus, or minus, for an item not at FYTPL,
transaction costs that are direetly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing componcnt is initially measured at the ransaction price,

(a1} Clazsification and subsequent measurement

Mon-derivative fnancial asseis

Om gl recognition, a financial asset 95 classified as measured at amortised cost, which
comprised cash and eash equivalents, and trade and other receivables.

Financial assets are ol reclassificd subsequent to their inital recopmtion anless the Group
changes ws busingss mode] for managing financial assets, i which case all affected finangial
asscts are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting perod following the change in the
business model.

Financial axsers al amortived cost

A financial asset s measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and s
not designated as at FYVTPL:
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# it is held within a business model whose objective 15 to hold assets 1o collect contractual cash
Mows; and

® its contractual terms give nse on speaified dates to cash flows that are solely poyments of
principal and interest on the prncipal amount outstanding.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the ohjective of the busingss model in which a financial asset
i5 held ar o pontfolio level because this best reflects the way the business s managed and
information is provided to management. The information censidered includes:

= the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice, These include whether management’s stratcgy focuscs on eaming confractual
interest income, mantaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the dumtion of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of the asscts;

= how the performance of the portfolo s evaluated and reported 1o the Group's management,

s the nsks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business madel) and how those risks are managed;

®  how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual eash flows collected; and

+ the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial asscts in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in ransactions that do not qualify for derccognition
are wol considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group s conlinuing recognition of
the assels.

Mon=derivative Nnancial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash Mows are solely
payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the far value of the financial asset
on imitial recognition. “Interest’ is defined as consideration for the ime value of money and for
the credit nisk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of tme
and for other basic lending risks and cosis (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as
a profit margin.

Im assessimg whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of prancipal and interest, the
Ciroup considers the contractual terms of the instrament.  This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contans 4 contractual term that could change the tmimg of amounl of contractual
¢ash flows such that it would not meet this condition,  In making this assessment, the Group
considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including vanable rate features;
prepayment and extension features: and

terms that limit the Group's claim (o cash flows from specificd assets (g, non-recourse
features).
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A prepayment feature s consistent with the salely payments of principal and interest enterion i
the prepayment amount substantially represents unpard amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which mav include reasonable additional compensation for carly
termination of the contract, Additionally, for a financial assct acquired at a significant discount
of premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permils or requires prepavment at an
amount that substantially represents the contraciual par amount plus acerued (but unpaid)
contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for carly
termination) is treated as consigtent with this critemon if the fair value of the prepayment feature
is insignificant at initial recognition,

Mon-derivative linancial asscts: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Finuncial ussets af amortised cosi

Thesc assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the offective interest method. The
amortised cost 15 reduced by impairment losses.  Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairmient are recognised in profit or loss, Any gun of loss on derecopnition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Mon-derivative linancial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gaing and
losses

Financial liabilitics are ¢lassified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, A financial liability
is classified as ot FVTPL i i 15 clussified as held-for-trading or it s designated as such on imitial
recognition. Fmancial liabilitkes at FYTPL are measured an fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, ane recognised m profit or loss. Directly attributable transaction
costs are recopnised in profit or loss as incurred,

Oither financial liabilitics are initially measured at fair value less directly attributable tmnsaction
costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, These
financial liabilitics comprised interest bearing loans and borrowings and trade and other pavables.

(i) Derecognition
Financial assels

The Group derecognises a financial asset when:
¢ the contracmal rights o the cash flows from the financial asset cxpire; or
* it transfers the rights to recewe the contractual cash flows in a transachion in which either:
- substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are ransferred;
or
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it docs not retain control of the financial asset,

Transferred assets are notl dercoognised when the Group enters inlo wansactions wherchy it
transfers assets recognised in its statement of financial position, but retaing cither all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the ransfered asscis,
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Financial liabilities
The Group derecognizes a Ninancial lability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows of the modified hability are substantially differeat, i which case 4 new
financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.
On derecognition of a fimancial lability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished
and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets wansferred or liabilites assumed) 15
recognised in profit or loss.

{iv) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial lishilities are offset and the net amount presented in the satement
of financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable nght o
set off the amounts and 1t intends either 1o settle them on a net basaz or to realise the asset and
setthe the liabality simultameously.

i) Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances and fived deposits from the date of acquisition
that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fir value and are used by the Group in
the management of its short-term commitments.

(¥i} Share capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.  Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recogmised as a deduction from egquity, net of any tax effects.

34 Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and mieasurement

liems of propeny, plani and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accunmlated impairment losscs,

Cost ineludes expenditure that is dircetly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the
asset.  Purchased software that is intcgral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of the equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
aceounted for as separate items (major compenents) of property, plant and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or
loss,
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Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment 15 recognised in
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future cconomic benefits embodied within
the component will flow to the Group, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carmving amount
of the repleced component is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property,
plant and equeipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciaton s based on the cost of an asset less s residual value, Significant components of
individual asscis are asscssed and if 2 component has an useful life that is different from the
remnder of that asset, that component 15 depreciated separately,

[epreciation 15 recopnised a5 an expense in profit or loss on a stmight-line basis over the
estimated uscful lives of cach component of an item of property, plant and equipment. Leased
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is
reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.
Depreciation 15 not recognised on frechold land and construction-in-progress.

Depreciation i recognised from the date that the property, plant and equipment are installed and
are ready for use,

The estimancd wseful lives for the current and comparative years arc as follows:

Building = 25 wvenrs
Computers and software - 3= vears
Electrical and fittings -l years
Furniture and fittings. = 3= 1l vears
Leaschold property = 13-20years
Machinery - Syears
Motor vehicles = 3-8 years
Office equipment - 3-10vears
Renovation = 5= 10 ycars

Drepreciation methods, useful lives and residual values arc reviewed at the end of each reporting
pertod and adjusted if approprate.

Intangible assets and goodwill
Gondwill

Croodwill that anses uwpon the acquisition of subsidianics is included in intangible assers, For the
measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, see note 3.1(i).

Nubweguent measarentent

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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(i) (ther intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are measured
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,

(i) Amartisation
Amortisation is caloulated based an the cost of the asset, less s residual value,

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss om a straght-hing basis over the csiimated useful lives
of intangible asscts, other than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use. The
estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:

. Customer relationships 10 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of cach reporting
period and adjusted if appropriate.

i Inventories

Inventorics arc valucd at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Raw materials comprise
purchase costs accounted for on a first-in-first-out basis.

Work-in-progress and finished poods comprise cost of direct matenials, direct labour and an
atributable promotion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Those
costs are assigned on an allocation of direct material and diregt labour.

Met realisable value 15 the esumated selling price in the ordmary course of busingss less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary 1o make the sale.

When the inventones are sold, the carmying amount of those imventones 15 recogmssd as an
cxpense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized,

The amouni of any allewanee for write-down of inveniories io net realisable value and all losses
of mventorics are recognised as an cxpensc in the period the wnite-down or loss occurs, The
amount of any reversal of any allowance for write-down of inventeries, arising from an increase
in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduetion in the amount of inventones recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal ocours,

37 Leases
Al inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, of contains, a lease. A
coniract is, or ¢ontains, a lease if the contract convevs the nght o control the use of an identificd
assct for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

{i) As a lessee
At commencement of on modification of a contract that containg a lease component, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contragt 1o each lease component on the basis of its relative
stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of propeny the Group has elected not (o separate non=

lease componems and account for the lease and non-lease components as a simgle lease
Ei.'ll'ﬂ]'.lt'l-l'll:ﬂl.
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The Group recognises a right-of-usc assct and a lease liahility at the lease commencement date,
I'he night-of-use asset is minally measured at cost, which comprises the imitial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date.

The nght-ofuse asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commengement date 1o the end of the lease term, unless the lease ransfers ownership of the
underlying nsset to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost of the nghi-of-use asset
reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase oprion. [n that case the nght-of=uze asset will be
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying assct, which is determined on the same basis as
these of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use assct is periodically reduced by
impatrment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease Labalivy.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses,

I'he lease habality is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implica in the lease or, 17 that e
cannot be readily determined, the Group's incremental bormowing rate. Generally, the Group uses
its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Group detcrmines its incremental borrowing mite by obtnining interest rates from various
external Anancing sources based on the location of the entities which have the leaze liabilities.

Lease payments mcluded i the measurement of the lease liability compnse the followmg:

fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

varizble lease payments that depend on an index or 3 rate, initially measured using the index
or rate s at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasomably certain 1o exercise,
lease payments in an opional renewal pecod if the Group s reasonably cerzun 0 exercise an
extension option, and penaltics for carly lermination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably
certain mol [o erminate carly.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective intercst method, It is
remensured when there 15 a change in future lease payments ansing from a change in an index or
rate, if there is a change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payvable under a
residual value guarantee, if the Group changes its asscssment of whether it will cxercise a
purchase, extension or iermination aption or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liabality is remeasured in this way, o comesponding adjustment 15 made to the
carrving amount of the right-of-use asset, or 18 recorded in profit or loss if the carrving amount of
the right-of-use assct has boen reduced to zero,

The Group presents right-of-use assets tat do not meet the definition of investment propeny in

‘property, plant and equipment’ and fease labilities in *loans and borrowings” in the siaement of
financial position.
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Shart-feem feases amd feases of fowsvoelie aosets

The Group has elected nol to recopnise right-of-use assetz and lease liabilines for leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases, including IT cquipment. The Group recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on o straight-lne basis over the lease term,

Bomowing costs that are not dircetly attnbutable 1o the acquisition, construction or production of
a gualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Impairment

Mon-derivative linancial assets

The Group recogmises loss allowances for ECLs on financial asseis measured a1 amortised costs.
Loss allowances of the Group are measured on either of the following bases:

* |2-month ECLs: these are ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
menths after the reporting date (or for a shorter peniod if the expected life of the instrument 15
less than |2 months); or

¢ Lifeome ECLs: these are ECLs thar result from all possible default evenis over the expected
life of a financial instrument or coniract assct.

Simplified approach

The Group applics the simplified approach to provide for ECLs for all trade receivables. The
simplified approach requires the loss allowanee to be measured at an amount equal o lifenime
ECLs,

Gieneral approgch

The Group applics the geiacral approsch o provide for ECLs on all other fnancial instrumenls,
Linder the general approach, the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs
atinitial recognition,

At cach reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit nisk of a financial instrument has
inereased significantly since initial recogmition. When eredit risk has increased sigmificantly since
ininal recogninon, loss allowance s measured at an amount equal o lifehime ECLs.

When determinmg whether the credit nsk of a inancial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supporiable
information that s relevant and available wathout undue cost or effort.  This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's histoncal experience
and informed credit assessment and includes forward-looking information,

If credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition or if the credit quality of the
financial instruments improves such that there 15 no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since nitial recognition, loss allowance 15 measured at an amount equal 1o 1 2-month ECLs.
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The Group considers a financial assct to be in default when;

& the horrower is unlikely to pay its eredit obligations to the Group in fiell, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
» the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The maxmuwm perod considered when estimatng ECLs s the maximum contractual penod over
which the Group is exposed 1o credit risk,

Measurentent of ECLy

ECLs are probability-weighted estimates of credit losses. Credin losses are measured ai the
present value of all cash shortfalls (ic. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive). ECLs are
discounted af the effective interest eate of the financial asser

Credit-impatived finaneial asvets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset ig “credit-impaired” when one or more events that bave a
detrimental impact on the estimated fure cash flows of the financial asser have occurred,

Evidence that a financial asset is creditampared includes the followimg ebservable data:

sigmificant financial diffsculty of the debtor,

o breach of contract such as a default or being more than M days past duc;

the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Growp would not consider
otherwise;

it 15 probable that the debtor will enter bankruptey or other financial reorgamsation; or

the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficultics.

Presentation of allowance for ECLs fn the stavement of fineneial position

Loss allowanges for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of these assets.

Werite-aff

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset 1s wntten off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is gencrally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficicont
cash Mows o repay e amounts subject to the winte-off. However, linancial assets that are witlen
off could sl be subjeet o enforcement activitices in order o comply with the Group's procedures
for recovery of amounts due.
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(ii) Associate

An impmrment loss in respect of an associate 13 measured by companng the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carmying amount in accordance with the requircments for non-financial
assets, An impairment loss 18 recognised i profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used o deerming the recoverable amount and only
to the cxtent that the recoverable amount inercascs.

{iii) Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-fnancial asscts, other than inventones and defcrmed tax
asscis, are reviewed af each reporting daie fo deiermine whether there s any indication of
impairment. 17 any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is cstimated. For
goodwill, and intangible asscts that have indefinite useful lives or that are not vet available for
use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time. An impairment loss is
recognised 1F the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating umt (CGLU) exceeds
its estimated recoverable amoundt,

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of s value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value waing a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the nme
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGLL For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets that cannet be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash mflows from contimuing use that are largely independenit of the cash nflows of
other asseis or CGUs, For the purposes of goodwill impaiment testing, CGUSs w which goodwill
has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment testing 1s performed
reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for intermal reporting purposes. Goodwill
acquircd in a business combination i allocated o groups of CGLS that are expecied o benefit
from the synergics of the combination.

The Group's corporate asscts do not gencrate separate eash inflows and are utilised by more than
one UL Corporate assets are allocated 1o CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and 1ested
for impairment as part of the testing of the CGU to which the corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses arc recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respeet of
CGUs are allocated first 1o reduce the carrving amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGL
(group of CGUS), and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other asscts in the CGU (group
of CGUs) on a pro raia basis,

An impairment loss i respect of goodwill is not reversed, In respect of other asscts, impairment
losses recopnised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or ne lenger exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used (o determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss 15 reversed onlby
to the extent that the asset’s carmving amount does nol exceed the carmving amount that would
have been determimed, net of depreciabion or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recoenised.
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An impairment loss in respect of an associate or joint venture 15 measared by comparing the
recoverable amount of the nvestment with s carmying amount . accordance with the
reguirements for non-financial assets. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. An
impaimment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates uscd to determine the
recoverable amount and only 1o the extent that the recoverable amount increases.

Goodwall that forms part of the carmving amount of an investment in an associate 1s not recogniscd
separately, and therefore is mol tested for impaimment separately. Instead, the entire amount of the
investment in an associate is tested for impairment as a single asset when there is objective
evidence that the mvestment in an associate may be impaired.

Emplovee hencefins
Defined confribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-cmployment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
coninbution into a separaie entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts, Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an
employee benefit expense i profit or loss in the periods during which related services are
rendered by employees,

Short-term employee benefis

Short-term emplovee benefit abligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
a5 the related service 15 provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid
under shori-term cash bonus if the Company has a present legal or construciive ohligation 1o pay
this amount as o result of past service provided by the emplovee, and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Unriniilised annnal leave

The equivalent cost of employees” entittements to unutilised annual leave as at the end of cach
financial peried is accrued for and recognised as an cxpense in profit or loss in the penod in which
the related enployvinent services are rendered.

The Group has ned made any provision for employee leave entitlement as the amounis are
insigmificant.

Provisions

Provisions are recogmsed when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a
result of a past event, and it 15 probable that an outflow of resources economic benefits and will
be required to seitle the obligation and a reliable cstimate can be cstablished on the amount of the
obligation. Provisions arc reviewed at cach reporting date and adjusted to refieet the current best
estimate. Where the effect of nme value of moncy 15 matenal, the amount of the provision 15 the
present value of the expenditure expected io be required o seitle the obligation.
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Revenue recognition
Sales of goods and services

Revenue from sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of business 15 recognised when
the Group satisfics a performance obligation {PO) by transfemng control of a promizsed good or
service 1o the customer, The amount of revenue recognised is the amount of the transaction price
allocated to the satisfied PO.

The transaction price 15 allocated o each PO in the contract on the basis of the relative stand-
alone selling prices of the promised poods or services. The individual standalone selling price of
a good or service that has not previously been sold on a stand-alone basis, or has a highly variable
selling price, 15 determined based on the residual portion of the transaction price after allocating
the transaction price o goods and'or services with observable stand-alone selling prices. A
discount or varizble consideration is allocated to one or maore, but not all, of the performance
obligations if it relates speeifically to those performance obligations,

The wransaction price is the amount of consideration in the contract to which the Group capects
to be cnitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods. Consideration payable to a
customer is deducted from the mansaction price i the Group docs not receive a separate
identifiable benefit from the customer,

Revenue from sales of goods and services are recognised ar 4 point in time following the
satisfaction of the PO,

Government grants

vher government grants related o assets are mitially recogmsed as deferred income at fir value
when there is reasonable assurance that they will be reecived and the Group will comply with the
conditions associated with the grant. These grants arc then recogmised in profit or loss as “other
income” on a systematie basis over the uschul life of the asset. Grants that compensate the Group
fior ¢xpensces incurred ane recognised in profit or loss as ‘other income’ on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses are recognised, unless the comditions for receiving the
grant are meit after the refated expenses have been recognised. In this case, the grant is recognised
when it becomes receivable,

Finance income and finance costs

The Group's finance imcome and finance costs mclude mierest income and the foreign currency
gain or loss on financial assets and financial liabilites.

Finance income is recognised using the effective interest method.
Thee “cffective mterest rate” is the mie that exacily discounis estimated future cash payments or

receipls through the expected life of the financial instnoment 1o the gross carrying amount of the
financial assecr.
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In calculating intcrest tncome, the offective interest rate s applicd to the gross camying amount
of the asset { when the assct is not eredit-impamred ). However, for financial assets that have become
credit-impaired subsequent (o mitial recognition, interest income 15 caleulated by applying the
cffective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial assct. [f the asset 15 no longer credit-
impaired, then the caleulation of nterest mncome reverts 1o the ross basis.

Tax

Tax expense compnises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in
profit or loss excepl 1o the extent that it relates 10 a business combination, or items recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

The Group has determmed that interest and penalties refated to income taxes, including uncertain
tax reatments. do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore accounted for them under
FRS 37 Provisians, Contingent Liohilities and Contingent Aszets,

Current 1ax is the expecied 1ax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the vear,
using tax ratcs cnacted or substantively enpcted at the reporting date, and any adjustment 1o tax
payable in respect of previous years, The amount of current tax pavable or receivable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expected (o be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related o
income taxes, if any, Current tax alse includes any tax ansing from dividends.,

Current tax assets and liabilitics are offsct only if comain criteria are met.

Deferred tax i recogmized in respect of temporary differences bemween the carrying amounts of
asscrs and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for Exation purposes,
[eferred tax is not recogmsed for:

»  temporary differences on the iminal recogninon of assets or linbalities in a trmsaction that 1s
ot a busingess combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss:

*  temporary differences related to investment in subsidiary and associates to the extent that
the Group 15 able 1o contiol the tming of the reversal of the lemporry difference and it s
probable that they will not reverse in the forcscenble future; and

¢ iaxahle iemporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill

The measurement of deferred taxes reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in
which the Group expects, at the reporting date, 1o recover of setthe the carmyvaing amouit of its assers
and liabilitics, Deferred wx is measurcd at the tax rates that are expeeted to be applicd o
temporary  differences when they reverse, based on the lows that have been emacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deeferred tax assets and liabilities arc offset if there is a legally enforeeable right to offset current
tox habalinies and assets, and they relate o taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
txable entity.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, wnesed tax credits and deductible
temporary differences ta the extent that it 15 probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they ean be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of
relevant taxable temporary differences.  If the amount of taxable temporary differences is
insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable prafits. adjusted for
reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered, based on the business plans for the
Group, Deferred tax asscts are reviewed at cach reporting date and are reduced o the extent that
it is mo longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed
when the probability of future taxable profits improves,

Unrecogmsed deferred tax assels are reassessed al cach reporing date and recognised o the extent
tha it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used,

Eamings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted cornings per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic
cammings per sharc is caleulated by dividing the profit or loss artributable to ordinary sharcholders
of the Company by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding duning the year,
adjusted for own shares held. Diluted carnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or
loss antributable to ordinary sharcholders and the weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, For the eMects of all dilutive potentiil ordinary shares,
which comprise convertible notcs and share option granted o employec.

Mew standards and interpretations not adopted

A number of new standards, micrpretations and amendments to standards are effective for annual
perwods beginnimg after | Apnl 2021 and carlier applicanon s permmtted; however, the Group has
not early adopted the new or amended standards and interpretations in preparing these financial
statcments.

The following new FRSs, interpretations and amendments 1o FRSs are not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements and the Company s stalement
of financial position.

FRS 11T Insurance Contracls aod Amiendarerits fo (88 1T fosurance Cantracis
Covied- - Redmied Rert Concessions bevound 30 June 2020 (Amendurent to FRY 116}
Reference to the Corceptial Framework (Anrendmerts o FRY [03)

Property, Pland ol Egutpment — Procevds bofore Tntended Use dAdmendanents fo FRY 16)
e Coiifraci - oy u.|" .f"rr.lﬁ.fﬂng i Cweminfraned fAuveralmeinis to FRS 371
Classification of Liakilites as Curren! or New-corrend {Amendmends fo FRS )

Annrent! feprovenrents fo FRNs 2008 - 2020

Diselosure of Aeconnting Poltews (dmerduents Jo FRY | and FRY Pracrice Statenent 20
Dejinition of Adccounting Estimates fAmendarents o FRS 5}

Dieferred Tax related w0 Assets and Liokilitics arising from @ Single Transaction {dmeadiments o
FRS I}

" & & & & 5 & =5 8 8

F524
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(heapd-Pliws System Limited
arnd ify swhivlimries
Finarcial siafemsents

Yewr emded 35 March 2022

Assets pledged as securify

Buildisg and leaschold properties of the Group with a carryving amount of USS14_ 127 360 (202 :
LISST 987 243) are mortgaged to financial institutions to secure the Group's bank loans (MNote

15}
Right-of-use assets
Stafl
Office Warchoose  residential Factory
building buildings umit building Total
Lss Uss ss LS5 LUss

Cost
Ad 1 Apnil 2020 192,254 32540 21,684 07,767 654,254
Additions 7331 - 31,762 - EUTITRS
Derccopmition of right-of-

LS4 ASSLIS {36 K200 (32.54%) - = (6 3649)
Exchange difference {3,597y = 862 9,350 (AL
At 31 March 2021 159,168 - 54,308 417317 G330, T3
Addidons 133,510 - - - 133510
Derccozmition of righi-of-

usg asscls (117.463) - - {303 2505 (4214133
Exchange difference (2561 = (552) = (B3R
At 31 March 2022 174,950 - 51,726 113367 342,052
Accumialated depreciation
At 1 April 2020 69,507 18,599 14,165 00615 192,786
Depreciation B33 13950 RN 132124 252,305
Derecognition of right-of-

S ARELLE (36,8200 (32.549) - - (B9, 3659)
Exchange dilTerence (2673 L 558 16 (2,005
Al 31 March 2021 116,147 - 34,721 112,755 373623
Depreciation T3 = 15478 0T | 15 BR2
Derecopmition of right-of-

1B5¢ 55015 (118,529 - (249.214) [367.743)
Exchange difference (486 (483} (7,202 (4,170
Al 31 March 2022 71145 - 50,116 6, | 30 187 391
Carrying dmouinis
Ag 1 April 2020 122747 13,950 7,619 317,152 461,458
Al 31 March 2021 43,021 - 19 587 194 562 257,170
AL 31 March 2022 103,814 - 610 47,237 154,661
Investment in subsidiaries

Company
2022 2021
LSS LSS
Lingquoted sharcs, at cost 13,133,394 13,133,394
F&27
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hwiend-Plivs Sysien Limited
v ity smbsidiaries
Fimarcinl shefemeuis

Yeur emded 30 March 2022

Dietails of significant subsidianies are as follows:

Effective
percentage of
Couniry of Principal equity held by
Mame of subsidiaries incorporation activities the Company
022 2021
U Yo
Mihon Pigment Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Processing and LM 100
compounding of
thermoplastics
OPS Technologics Sdm. Bhd. Malaysia General rader | (W} 1060
Omni-Plus System Shanghai The Peoples’ General trader 1M 100
Limited Republic of China
F1. Omm Plus System Indonesia Gieneral trader | M3 14
Cepeo Trading Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia General trader (1] 100
Chmini Plus System Philippines Ing.  Philippines Processing and 1 (0 110
compounding of
thermoplastics
DF Chemicals Pre. Lid. Singapore Whaolesale of T 140
chemicals and
chemieal products
I-FTZ Trade Philippines. Inc. Philippines General trader 1M 140y
Alpha Chemic Pre. Lid. Singapore General trader ([ 10
PT. Sentosa Kimia Indonesia Creneral trader | (M) 100
Tags Polymer Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia Ciencral trader 1M1 100
Omni=Plus System Japan Japan Consulome/'General 1 (M) 100
Corporation trader
Omni Plus System (Thailand) Co., Thaland General trader | (W) 1404
Lid
Held through subsldiary
DF Chemicals Vietnam Co., Lid. Vietnam Distribution of 1 (4] 100
indlustrial colerants
specialty chemicals
Fa2%
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(heapd-Pliws System Limited

iy swhailimries

Fimarciol stafemenis

Yearr emdea 38 March 2022

Company
022 021
Lss LIss
Joint operation 24,223 24213
Deetails of significant joint arrangement arc as follows:
Effective
percentage of
Country of Principal equity held by
Mame of Company inoorporation achivities the Compuany
2021 021
Ve Y
Ormni=Plus System Plastics Thailand Import and export 39 39

Co., Lud

Joint operation

plastics

The Company 15 a 39% (2021: 39%) pariner in Omni-Plus System Plastics Co., Lid, a joint
armngement formed with Thanasan Maiscaumso and Yanee Yuthakaichaisri.

The Group has classified its investments in Omni-Plus Svstem Plastics Co., Lid as 2 joint
operation, notwithstamding that vt s a legal separate enbity, as the sharcholders are legally obliged
to take the entire output produced and provides funding to Omni-Plus System Plastics Co., Lid.

Investment in associates

Group
vyl 2021
Liss Lss
Initerest in associaes I, 168830 1. 168 8530
Sharc of results in associates (195 556) (386700
973274 782,129

2022
Uss

1,047,200

1047208

Company
el i) |
LSS

047 200

| 047,200
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]":ulr el A1 March 2022

Dietails of significant associate companics ang as follows:

Effective
percentage af
Country of Principal equily held by
Mame of Company incarparation activities the Company
2022 021
“ %
Small World Accelerator Pre, Singapore Investment helding 48 48
Lid {SWA) comgpany
R& P Technologies Pre, L. (RPT)  Singapore Produce and sales of 40 40
polywear compounds

The following summariscs the financial information of the Groap's material associate based on
the respective (consolidated ) financial statements prepared in accordance with FRS, modificd for
fair value adjustments on acquisition and differences in the Group’s accounting policies. The
table also analyses, in aggregate, the carryving amount and share of profit and OC1 of the remaining
individually immaterial associates,

RPT WA Taotal
Lss LSS USss
2022
Revenue R337.706 -
Loss from continuing operations Total
Comprehensive income 495 437 {14, 360)
Maon-current assels 712,502 TO2ATS
Current assels 3 986662 54883
Current liahilities (2 HRRR2T) (155.022)
MNet assels 1,710,737 A2 40
Group's interest in net assets of investee at
heginning of the vear 484,921 297 208 TR
Liroup’s share of:
- Profit from continuing operations [ 199,375 {f, BU3) 192 482
- (1 - Foreign currency manslation differcnce — {1,337) {1,337)
- Total comprehensive income 199,375 (8,230 141,145
Carrving amount of interest in investee at
end of the year 684,296 288978 973,274
FS30
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Year emded 37 March 2022

RPFT SWaA Total
Uss Uss 58
1021
Revenue 6,080,015 =
Loss from continuing operations Total
Comprehensive income 261,627 (161, 493)
Mon-curmrent assels R8O, 225 T 8T
Current assets 6,020,246 62,222
Current liabilities (3088, 168) (149.917)
MNet asscls 1,212,303 a1y, 184
Group’s inferest in net assels of investee at
beginning of the vear IR0 A6TH 30T Q50 TTR 620
Giroup's share of:
= Profit from continuing operations 104,251 (T7.517) 26,734
- OC] - Forgign currency translation difference - (%,769) (8, 760)
- Total comprehensive income 104,251 {®6, 2R6) 17 965
Group's contnibution during the vear - (14.456) {14.450)
Carrying amount of interest in investee at
end of the vear 4384 921 207208 782,129
Intangible assets and goodwill
Customer/
Distributor
Goodwill  relationships Membership Tatal
Group USs LSS Uss Uss
Cost
At 1 April 2020 2023 790 4 832 600 31.7M 6 860,119
Acquisition through business
combination - - {3.848) (3,848)
Exchange difference - — 128 128
Ar 31 March 2021 and at
31 March 2022 2023, 790 4 K32 A 6,856,399
F831
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Customer/
Distributor
Goodwill  relationships Membership Tatal

Group LSS Uss USsS Uss
Accomulated amortisation
At Apnl 2020 B39 438 30 438
Amortisation — 483,259 — 483,259
At 31 March 2021 - I, 1426897 - 1142697
At | April 2021 - 1. 142 697 - 1,142,687
Amortisation — 483,261 2 483,261
At 31 March 2022 - 1,625 358 - | 625 B35
Carrving amounis
At April 2020 2A123,790 4173171 3,720 6, 200,681
At 31 March 2021 2023790 6HY ]2 - 5,713,702
At 31 March 2022 2023 790 3,20 651 - 5,230,441

Amortisation

The amortisation of ather intangible asscts in included in “other expenses”,
Tmpuirment festing for CGLUS confaining goodwill

For the purposes of impaimment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the Group's CGUs
{(operating divisions) s follows;

2022 021
Uss Lss
Carrying amounis
DPF Chemicals Group fd 434 6t 434
Cepoo Trading Sdn Bhd. 769,750 769,750
FT Sentosa Kimia 336,670 336,670
Tags Polymer Sdn Bhd 222936 221936
2,023,790 2023,7%

The recoverable amounts of these CGUs were based on i value in use, determined by discounting
the pre-tax future cash Mlows o be generated from the continuing use of the CGL,

Key assumptions used in the estmation of value in use were as follows:

Group
2022 2021
Ve %o
Discount rate 110-205 X AT
Budgeicd EBITDA growth rate (average of next five years) 40 6.0 40 5
Terminal value growth rate 2.5 2.5
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Fewr emded 31 March 2022

The dispount rate was a pre-tax measure based on the rate of 10-year povernment bonds issucd by
the govemment in the relevam countries where the entities are located and in the some currency as
the cash flows, adjusted for a risk premium (o reflect both the inereased nisk of investing in equitics
gencrally and the syatematic risk of the specific CGLIL

Five years of cash flows were included i the discounted cash flow model. A bong=termy growth rate
into perpetuity has been determined as the lower of the nominal GIP rates for the counirics in which
the CGLU operates and the long-term compound anneal ERBITDA prowth rte estimated by
MANAZCMERL,

Budgeted EBITDA was based on expectations of future outcomes taking inte account past
experience, odjusted for the anticipated revenue growth. Revenue growih was projecied tking into
account the average growth levels expenenced over the past five years and the cstimated sales
volume and price growth for the nexi five vears. [t was assumed that sales price would grow at a
constant margin above fonecast inflation over the mext fve years, in line with infonmation obdained
from external brokers who publish a statistical analysis of long-term market trends,

Bascd on the cash fow projections from financial budgets approved by management covering a
frve-vear periods, management has assessed that no impairment 15 necessary as at 31 March 2022
and 31 March 2021,

The estimated recoverable amounts of the CGLU, execeded its carrying amount. Managemient has
identificd thata reasonably possible change in two key assumptions could cause the carmying amount
to exceed the recoverable amount, The following table shows the amount by which these two
assumptions would need o change individually for the estimated recoverable amount o be equal w

the camying amount.

Change required for

carrying amount to equal
the recoverable amount
2022 2021
a “a
Group
Discount rate 30-60 1L0-4.0
Terminal growth rate (0.5-25) (0.5-2)
F533
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Year emded 38 March 2022

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Assels Liahilities
022 0z 022 o
LSS LSS Uss LSS
Group
Recocivables {2,y - -
Inventorics (125,03%) (105, 3404) - -
Plant and equipment - - 340,683 273041
Provision (11.426) (12,009 - =
Employee bencfit (19857 (23,776) - -
Tax losses carry-forwards - (28 206 - -
Intangible asseis - - 442 596 SI8.008
Other 1tems - - 30,383 43,7449
Deeferned tax (assctshliabilitics (152,421) {1t 305y 11672 EEE
Sct-off of tax 101,540 93 6R4 (101 6409 (93.684)
Met deferred tax (asscts)’
liabilities (56,781} (75, 711) 712032 740 2004
Liabilities
022 Vi |
Uss Lss
Company
Plant and equipment 139571 139,571
Dreferred tax liabilities 139571 139,571

Movements in deferred tox (assers)/ liabilitics during the year are as follows:

Recognised in
simtement ol
An comprehensive Al
1 April income Exchange 31 March
0 (Note 22) difference 2021
Liss Uss Lss LSS
Group
Inventories {301,754) (67,152) {6 458 (105 354)
Plant and equipment 231,774 37,730 3,537 27341
Intangible asscis 303,600 (75.502) = S18,098
Provision {42,297} 31,633 {1.355) (12,019
Emplovee benciit (17,873} = (3.503) (23.776)
Tax losses carry-forwards (46,0034) 175248 - {28,2006)
her items 63,730 (23, 106) 2,125 42,749
750,146 (TR 569) (&,084) i 4593
Fa34
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Year emded 31 March 2027

Recognised in
statement of
Al comprehensive Al
1 April income Exchange 31 March
2021 {MNote 22) difference 2022
LISs USs LSS LSS
Group
Receivables - (2,000) 1 (2,089)
Inventones (105,393} {16,733) {2912) {125 039)
Plant and equipment 273,041 649,181 {1,529 340,693
Intangible asscis 518,008 (75,502} 442 556
Provision (12,009 612 (1% (11,420)
Employee benefit (23,776) 8,152 (4.232) {19,856)
Tax losses carry-forwards (28.206) 28,206 - -
Cither items 42,749 (10,826) {1.541) 30,382
il 493 Th,44 1 (R5.733) #55,251
Inventories
Group Company
MNate 2022 2021 2022 2021
LUss Uss LUss LSS
Kaw matenals 3 8KE 504 4,595 95K - -
Work-in-progress 07,179 196 i - =
Finished goods 62387 T2 30482677 41345424 21 238125

GOSRIA05 35675625 41345424 21235125
Less: Allowance for obsoleie

Inventories
Balance brought forward (1,171,803) {T63,292) (0 411) (501 ,674) |
Allowance made for the

financial year 2l {428 605) (441 891) {(322.879) (164,737 |
Reversal of allowanee made Z1 172975 49 048 - - |
Exchange differcnce 2050 {13,66%) — - |
Balance carried forward _(1.425473)  (LIT1R03)  (9R9.200)  (666ALL)

65,157,932 34503 822 40,356,134 20,571,714

During the year ended 31 March 2022, inventories of USSR 1606229 (2021 USS21T,263,507)
wiere recopnised as an expense dunng the vear and included in cost of sales.

Allowance of USS428695 (2021: UU5%441,891) was rccognised as other operating expenscs
during the year due o obselete inventones, USS172,975 (2021 USS49 045} of the allowance was
reversed as the inventorics were sold.

F533
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Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
- Third partics
= Related parties

Less: Allowance for doubtful
reccivables

Other receivables

Amounts due from subsidianes
Amounts due from joml operilion
Admounts due from related parties

[}eposits

Tax recoverable
Prepayments
Advances
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(hrnnd-Ples System Fimited
v ifn snhaidimries
Fimarciol siafements

Year emded 31 March 2027

Croup Company

2022 2021 2022 021

Uss Uss U'ss Uss
57314,106 54411839 383449394 42264385
379858 1242674 37312274 22346242
57604074 55654513 75761668 646010627
{386,382) (359, 9549) - -
57307602 55204554 T5TAl66R 64610627
260,447 1,235,000 162755 368,222
- - 1,508 825 T, 63
505,054 362,240 B27.957 593,837
5 T8 - 78

_ 08104 TI6TEL 2,575 14.361

SO981.207 57618731 TH,563,780 66,354,088
2057 IREKIO 2057 IHE RO
EELALT 546,743 [48,.4349 340641
2,130,130 712,663 494 033 -
62562 485 SUJREOGE  TUJ0M U0 67083530

Awrounes duwe from subsidiaries, foint operation awd related parties (non-trade)

Mon-trade amount due from subsidiarics. joint operation and relared parics are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

(ash at bank

Fixed deposits

Cash and cash equivalenis in the
statements of financial positon

Fixed depasits (pledged)

Cash and cash equivalents in the
statement of cash flows

Group Company

2022 021 022 021

Uss Uss Uss Uss
4549 6,522 - 2498
22802188 20,112,335 12898494 13907050
1500396 3416443 2RIZAR4 2R07.7M
26,387,134 23535300 I5TIZ0TR 16717282
(30174,788)  (R024,066) (2485098  (2485407)
23212346 20,511,234 13,236,080 14331875

Fixed deposits cam interest of (003% 1o 1.80% (2021 0.08% o 1 80%) per annum amnd are used
a5 collateral for banking facilitics (Note 15). Fixed deposits have manrity period ranging from 3

to 12(2021: 3 to 12) months.
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Capital and reserves

Share capital
Group and Company

022 2022 2021 21
Number of Number of
shares LUss shares LSS
Fully paid ordinary shares
with no par value:
AL L Agpril 011,461 18,510,425 5011461 18,510,425
Share split 15,0134 383 = . .
Issue of ordinary sharcs 1,001 2, (WM 773,190 - -
21,047 544 AT IRI6I15 2001461 18,510,425
[mitial public offering
transaction ¢osis deducted
from cquity - (1,210,067) - —
At 31 March 21,057 844 26,073, 548 3011461 18,510.425

All shares rank equally with regard to the Company s residual assets. All shares ssued are fully
pand, with no par value.

(rredinary shares

The holders of ardinary shares are entitled to reecive dividends as declared from time to time, and
are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

As approved by sharcholders of the Company in an extraordinary general mecting held on 12
May 2021, each existing ordinary share in the capital of the Company was sub-divided into 4
ordinary shares (“Share Split”),

Chin 24 Juin 2021, the Company increased its issucd and fully paid-up capital by way of allotment
and izsupnee of BE0000 new ordinary shares at an 1ssuc price of JPY960 (approximatcly USSH.67
equivalent) per ordinary shares for cash consideration of JPY 344 80000 {approximarely
USST H2E 861 cquivalent) pursuant to an initial public offering on the Tokye Stock Exchange
{Mother Forcign Stock Board),

On 29 July 2021, the Company increased its issued and fully paid-up share capital by way of
allotment and issuance of 132 (00 new ordinary shares at an issue price of JPY 960 (approxmately
USSE6T cquivalent) per ordinary sharcs for cash consideration of JPY 126,720,000
{approximately US%1,144,329 cquivalent).

Incremental expenses dircetly attnbutable o the ssuance of new ordinary shares amounting (o
LISS 1210067 are recognised as a deduction from couity,

Transtation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences ansing from the ranslation of

the financial statements of forcign operations, a5 well as from the ¢ffective portion of any foreign
currency differences anising from hedges of a net investment ina forcign opcration,
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Bividends
The following exempt (one-tier) dividends were declared and paid by the Group and Company:

For the yvear ended 31 March
Group and Company

2022 2021
LSS LSS
Paud to the owners of the Com pany
First mterim {one-tier) dividend for L'SSO.0556 per
qualifying ordinary share (2021: USSNil) LT 600 -
Second interim (one-tier) dividend for USS0.15 per
qualifying ordinary share (2021: USENil) 1158677 -
4,330,277 -
Loans and borrowings
Group Company
022 021 2022 21
LSS LSS LSS LSS
Mon-current liabilities
Secured bank loans 14 895 508 10 620 833 5454 492 5644 161

Lease liabilitics 34,963 77,365 - -
14,930,561 10,698,198 5454492 5644, 161

Current labilities
Current portion of

secured bank loans 2,901,377 2338 Teo 3 188 050 1,770, 804
Lease liabilities 115,753 199 042
Trust receipis and bills

payahle 55953 783 37700586 47451033 31705151

SH.360,4913 40,228,397 49839983 33475951

Total liabihties 73,291,474 50,926,595 55204 475 39,120,112

Terms and debt repayment schedule

Terms and conditions of outstanding loans and borrowings are as follows:

il Iz
Momimal
inberesi Year of ¥ nce Usrrving Face Usirying
Curreney rale maimriiy vl aiEiE valse it il
L] LR ss LSS U'sS
(Frowp
Sequred bank lom SG L0Pyi0 5T 2023 - 1006 TAERSTE  TEG5STT ROILTET  SOLT6T
Sevured bank |oms USD 12T 024 TTo028 THLOTE  LMAATE 24T
Sarired bank o WIYR IR0mLis 1AM 33T - 20aN ST G443 479257 4,102 362
Lease Balndiiics MYR I3 in 3.02% 2020 - 23 36, 25604 &1,7TE 56,270
Luase Eabiltios FHT 4% 2073 |0, 043 3665 TiE. 56T 27136
Luase Babifilics VNI % 2024 13374 12, 5er 30aT 3,001
Laase Babililies CNY 130% 2023 19,354 19,022
Trust geceipts mnd hills 1.26% 0
javahle s 5.0 20a3 S48 415 M 5E0A1S  IT 0T 37340507
Trist fecsifils mnd bilks
payably MYR 18 10 1.85% 2022 Lol 213 101,815 175,258 175,284
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L 021
Year of Fare L wrrving Face Carrying
iy valae adiioinl wiilae il
LI (115 5% I's%
22 193,271 195,271 0oz 022
022 415,282 419,282 144,771 144,771
TIANAM  TA201 4TI 809131450 40026504

The seeured bank loans of the Group are secured over the building and leasehold properties with
carrying amounts of USS14,127 869 (2021 USST.987 243) (Mowe 4).

Trust receipts and bills pavable are securcd by a pledge of fixed deposits (Note 13) and corporate
punrantees which bears interest rates ranging from (007% to 1 75% (2021 (L08% 0 1 80%) per

AR,
Curmenay rale

v i
Secuped Bank loan LA ] 2008 1 5. 75%
Secured bunk lows LI5E) 1.3
Trust reseipls and il

pavahle L5 . 26%% 10 1.58%
Tl erleroa-heamng

liaibsties

b k] w2
Year ol Fare Carmying Facv Carryimg
maturity value amouni walur amsuni
&8 1% =% 58
003 -M26 TOTIH3 TOTIAIE A 604RT S I6044T
2023 TR TROAZE 2245474 2245474
AT ATASLO04 ATASLAM NLTOAIS) LTINS

3520475

S8 B 4TS E0. 12k

12 3widiell2

Reconciliotion of movements of labilities to cash flows arixing from financing acrivities

L brilities
Amount due to
shareholders  Loans ana Leasa
amil dircctor  borrowings liahilitics Tuotal
LUss Uss LUss uss
Balance at 1 April 2020 15,382 46,145,017 AnGE 162 A6 628,491
“hamges from financing cash Maws
mount due to direcior and
sharcholders 115374 - - (15374)
eeds from loans and bomowings - 4213360 - 42,133,600
ayment of loans and borrowings = [38,151.692) = (34, 151.692)
epivimenl of lease labilitics - - (240,576 (240.576)
nicrest paid - (1419393 (19,7937 (1439 086)
wial changes from financing cash
Mows (153743 2. 562,711 {2600, 350 3206068
Effect from changes in foreign
exchange rate [ 521,167 9,79% 532,957
ther changes
MICTCSE EXpense - 1419293 19,793 1,439,006
ew leases. - - 19,093 39003
otal linbility-related other changes - 1419293 55 AHG 1 ATE 179
Balance at 31 March 2021 - S0,650, 188 276,407 50,926,505
F539
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Liabilities
Laoans aml Inieresi Lense
horrowings pavahle lahilities Tatal
Uss uss Uss Lss
Balance at 1 April 2021 S0.650,158 TI 138 176407 50926595
Changes from financing cash Mows
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 195 507, ThS - - 99,597,785
ayment of loans and bormowings (177,384 824) - — {1 7T 384624
epiyment of lease liabilities - - (212,725) (212,725}
nterest paid - {1,202 5400 — (1202540
Totul changes from financing cash
Naws 22.212.96l (1,202, 5400 (212.725) 20,797,696
Effect from changes in forcign
cxchange rate 177610 - (9.235) 268374
ther ¢hanges
nicrest expense - 1,348,455 - I 348 455
ew leases. - - 133,510 133310
ransfer of leases (37.241) (37.241)
wtal linhility-related other changes - 1,338 153 96 260 ] 444724
Balance at 31 March 2022 73,140,758 233,650 150,716 731,200,474

Trade and other payables

Group Company
22 021 22 2
L5S% Uss Liss LSS
Trade payables
- Third parties 32,227,055 15098 614 24221,219  23401,243
- Relatcd partics 3,749,019 5,778,187 BAZ6306 11,221,180
35976074 34,776,801 32647535 34622423
her pavables 512,702 SGE,HT0 290,504 493 548
Intcrest payable 223 650 77,735 129,007 4 B0
Aceruals 5000 587 018 546 3 3R4 606 TER2555
Contingent consideration 153,007 183,007 183,007 183,007
A2.796,020 43,625,050 3RA34659 43,246,650
Trade and sther pavables
Mon-cunment HO BER - - -
Current 42,706,132 43,625,059 38,634,659 43 240,659

42,796,020 43,615,050 38,634,650 43,246 6549
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Revenue represents invoiced sales afier allowance for trade discounts

The following tables provide information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of
performance obligations in contracts with customiers, including significant payment terms, and
the related revenue recogmtion policies:

Mature of goods or services

The Group trades in resin, chips and oter related aecessorics.

When revenue is recognised

The Group recopnises revenue al the point i time when the
promused poods 15 ransferred 1o the customers.

Significant payment terms

Payvment is usually due 30 10 90 davs after delivery.

Revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary geographical markets as

foolloows:

Primary geographical markets
Ascan
thers

Other income

Forcign exchange gain
Interest imcome

Commission revenue
Government grant and credits
Scrap fee meome

Other income

Croup
2022 IS |
Uss Uss

00998 894 126,302 486
17452940 23,286,556
JIRAS1.834 249 589 (42

Group

2022 021

USss LSS
102,095 GRl, 186
K173 19,931
264,048 302,664
441,749 3392
56427 50,947
135,000 153,643
1,077 492 | £40.283

The government grants and credits mamly relaed o Capabality Development Gram (CDG)

provided by the Singapore government 10 support o 3 wide range of capabilitics that upgrade the
imitiatives o help the business grow locally and globally. The CDG funds up to 0% of the

quelitative project cost such as raining cemification. increasing productivity product development

PrOGEsS IMPIoYEmEent,
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Finance costs

Lease habilities mierest
Term loan interest
Trust receipt interest

Profit before tax

This 15 determined after charging/{(credinmg):

Mole

Allowange for obsolete inventorics 11
Reversal of allowance for obsolete inventorics 11
Cossuimable cquipment

Property, plant and cquipment written off
Inventory wnitten (back)off

Amortisation of intangible asseis

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Dircctors” fee

Employee compensation

= Sularies and bonus

- CPF conmibution

= Levy and SDF

Impairment loss on doubtful receivables 25
Expenses relating 1o short-term leases

L de D

Tax expense

Current tax expense
Current year
Linder provision in prior years

Deferred tax expense

Onginaten and reversal of emporary differences
Change in unrccognised deductible wemporary differences
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Group
2022 021
LSS LSS
10,302 19,793
457,146 425,673
R 07 1,077,715
| 348 455 1.523.181
Croup
2022 iy |
LSS LSS
428 6595 441891
(172,975) (49, (45)
28 288 26,169
573 23,245
544 543 1 146,003 )
483,261 483,259
[,223 5487 1,073 497
180 632 252 305
232,294 | 68,7009
5,380 448 5062 056
471,574 431 494
iS5 861 41 /X7
41,760 329 482
357,722 241441
Group
2022 2021
LSS LSS
2112171 1,722,161
232417 356474
2,344 588 207K 635
BT 318 (93,193)
(5.054) 14,624
32264  (78.369)
2,426 852 2NN (Wb
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Reconciliation of effective fax rafe

Profit before tax
Add: Share of results in cquity-accounted investees
Profit before share of resulls of associates and tax

Tax calculated using Singapore tax rate of 17% (2021: 17%)
DifTerent in tax rate in foreign jurisdictions

Income not taxable for @x purposcs

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Tax exemption and deduction

Tax rebateincentives

Change in unrecognised deductible iemporary differences
Under provision in respect of prior years” income tax

Earnings per share
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Group
2032 Rl |
LSS LSS
1% 586,781 13,716,084
(192 4%3) (26.734)
15,64 298 13,6849 365
3178031 2327192
106 079 (2 174)
{160,434) {2046, 625)
133226 445 104
(25.712) (25,771)
(1,031,701) (TikE T5H)
(5.054) 14,624
232417 356,474
1426852 2400, 060

The caloulation of hasic camings per share and diluted camings per share are based on the profit
attributable 1o ordinary sharcholders divided by weighted-average number of ordinary shares.

Profit avivibutable fo ordinary shareholders

Profit for the period, attnbutable to the owners of the Company

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares
Issued ordinary shares at | April 2021

Share split

Shares isswed during the year
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares

Earmings per share
- Basic carnings per share (LISS)
= Diluted camings per share (LIS3)

Croup
2022 1 |
LSS LSS
16,652,412 11,716,033
5011461 F001.461
15034 383 15,034,383
T6h. 444
20812288 20,045 844*
1.8001 0.5845
A1 B0 | 015545

*The weighted avernge number of ordinary shares for 31 March 2021 have been adjusted for the
inerease in the number of ordinary shares resulting from the Share Split on 12 May 2021,

The Group did not have any dilutive potential ordinary share 1o current and previous financial

period.
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Leases

Leases as lessee

The Group leases warchouse and factory facilities, The leases typically run for a period of 3 vears,
with an option to rencw the lease afier that date. Lease rentals are renegotinted every three years
to reflect market rentals. Some leases provide for addimonal rent payments that are based on
changes in local price indices. For certain leases, the Group is restricted from entering into any
sub-lease arrangements,

The Group leases production equipment with contract terms of one year, These leases are short-
term, The Group has elected not o recogmse nght-of-use assets and lease liabilines for these
leases.

Information about leases for which the Group is a lessee is presented below.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use psscis related to leascd propenics., (see Note ),

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Group
2022 2021
LSS LSS
Leases
Interest on lease liabalities 10302 19,793
Expenscs relating 1o short-term leases 357,722 2R 441
Amounts recognised in statement of cash Mows
Crronp
2022 2021
LSS Lss
Tuotal cash outflow for leases {212.725) (240.576)
Related party transactions
Fransactions with key manugement personmel
Key management personne! compensaiion
Group
2022 2021
LSS LSS
Short-term employee benefits T40 244 740,149
Post-employment benefits (including CPF) 56,282 R
52 526 K14, 1849
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Uhiher related party transactions

In additien to the related pany information disclosed elsewhere in the Anancial statements, the
following significant transactions with related partics on terms mutually agreed during the
financial year are as follows:

Group

2022 AT |

Lss LSS
Sales o related partics 64,500 36RT3
Sales w associales #3104 450 9 156,522
Sales to yoant operation |, 41 13,731
Purchases from related partics (14017 192y (14,315,002)
Purchases from associates (6, 155,248)  (7,505,5%)
Purchases from joint operation (1,542) {19,458}
Services charge by related party (278, 635) (267, 049)
Rental charge by related partics (44,542) 143,734)
Facilitics charge to associate Jib OHE 41,285
Administranive charge 10 associale 24974 35 804

Financial instruments

Financial risk management

Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks anising from financial instruments:

& credit nisk
o lguidity risk
«  market risk

This note presenis information about the Group's exposure 1o cach of the above risks, the Group's
objectives, policics and processes for measuning and managig risk, and the Group's management
of capital.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the cstablishment and oversight of the
Group’s risk management framework. Management 15 responsible for developing and monitoring
the Group's risk management policies. Management reponis regularly 1o the Board of Directors
on its activitics.

The Group's risk management policics are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by
the Group, (o set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to menitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policics and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through its training and management standards
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and consiructive control environment in which all
emplovees understand their roles and obligations.
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Credit risk i the risk of financial loss to the Group if o customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to mect its contractual obligations and anses pringipally from the Group's

receivables from customers and debt investments.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the Group and the Company’s maximum
expaosures 1o credit risk, before mking into account any collateral held. The Group and the
Company s exposures (o credit nsk arise primanly from cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, amount due from subsidiaries, amount duc from joint operation and amounit

due from related parties.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure 1o credil risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics o cach
customer, However, management also considers the demographics of the Group's customer base,
including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate, as these factors

may have an influcnce on credir risk,

The Group limits its exposure 1o credit nsk from trade receivables by csmablishing maximum
payment periods of one and three months for corporate customers respectively, The Group also
entered into trade eredil insurance for its trade recervables with an insurance mstitution which is

rated AZ based on rating agency Moody's rating,

More than 61% of the Group's customers have been mansacting with the Group for over 3 vears,
and none of these customers’ balances have been written off or are credit-impsaired at the reporting
date.  In monitoring customer credit sk, customers are grouped according o their credit
characieristics, ncluding whether they are an individual or legal entity, whether they are a
wholesale, retail or end-user customer, their geographic location, industry, trade histary with the
Group, aging profile, matunty and existence of previous financial difficulties.

Foposnre to credit risk

The exposure to credit nsk for trde receivables ot the reporting date by geogrmphical location

was as follows:

Group
Carrying amount
022 2021
LSS Lss
Ascan 33486622 5260745
Oithers 4,197,452 3049, 768

Company
Carrying amount
022 2021
Lss Ls%s

T2480.644 62022753
3,781,024 2,587 874

ST.604074 55654513

75.761.668 64610627

The carrying amount of the trade receivable of Group's three most sipmificant customers was

USSE. 259821 as at 31 March 2022 (2021: USS10,806,248).

Expected credit loss assessment

The Group uscs an allowance matrix to measure the ECLs of trade receivables from customers,
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ECL is caleulated based on actual credit loss experience over the past three vears and adjusted for
differences between economic conditions during the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current market conditions and the Company’s view of economic conditions over the
cxpeeted lives of the reccivables.

Imipairment losses on financial assets recognised in profit or loss were as follows:

2z n
UsS LSS
Impairment loss on trade receivables 41.760 329,452

There is no allowance for impairment loss arising from these outstanding balances as the ECL

asscased is msignificant,

The following table provides information about the exposure o credit risk and ECLs for trade
reccivables for individual eustomers as at 31 March 2023

Gross Impairment
carrying loss Credit
amaunt allowance impaired
Uss LSS

Group
20221
Mat past duc 51,071,730 - Mo
Past due | - 30 days 5.361,04] - Mo
Past due 31 = 60 days 306 643 06,933 Yes
Past duc 61 — 90 days 375,548 - Mo
Past due more than ® days 570,062 280 440 Yes

57694074 186,382
Group
2021
Mot past due S0,940 528 76,202 Yes
Past duc 1 < 30 days 1,870,767 54064 Yes
Past due 31 = of) days JRO08T 37,548 Yes
Past duc 61 — 90 days 242 (49 - Mo
Past due more than 90 days 221,082 192,145 Yes

53,654 513 150 939
Company
2022
Mot past due 52.316,115 = Mo
Past due 1 - 30 days 4,566 160 - No
Past duc 31 — 60 days 2,015,152 - Mo
Past duc 61 — ) days 6,545,724 = Mo
Past due more than 0 days 908478 - Mo

75,761, 668 =
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Gross Impairment
carrving loss Credit
Amoun allowanee impaired
Lss LSS
2021
Mot past due 53,292 545 . Ma
Past duc 1 = 30 days 3500000 - Mo
Past due 31 — 60 days 1011226 = No
Past duc 61 - 90 days 2. 168,561 - Ma
Past duc more than 90 days 4.627 285 = Mo
fd 610,627

Mavements in affowance for fmpairment in respect of trade receivables

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respeet of trade receivables duning the year
was a5 follows:

Group Company

LSS LI5S
At | April 2020 3003 -
Impairment loss recognised 329482 -
Exchange difference (526) -
At 31 March 2021 359,954 =
At 1 Apnl 2021 359 959 -
Impairment loss recognised 41,760 -
Exchange difference (15,337} -
At 31 March 2022 386,382

(inaraniess

The Group's policy is to provide fnancial guaranices only for whollv-owned subsidiarics”
liabalitics,

At 31 March 2022, the Company has issueed guarantees 1o certain banks in respect of credit
facilities granted to four subsidiancs, The Company docs not consider it probable that a claim
will be made against the Company and Group entity under the credit guarantee.
Non-tride amounts due from subsidiories, foint operation and refaied purties
The Group held non-trde receivables from joint operation and related parties of LISS505 0054
(2021: US3362 318). These balances were for short to medium term funding requirements. The

impairment en these balances has been measured on the 12 month expecied credit boss basis and
the amount of the ECL is insignificant.

F54%
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The Company held non-teade receivables from subsidiarics, joimt operation and related parties of
LIS82,6356, 782 (2021: U551 360,878). These balances were for short to medium term funding
reguirements.  The impairment on these balances has been measured on the 12 month expected
eredit loss basis and the amount of the ECL s insignificant,

(hfrer receivables wind deposits

Other receivables and deposits are short=lerm in nature. Impairment on other reccivables and
deposits have boen measured on the |2 month expected loss basis and reflects the shor matunines
of exposurcs. The Group consider its other receivables and deposits to have low credit risk and
the amount of the allowance on other receivables and deposits 15 msignificant.

Coslr and cash equivafents amd fived deposits

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents and lxed deposits have been measured on the 12-month
expected loss basis and reflects the short maturitics of the cxposures, The Group considers that
its cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits have low credit risk based on the extermal eredit
ratings of the counterpartics

The amount of ECL on cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits is insignificant.
Liguidity risk

Ligquidity risk is a nsk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty i mecting
financial obligations due 1o shortagze of funds. The Group and the Company s exposure o liguidiny
risk arise primarily from mismatches of collections and payments timing. The Group and the
Company s ohjective are to maintain a balance between funding through husiness and flexibiliny
through the use of stand-by credin facilitics to pay for liabilines that are due in the next twelve
mignths,

Exposure io liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual matritics of financial liabilities. The amounts are

gross and undiscounted, and inclede contractual intercst payments. and exclude the impact of
netting agreements:

Carrving  Contractual — Within Within Muore than
Node amouni wash Mluws 1 year 1o § years 5 vears
5% U&S U&% UsS LSS

Group
31 March 2022
Nom-derivative financial

liahilities
I'raide ond other pn}'n|'||z-| 111 4220 42 TG 020 42 796,020 - -
Secured bank loans 15 17 586978 20,240 4506 1 509 595 Gu3) 631 9 210
Trust receipts and hills

payalle 15 S5253THY  S564358K 55047 SKR - -
Lease liabilities 13 130,716 156,624 150, 044b 7584 -

TIGOETADE  DIRETOG6E DO 0K 247 9069215 6,999,230
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Carrving  Contractual ~ Within Within More than
Sate mEvount cash Mows 1 year 1o § years £ years
U'5% Uss LUs5 Uss U&S
Group
A1 March 2021
Non-derivative Mnancial
liahilitics
Trake and other payahles 16 43625059 43625050 43625050 = =
Secured bank Toans 15 12949602 14,040,424 IR 0K KTISA0T 2ERIA14
Trust receipts and bills
pavahle 15 AT 700586 3T0561010 37956110 - -
Fmanee Lease labiliaes [ B 276,407 R A02 201,506 R1496 -
9455 654 W ITO995  BEATLARS RE|0.898 2. ER2G14
Campany

31 Mareh 2022
Non-idevivative Mnanckal

liahilities
Trade and other payahles 16 3EAMG59  IRGAA65Y  IRA3LES - =
Secured bank loans 15 TR4F 2 RAT6931 2,560,097 6168 -
Trust receipts amd bills

payalsle 15 47431033 47 TRO.580 47 760 SKO - el

197134 4SRLITY  BEMGA45 5616834 =

A1 March 2021
Naon-derivative Anancial

liahilities
Tradbe and other payables It 43665 4326659 43 246,659 - -
Secured hank loans 15 TA14.961 T.RIT112 15903045 5ETHMT -
Trust eseipts and bills

payable 15 _31LT05051 319346 31909346

B2366.771  R2003 117 TRLI9080 5874067 -

The mamrity analyses show the contraciual undiscounted cash flows of the Group and the
Company s financial liabilitics on the basis of their carlicst possible contractual maturity,

The Group has secuncd bank loans which contain debt covenants, A breach of these covenants
may require the Group to repay the loan earlier than indicated in the table above, Under the
agreement, the covenants are monilored on a repular basis by the Finance department and
regularly reported to the management to ensure compliance with the covenant

The interest payments on variable interest rate loans and trust receipts in the tble above reflect
market forward interest rates at the period end and these amounts may change as market interest
rates changes. Except for these financial liabilites and the eash flow arising from the intra-group
financial guarantce, it is not expected that the cash Nows mcluded in the maturity analysis above
could occur significanily carlier, or at significantly different amounts,

FS50
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Market risk
Cuwrency risk

The Group is exposed to transactional foreign eurrency nisk to the extent that there is a mismatch
between the currencies in which sales, purchases. receivables and borrowings, including mier=
company sales, purchases and inter-company balances, that are denominated i a currency other
than the respective functional currencies of Group entitics.  The functional currencies of Group
entnes are pnmanly the Malayvsion Ringgn and US Dollar, The curmencigs m which these
transactions primarily are denominated are the Chinese Renminbi (“RMB™), Malaysian Ringgit
(“MYR”), US Dollar (*USD7) and Singapore Dollar (SGD).

F551

317/345



EDINETOOOO

OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)

oOoOooodn

TE8d

LLETOITS)  LFP'ERE PIL'E

(OpE IRLL) Sha'OprD

180 1'S)

(Tee'ess)  (esLi'abl) PIL'E
LRE'REl TE v

F1T Y Q6L LEE -

ITIPELO°L)

(EE'LT0'T) (sT0LsD)
IR sHt'sll =
6oL LE fCs'ese =

armsod X worsod [DIDUTUL JO IUALNMS 158
STEULAMOLI0 P2 SURGT]

sapquAnd Lo pue apel )

spuajeainba ysea pus yse))

FAQEALII S0 PUR JPEL].

5N L8N s8N 850 &1 s8N
ans HAW HINH ans HAW HIVH Aunduroy
| Ting

(ZLFSI9S)  (P0P'CER'T) SEent O6L"E (TISTI8LL)  (PEFRET T CHEALE amsodya
_.—_.._._.__aﬂn_” ._q__u..-.__.__c_.._ ._D JUILLLA M= ._..UZ
Lol 116's)  (IELast’ 1) - - Qs con ]  (DEFFDG |} - STLLMOLI0G PUE SURDT]
(HE0"D6E) (RO LOOE) 5169t} FILE GLLOLOTY  (FOSRTFEY  (0ER'99T) sajqudnd daupo pue apes |
Ll LETISE"] SI0M0ZT aL LTGLEE] T ELL’] FOU PO SIUD|RAINED YD U yse )
CRETLEY 266015 SE6ITE = L6 TOF (RS S5E | 1947185 FAQEATAL SN0 PUR PR ]

s8N 80 5N s8N 50 50 L0 |
azys asn HAW HivH ans asn HAW dnoury
10z Iiog

LI07 gy | papa
FIRUIEAS [T AT of
NI S} s

g ] S Sl -fuiig)

318/345



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

{hwamnd-Pliws System [imited
vl ifw snfidlimries
Fimarcinl shafemauiy

Yeur emded 37 March 2027

Sensitivity analysis for forcign curvency risk
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group and the Company s profit or loss o
possible change to the RMB, MYR, USD and 5GD exchange rates against the functional

currencies, with all ather variables held constant.

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Profit or loss  Profiterloss  Profit or loss  Profil or loss
LSS LSS LUss LSS
RME (3% strengthening) {2} (114} - (1)
MYR (3% strengthening) (11.3%8) (11,851) (7408} {7.303)
LISEN (3% strengthening) 73,740 ¥5,062 - -
SGD (3% strengthening) 233,445 168,464 233 240 156,307
RMB (3% weakening) 2 114 = 11
MY R { 3% weakening) L1388 11,831 TA08 7,303
LISD (3% weakening ) (73,7890 (E5,062) - -
SGD (3% weakening) (233.445) {168 464) (233.440) (156,307

Tmierest rirte risk

Interest rate risk is the sk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group and the Company s
financial instruments will Nuctuate beeause of changes in market interest rates. The Group and
the Company s exposure to inferest rate risk arise primarily from their fixed deposits and inferest-
bearmyg loans and bormowings.

I'he Group and the Company do not have a policy to manage interest rate as interest income and
expenses do not constitute a substantial pant of the total operating income and expenses,
respectively,

Fxposure to interest rate risk

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the interest-bearing financial instruments, as
reported to the management, was as follows:

Group Company
Nominal amouni Nominal amount

022 021 2022 2021

ss LUSs LSS LIE
Fixed rate insiruments
Fixed deposits 3,580,396 3416443 2R13.584 2,807,734
Trust receipts and bills payables (55253, 783) (3770, 586)  (47451,033y (31,705.151)
Sccured bank loans (6.8501,335) (49376570 (62590710 (4.1953TD)

(58,524,722)  (39.220,800)  (50,896,620)  (33,002,794)

F553
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Group Company
Nominal amount Nominal amount
p{Lryd 2l 2022 2
55 55 LSS LSS
Variable rate instruments
Secured bank loans (10356400 (BO10945)  (1L384271) (3219554

Fair value sensirivity anclysix for fived rate insiramenis

The Group does not aceount for any fixed rate financial assets and labilities at FYTPL. Therefore,
changc in interest rates at the reponting date would not affeet profit or loss,

Cash fow sersiiivity amalvsis for varialle rate insirmmeniy
A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points (“bp”) in mterest rates at the reporting date would

have inereased (decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below, This analysis assumes
that all ather variables, in particular forcign currency cxchange rates, remain constant.

Group Company
Profit or loss Profit or loss
50 by 50 bp 50 bp E0 bp
increase decrease increase decrease

LSS Uss LSS LSS
31 March 2022
Variable rate instruments (55,178} S8,17% {7.921) 7.921
Cash flow sensitivity {35,174} 58,174 {7.921) 7921
31 March 2021
Variable rate instruments (401,000 A0 1l {16 008) 16 (195
Cash flow sensitivity (401 EMENY QAU {16,098) 16,05

Price risk

The Group and Company are not exposed to price risk as it does not hold any listed scouritics,
Capital management

The Group and the Company s objectives when managing capital are 1o ensure that the Group
and the Company are adequately capitalised and 1o mointain an optimal capital structure by
issuing or redeerming additional equity and debt instruments when necessary. Mo changes were
made in the objectives, policics and processes during the financial vears ended 2022 and 2021,

Caopital is defined as total issued and fully paid-up ordinary shares and retained camings.

The Group and Company are not subject to any externally imposed capital reguirement.

F554
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Valuation technigques and significant unobservable inputs

The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 fair values, as well
as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Type Valuation technigque

Group and Company

Oher financial liabilines®*  Discounted cash flows: The valuation model considers the
present value of expected payment, discounted using a risk-
adpusted discount re, 1.33% (2021 1.33%)

* Chther financial liabilitics include sccurcd bank loans.,

F559
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*

2037 12 31 20.315 15.315
2038 20 15
NISA NISA
2037 12 31 15.315 15.315
2038 15
2037 12 31 20.315 15.315
2038 20 15

NISA NISA
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2022 13
®
21 2022 2022 30 2022 13
21 2022 2022 30 2022 12
21 2022 10 2022 12 31 2023
4
24 19
2022 15
24 19

2022 13
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Independent auditors report

Members of the Company
Omni-Plus System Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Omni-Plus System Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries (‘the
Group’), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group and the statement of
financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages FS1 to FS59.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial
position of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (‘the
Act’) and Financia Reporting Standards in Singapore (' FRSS) so asto give atrue and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2022 and of the
consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (' SSAS). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the ‘Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (*
ACRA Code’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.
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Other information

Management is responsible for the other information contained in the annual report. Other information is defined as
all information in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors report thereon.

We have obtained the other information prior to the date of this auditors report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financia statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Thedirectors responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.
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Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether amaterial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosuresin the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controls that we identify during our
audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those

subsidiary corporations incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

KPMGLLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
15 July 2022
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Independent auditors report

Members of the Company
Omni-Plus System Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Omni-Plus System Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries (‘the
Group’), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group and the statement of
financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages FS1 to FS61.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial
position of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (‘the
Act’) and Financia Reporting Standards in Singapore (' FRSS) so asto give atrue and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2023 and of the
consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (' SSAS). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the ‘Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (*
ACRA Code’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.
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Other information

Management is responsible for the other information contained in the annual report. Other information is defined as
all information in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors report thereon.

We have obtained the other information prior to the date of this auditors report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financia statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Thedirectors responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.
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Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether amaterial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosuresin the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controls that we identify during our
audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those

subsidiary corporations incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

KPMGLLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
25 July 2023
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